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Directors’ Profile
EE/GI

Executive Directors

Shum Siu Hung, aged 58, is Chairman of the Company. Mr.
Shum is responsible for the formulation and implementation of
corporate policies and strategies. Mr. Shum has over 30 years of
experience in international trading and investment in China.

Shum Chun, Lawrence, aged 38, is Managing Director of the
Company since 2009. Mr. Shum graduated from the University
of Saskatchewan with a degree in Bachelor of Arts, majoring in
Economics. Prior to joining the Company in 2004, Mr. Shum has
pursued a career in finance and accountancy in an international
accounting firm. He is the son of Mr. Shum Siu Hung.

Cen Ziniu, aged 48, graduated from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University with a Master’s Degree in Business Administration and
has been involved in trading businesses in Hong Kong and China,
holding senior managerial positions. Mr. Cen has extensive
experience in dealership management, business formation and
marketing. He is responsible for market development of the
Group and overseas operations. He is a cousin of Mr. Shum Siu
Hung.

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond, aged 58, has been executive
director and is responsible for the overall operations since
August 2003 and in charge of various business projects in the
Group. Prior to joining the Company Mr. Chiu had over 20 years’
experience in banking and management. He has been involved
in the financing and supervision of business projects in China
since the late 1980’s and was in charge of the management and
control of a wide range of projects.

Siu Ka Fai, Brian, aged 54, graduated from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Arts degree.
He conducted a further course of study in real estate at the
University of British Columbia in Canada and then had over 20
years experience in the investment and real estate field, working
with various reputable companies in Hong Kong and China.
Mr. Siu joined the Group in 2005 and is currently in charge of
the Group’s liquefied petroleum gas purchasing and liquefied
petroleum gas re-export operations.
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Directors’ Profile
EE/GI

Wang Jian, aged 37, graduated from Guangzhou Jinan
University with a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics and a Master’s
Degree in Finance. Prior to joining the Group in 2008, Mr. Wang
was engaged by a major bank in China and worked in its banking
business department. In November 2014, Mr. Wang obtained
a Doctor’'s Degree in Business Administration from School of
Business of Macau University of Science and Technology.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony, aged 65, has been independent
non-executive director since August 2001. Mr. Cheung is an
associate member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Cheung graduated from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University (formerly: the Hong Kong Polytechnic)
with a higher diploma in Accountancy. Mr. Cheung has over 30
years of experience in account, finance and investment banking
profession specializing in equity/debt fund raising, mergers and
acquisition and corporate restructuring before working with
publicly listed companies undertaking corporate management,
planning and strategies development functions. Mr. Cheung is
an independent non-executive director of PetroAsian Energy
Holdings Limited, Great Harvest Maeta Group Holdings Limited
and Mobile Telecom Network (Holdings) Limited, whose shares
are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict, aged 58, has been independent
non-executive director since March 2006. Mr. Chan is a holder
of a Master of Science Degree in Applied Mechanics (Cranfield
Institute of Technology, U.K.) and a registered professional
engineer in Hong Kong and the U.K. Mr. Chan is graduated with
First Class Honours in mechanical engineering and the recipient
of the U.K. Institution of Mechanical Engineers Outstanding
Project Price Award, 1981. For the last 20 years, Mr. Chan
has taken up key management positions in engineering and
technology businesses in Hong Kong, ranging from pumping
equipment and control systems, mini-piling, and software and
hardware engineering businesses.
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Directors’ Profile
EE/GI

Dr. Xu Mingshe, aged 61, was accredited a doctor’s degree
in economics by the Xiamen University. He graduated from the
Guangzhou Institute of Foreign Languages with a bachelor’s
degree in English, holds the title of Senior Economist, and has
over 20 years’ experience in the banking-finance field. Since
1980, Dr. Xu has held in succession a series of position in the
top management level in banking sector in China, and has been
well connected in the finance and corporate sectors both in
China and overseas. Dr. Xu's expertise includes public listings,
project financing, syndicated loan, debt restructuring and merge
and acquisition. He has taken part in a considerable number
of overseas listing of Chinese enterprises and other major
fund raising exercises. Dr. Xu was appointed as independent
non-executive director of the Company on 1 July, 2006 and an
independent non-executive director of EPI (Holdings) Limited (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange) from 2006 to 2009.
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Chairman’s Statement
FREHRE

On behalf of NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited (the
“Company”), | am pleased to present the report on the audited
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively as
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2016 to the
shareholders.

Brexit, the election of Donald Trump as the President of the
United States and many other unlikely political events have taken
the world by surprise in 2016, making it harder and harder to
identify market trends. Torrents of capital as a result chose to
embrace speculative short-term investments, creating a boom
on the derivatives trading and in turn ensued anomalies in the
staple commodity prices. The Group, as an operator in staple
commodities, was exposed to considerable challenges amidst
the erratic market during the year.

In terms of the Chinese market, most private enterprises
continued to compete intensively under the macro-environment
of excess capacity, and even the survivors were subject to the
bleak reality of further pressed margins, albeit data reflecting
initial success for the capacity minimization — and inventory-
minimization measures of state-owned enterprises plus an
alleviation in deflation. On top of these, import businesses were
also hit by the successive depreciations in renminbi. As it goes,
2016 has been a perturbed year for all.

The Group managed to generate respectable results during
the year notwithstanding the disappointing overall operating
environment. Net profits for the year amounted to approximately
HK$750 million, slightly down by approximately 1.16% from
the previous year. In face of brutal competition, the Group had
no choice but to adjust its prices as appropriate to maintain
market competitiveness. Leveraging on the industry foundation
fostered over the past years, sales were invigorated in the hope
of minimizing the actual reduction in profits. In 2016, the Group’s
total sales volume of energy products saw a breakthrough of
over 5 million tons, with substantial increases in both of the
wholesale and trading volumes. The retail business, on the
other hand, lacked growth and merely maintained similar levels
of sales volume as in the past, since it takes time for sales
network expansion. Turnover reached approximately HK$15.7
billion, representing an increase of approximately 1.20% from
that of 2015. The vast growth in the sales volume is the main
contribution to the increase.

456

HNEWOCEMN 5

i
:

Annual Report 2016 =—Z—XFEFEH

RAAEREXINEEREEFR AR (LA THHE
[ARABDRABEBRRRESARARENEA
BIATHBIAER])EH =2016F12 A 31
ALt FEREREERE -

20164 - R EHR THZEREBBE - 55
HEEEXEARFLABRRNBUASEMF
< TRORI T 35 B [A) 9 T4 B KL B S R AT
FoABEZAMBEERARBIENEREK
B PRITETAMNBERS  EHAFH
mEERLRERKE - EEBEAFEANT
5 ABEAEFAEHRAKRB(ARARESR
R EE ) RRBRIRHBEE -

ERFEMES  BABRBTREZLREE
BEREBHEHNITHEDSERRR  BRENER
MSREFTE BEEERBEOMLEEFRK
REERBROARE TETHNNHES
REBLTENEOMHENE - THERENR
BE-MEEENEBHNRHPEERHARKE
EERDENTE - ABMA - 2016 FEHEMR
AMEHBHETERHH)—F ©

BENKERBHEAT TIEE > BAEEE
FERANKRBNATERBTIR - FRE
WARB750EET LEFRBTERY
1.16% c AR B F R - EERFEE FHEE
BARTFEMSOESEH YRBEZFEREY
MITEERRENEES  UWEHRIBEERFN
MK 2016 FEEERMEERNBHE SR
B T5008M  ERtBENESEAIEIEE
K MEBEEEBKANE BEREE MK FRK
BEER  BREABERBONHEEE - &
AR EH157.00BE T L2015 F/E
EBEMN1.20% EEERETERNAHEE
EABRRSATE -

7



8

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #1/S8EREBHBR QA

Chairman’s Statement
FREHRE

Our experiences in 2016 have led to recognize the inevitable
existence of limitations on the markets even for ones as huge
as China. In the future, we will step up efforts in extending our
extensive experience in the energy industry to the overseas, and
strive to identify suitable development opportunities from China’s
One Belt and One Road initiatives. Paralleled to these, the Group
will persist in the strategy of boosting development by end-
user sales through seeking suitable sites for building refueling
stations and LNG refueling stations in Guangdong Province,
as well as establishing the fuel oil supply network for vehicles
and vessels. We believe that as the Group’s end-user sales
network in Guangdong Province optimizes, its energy business
will become more internationalized to effectively diversify its
operational/investment risks to different markets, which will in
turn support the sustainable enhancement in its overall profits
and capital returns. Provided that the Group has to ensure for
sufficient working capital for developing existing and potential
new business, the Board does not recommend the payment of
dividend.

| hereby take the opportunity to express on behalf of the Board
the appreciation we have to our staff for their contribution in the
past year, and look forward to the creation of a better future
where we all unite to brave any challenges ahead in the Group’s
spirit of perseverance.

Shum Siu Hung
Chairman

21 March 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIRE 2 7w Mo

1.

Market Overview

In the past year, unexpected incidents such as the frequent
terror attacks, the unceasing flood of refugees reaching
Europe, the BREXIT and Trump being the elected US
President had led to political instability in many countries,
resulting that each country could hardly put forward
their effective economic policies. With the absence of
driving forces stimulating the consumption in the global
market, the overall demand remained staggered. Under
the weakness of the economy over the long term, prices
of bulk commodities not only failed to remain stable, but
also appeared with frequent fluctuations. Such might be
due to the speculations in the OTC market. Such changes
had worsened the instability, resulting in more difficulties
in foreseeing the uncertain market trends. As a result, an
utmost difficult operational environment was formed.

In fact, the turmoil in Europe, North Africa and the Middle-
East regions did not pose any significant impact on China.
Theoretically speaking, such period in turn allowed China to
focus on tackling the issue of overcapacity. As revealed by
figures, the rectification seemed efficient to a certain extent,
the crisis of deflation was also relieved (particularly in the
third quarter where a slight inflation of 1.1% was shown).
Nonetheless, only the state-owned enterprises could
indeed receive the financial assistance from the government
for conducting reforms, whereas there lied an insignificant
possibility that private-owned enterprises could receive
any assistance from banks. Therefore, there were only
critical battles relating to the survival of the fitness between
private-owned enterprises, in where the issue of reforms
did not even exist. For these enterprises, overcapacity
was still a serious matter and the competition among them
remained extremely severe, resulting that further narrowing
down of the gross profits became unavoidable.

Regarding the importers, the disappointing performance of
Renminbi resulted in additional problems for the existing
poor business environment. At the beginning of the first
half of the year, the exchange rate of Renminbi dropped
from 6.4683 to the then lowest level of 6.6480 as of the
end of the first half of the year (i.e. 30 June), representing
a depreciation of approximately 2.78% of Renminbi in
six months. In the second half of the year, such situation
became even more severe. During this half of the year, the
highest pri ' was 6.6254 on 16 August, whereas the
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE 25 wm AT

o per barrel on
e US$5%"‘

lowest level was 6.9615 on 16 December. At the end of the
year (30 December), the closing price was 6.9450 (almost
was the lowest price throughout the year), representing
a depreciation of Renminbi of approximately 7.37% in
total in the entire year. During such period, those in the
market gradually lost their confidence in Renminbi, which
triggered the crisis of capital outflow and massive drain-
out of the national foreign exchange reserves. For these
reasons, the government adopted a stricter approach for
foreign exchange control in the second half of the year
(especially in the fourth quarter). In the event that foreign
trading companies need to purchase the US dollars to pay
for the overseas borrowings, they are required to notify
the bank with one-month notice in advance. If they do not
allow the bank to reserve for swap lines, the bank would
reject handling any request even when such purchases of
foreign exchange are practical and compliant. Under these
strict regulations, the delay of overseas payment frequently
occurred, which aggravated the difficulties the importers
faced when conducting procurement in the global market.
Meanwhile, such also raised the actual procurement costs
for the importers.

Due to the fact that the Federal Reserve plans to hike
rates three times in 2017, those in the market expects that
the US dollars will continue its strong momentum, so the
future of Renminbi does not look optimistic. In general, it
is expected that the exchange rate will soon drop to 7.15,
whereas a further decline to 7.50 will also be possible.
Overall, the ongoing depreciation of Renminbi in 2017
appears to be very likely to happen. Also, the importing
businesses in the Chinese market are expected to lead an
even more difficult year.

The trend of oil prices in the first half of the year in 2016
saw notably fluctuations, from US$37.28 per barrel at the
beginning of the year dropping to US$27.88 per barrel
within 20 days. Later, such price picked up gradually,
reaching US$49.68 per barrel in the middle of the year
(i.e. 30 June). Overall, the oil prices showed an upward
trend in most of the time during the first half of the year,
those in the market, therefore, then expected that such
trend in the second half of the year would remain stable
and mark a gradual improvement, and the final result was
in line with those as expected in the market. In the second
half of the year, the lowest price level was US$42.14
1R fggijst whereas the highest
el, wh closing.|
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December at the end of the year. The increment in the
second half of the year was only 14.37%, which was far
less than the 33.26% of the first half of the year. However,
the rebound of oil prices over the year reached 52.41%.
In the first half of the year, other than the drastic drop in
oil prices in February had stimulated the purchasing desire
of some importers, transactions at other times remained
extremely quiet. At the second half of the year, oil prices
showed a steady upward trend and importing activities
became active indeed. Nonetheless, due to the fact that
Renminbi was undergoing depreciation at the same time, in
the situation where one advances whilst the other one falls
behind, importers in China indeed were not able to enjoy
any benefits led by the price rebound.

Those in the market expected that the international crude
price will have a moderate but rapid fluctuation between
US$50 to US$65 in 2017. The market believes that the
supply and demand for petroleum during the year will
regain its balance so that oil prices can gradually climb
with a stable pace. However, there are increasing factors
which influence oil prices, the trend of oil prices is indeed
hard to foresee. Although it is believed that the market lives
with its expectation of oil prices rebound, such rebound will
encounter substantial resistance when the agreement on
oil output cut between the OPEC and non-OPEC countries
fails to implement effectively, the Federal Reserve frequently
hikes rates, the US dollars experience huge appreciation,
and even China sees the economic downturn.

Overall performance of the Group
2.1 Overview

The business environment of 2016 became even
worse than that of 2015. During the year, the
depreciation of Renminbi was also higher than that
of last year. As for the importers, the decrease
in profitability became inevitable. Under such
circumstance, the Group could only adopt short-
term approach, which was to boost the sales volumes
to compensate the decrease in gross profits so as
to retain the actual total gains of the Group. During
the year, the liquefied petroleum gas (“‘LPG”) and oil
products were still the energy products the Group
focused on. However, due to the relatively poor
vironme[lt, such businesses failed to
g results as’ befo
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The sales volume of LPG was generally comparable
with that of last year, in which both the sales of
bottled LPG and re-exported gas had increased. As
for the auto-gas refueling business in Guangzhou,
due to the fact that some buses had switched to
the use of NG as the fuel and taxis were prone to
underemployment under the influence of informal
passenger service, the demand for auto-gas refueling
decreased significantly, whereas the sales of other
categories did not show any huge differences as
compared with those of last year. The Group’s LPG
business owns a history of more than 15 years,
in which a comprehensive supply chain in the
Southern China Region has been established long
ago. Such advantage has always been protecting
the Group’s LPG business from the impact of the
surrounding environment. For this reason, despite
of the unsatisfying operational environment, the
profitability of the LPG business had never been
severely undermined. The Group expected that the
future operational environment for LPG business is
still full of uncertainties. Especially for the auto-gas
business which is continuously shrinking over the
years, given that if its business dropped further in the
coming years, the overall profitability of LPG would be
affected.

During the year, the sales volume of oil products
increased considerably, whereas the Group continued
to promote the development of oil products business
in both China and Hong Kong in 2016. In the Hong
Kong market, other than remaining the bunkering
service of ships, the Group also progressively
increased the supply of vessel oil to other bunkering
operators. Besides, it also strengthened the trading of
oil products/ chemical products, which had become
another source of income for the Group, and at the
same time raised the recognition of the Group on the
global market and so as its procurement capability.
In 2016, the Group devoted relatively more resources
into the Chinese market. The addition of several
second handed bunkering ships helped meeting the
increasing demand in marine bunkering services.
In addition, a large batch of oil products/ chemical
products from overseas were purchased, so as to
conduct the marlne and land Wholesallng businesses
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Delta Region. During such period, we had successfully
expanded the oil products business from Guangdong
to Fujian to realize the significant growth in the oil
products business.

Other than LPG and oil products, natural gas (“NG”),
another core business to be operated by the Group
in the future, remained in the stage of building up the
sale network. Since the dissolution of co-operation
with Sinopec in the Guangdong Province and the
discontinuation of partnership regarding liquefied
natural gas (“LNG”) auto-gas refueling stations, we
had prepared to seek for appropriate location and
partners to propel the construction and development
of LNG auto-gas refueling stations. However, in the
last one or two years, the drop in oil prices indeed
had significantly lowered the attractiveness of NG as
an alternate fuel. Switching to the use of NG could
not see any significant cut in costs, resulting that
NG had lost its former competiveness. In addition,
after the incident of serious explosion in Tianjin in
2015, all the approval processes of the governmental
authorities had become abnormally complicated and
cautious, leading to the stagnation of the NG business
development. However, as the NG business is the
direction of the Group’s development in the long run,
we will not abandon such business due to the current
difficulties, not to mention that suspending such
development will not bring any actual and negative
impact on the Group’s overall performance.

The Group and the Shanghai Conch International
Investment and Development Co., Ltd. jointly
established the Guangdong Shenhai New Energy
Company Limited (“Shenhai”) in Henggin. In the
past year, such company continued to develop the
land and marine refueling stations project around
the Conch’s cement production base located in the
Guangdong Province (the place where logistics are
centralized). Despite of the unavoidable obstacles
related to policies in the application process, the
development progress was satisfying. Besides,
the Group had engaged into other investments in
2016, one of which was the production and sales of
anthracite and active charcoal. Such project created
better profltablllty, and required shorter timeframe for
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2.2

Overall, the Group’s profitability in 2016 was
weakened due to the vigorous competitions in
the market. The depreciation of Renminbi still led
to certain losses to us, resulting that the overall
profitability performance was slightly worse than that
of 2015. As revealed by the situation of this year,
the energy market in Guangdong was becoming
saturated. Substantial profits were not expected even
when there was still room for development. We will
certainly continue to regard the energy market in the
Southern China Region as our bases, however, we
have also made our decision to invest more resources
to seek for any potential opportunities in the overseas
markets, in order to achieve the two goals of
expanding businesses and profitability at the same
time.

Overall performance

In 2016, the NG business had not yet brought any
actual revenue or profits to the Group, whereas
the other businesses (including LPG, oil products
and electronic products) recorded a total revenue
of approximately HK$15,700,406,000 (among
which, the revenue of energy products was
approximately HK$15,498,676,000, representing
approximately 98.72% of the total revenue),
representing a slight increase of approximately
1.20% as compared with the total revenue of
approximately HK$15,514,990,000 (among which,
the revenue of energy products was approximately
HK$14,819,855,000, representing approximately
95.52% of the total revenue) for the same period in
2015. The total revenue showed only a slight increase,
which was mainly due to: (1) the significant decrease
of approximately HK$457,674,000 in the revenue of
the electronics business; (2) the average prices of
LPG in the year were roughly 20% lower than those
of the same period in 2015, and the prices of oil
products were 15% to 17% lower than those of the
same period of year. Therefore, the total revenue did
not increase correspondingly along with the significant
increase in the sales volumes.

2.2
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During the year, the net profit attributable to
the owners of the Company of approximately
HK$749,397,000 was recorded; comparing to the
net profit of approximately HK$756,643,000 for the
same period in 2015, such number was almost the
same as that of 2015, representing a decrease of
only approximately 0.96%. During the year, the total
sales volume of LPG could be retained, however,
the performance of the most profitable auto-gas
refueling business was worsen significantly, resulting
that the gross profits of the sales of LPG decreased
around 10%. The competition in the oil products
market was very severe, in which the Group had
adopted the approach of lowering the selling prices to
stimulate the sales volumes. Such approach aimed at
retaining the profitability of the oil products business,
meanwhile to compensate for the losses in the gross
profits of the LPG business. It should be an effective
rectifying measures, however, the depreciation of
Renminbi during 2016 was much higher than that
of 2015. Despite the fact that we had minimize the
balances of the structured matching of pledged
deposits in Renminbi and corresponding loans in the
US dollars, the Group’s intra-group current accounts
and other current financial assets denominated in
Renminbi still generated a huge exchange loss. These
were the main reasons why the Group, at last, could
just barely retain the gains of last year.

During the year, the LPG business, oil product
business and electronics business, the core
businesses operated by the Group, generated a total
gross profits of approximately HK$1,756,877,000,
representing a decrease of approximately 4.51% as
compared with the total gross profits of approximately
HK$1,839,904,000 in 2015. The Group’s overall
gross margin decreased from around 11.86% of
last year to around 11.19%. The reasons for such
decrease in total gross profits have been explained
as abovementioned, which would not further explain
herein.
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In 2016, the Company did not conduct any fund
raising in the capital market in the forms of share
places or rights issue, nor did it conduct any share
repurchasing activities. As of 31 December 2016, the
weighted average number of the Company’s issued
ordinary shares was 1,480,398,216, which was the
same as the number of shares for the 12 months
ended 31 December 2015. The basic earnings per
share of the year were approximately HK$0.51, which
was the same as compared to the basic earnings per
share of approximately HK$0.51 for the same period
of last year.

The net cash inflow from operating activities of the
year was approximately HK$903,761,000. In regards
to the net cash outflow from operating activities of
approximately HK$323,075,000 in the first half of
the year, the Group had adopted different measures
including the collection of trade receivables in large
amounts and obtaining the reasonable credit terms
from suppliers. In the second half of the year, the
return of the Group’s capital was highly improved,
resulting that the net cash flow from operating
activities of the Group could become positive.
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& IR EARNDEERES -
#H E2016F12H31H + A A
e BT RROMNER R
1,480,398,216 % + £ & £2015
F12A31 B EA121E A B K5
HE K  2FERETERFNOE
0518 BAFRBGREALR
B A %051 TAE L8 - A 1
W

EPENEEFRERAZEARNAE
903,761,000/ 7T » ¥ EH¥F K
1 #47323,075,000 78 TTH) 1B F IR
EntE  SERERDT SEESD
it BIERWKEERE 5 EX
MESHEmEHAEER - £ T
FERRMETEENESOES
o FREEMNEEFReREHE
BIEER

2.3 Segment performance 2.3 DIEXE
In 2016, the Group had approximately 5,190,100 tons EER 2016 F RN EHERREE
of sales of energy products, representing a significant & #75,190,100 18 - b ¥ 20154
increase of approximately 1,304,100 tons or an 5] 2 H9 5 & = 49 3,886,000 © K
increment of approximately 33.56% as compared with P23E 00T 491,304,100 MF -+ 1218 %Y
the sales volume of approximately 3,886,000 tons for %33.56% ° FEEHK 2 F - Lk
the same period in 2015. Among all these businesses, mAEEERABRER  KLBTS5
the sales volume of oil products increased with the FHEE - BERHnEEEC BN
highest rate; after its 5-year-development, the current TLPG (& EEREEMEBER
sales volume of oil products had exceeded that of NKHIHE £
LPG, which was attributed to more than 60% of the
sales volume of the Group’s energy products:
Total sales
Sales volume of LPG (tons) Sales volume of oil products (tons) volume (tons)
LPG 4= () HRPEE (W) HMEE ()
2016 1,913,100 36.86% 3,277,000 63.14% 5,190,100
2015 1,893,000 48.711% 1,993,000 51.29% 3,886,000
‘iﬂ*‘“ﬂ‘“ﬂu}ll K o | \\ f ‘ dt}
i i~ ] = LA
. ‘ ' e 1 |- S I

()
1

f
]
9y
K.




Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE 25 wm AT

In 2016, the Group’s LPG business, oil
product business and electronics business
achieved an operating revenue of approximately
HK$15,700,406,000 in total, representing a slight
increase as compared with the operating revenue
of approximately HK$15,479,259,000 for the same
period in 2015. The proportions of these three
business in the total revenue of the Group were as
follow:

LPG (HK$’000)

LPG(F#7)
2016 6,809,662 43.37% 8,689,014
2015 8,488,519 54.71% 6,331,336

During the year, these three businesses
achieved a total gross profits of approximately
HK$1,756,877,000, their respective contribution to
the total gross profits of the Group was as follows:

LPG (HK$’000)

LPG(F#TT)
2016 1,317,194 74.97% 429,537
2015 1,476,007 80.23% 316,950

LPG business

Due to the comprehensive supply chain of the Group,
the operations of the LPG business had always been
less likely to be affected by the neighboring factors.
Despite the fact that the operational environment was
indeed not encouraging in 2016, the sales volume of
LPG was still able to remain. The sales volume of the
year was approximately 1,913,100 tons; comparing to
the approximately 1,893,000 tons for the same period
of last year, such was almost the same as that of last
year (with only an approximately 1.06% increment).
During the year, the average market prices of LPG
were approximately 20% lower than those of last
year, therefore, a revenue of only approximately
HK$6,809,662,000 was recorded, representing a
decrease of around 19.78% as compared with the
revenue of approximately HK$8,488,519,000 for the
same period of last year. The decrease in revenue
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Throughout the year, the LPG business achieved a
gross profit of approximately HK$1,317,194,000,
representing a decrease of approximately
HK$158,903,000 or a decline of approximately
10.77% as compared with the gross profits of
approximately HK$1,476,097,000 for the same period
in 2015. During the year, the sales volume of auto-gas
refueling business which had the highest profitability
decreased by 20.05%. Other sales volumes with
lower profitability (e.g. overseas customers) increased,
however, they were far from generating sufficient
additional gross profits to compensate the losses
in the profits of auto-gas refueling business. Given
that the average prices of the period were lower than
those of last year, the gross margin, on the contrary,
climbed to 19.34% (2015: 17.39%) even with the
decline of approximately 10.77% in the gross profits.

Because of the ongoing expansion of the oil products
business and the limited increment in the LPG
business, the contribution of the LPG business to the
total revenue of the Group in 2016 continued to drop
to only approximately 43.37% (same period in 2015:
54.71%; same period in 2014: 64.51%).

Before the end of 2015, the co-operation with
Sinopec in the Guangdong Province relating to the
LPG auto-gas refueling station business had been
agreed to terminate. The joint venture established by
two parties had been officially resolved in September
2016. The investment in the joint venture and the
profits generated from the joint venture had already
been recovered. As of today, the Group’s LPG
business basically had become wholly-owned again.

Oil products business

During the year, the Group put its efforts in
propelling the oil products business to grow rapidly.
The annual sales volume reached approximately
3,277,000 tons, representing a drastic increase of
approximately 64.43% as compared with the sales
volume of approximately 1,993,000 tons for the same
period in 2015. The average prices of oil products
throughout the year were approximately 15% to 17%
lower than thgs_g of 2015, therefore, such revenue
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volume. During the year, the revenue only reached
approximately HK$8,689,014,000, representing an
increase of approximately 37.24% as compared with
approximately HK$6,331,336,000 for the same period
in 2015.

The oil products business achieved the gross
profits of approximately HK$429,537,000 over the
year, representing an increase of approximately
HK$112,587,000 or an increment of approximately
35.52% as compared with the gross profits of
approximately HK$316,950,000 for the same period
in 2015. The growth in the gross profits was not
proportionate to the increment in the sales volume
(64.43%), with the profitability of the oil products
business had a significant decrease over the year.
The dramatic growth in the sales volume of oil
products were, in fact, motivated by the trading and
wholesaling of oil products/chemical products; the
volume of each procurement for this business was
approximately 40,000 tons, whereas the sales volume
per transaction was on the average of between
approximately 5,000 tons to 10,000 tons. Due to the
large volume, gross profits were comparatively less,
such was one of the grounds for the fall in overall
profitability of the oil products business. Therefore
compared to the gross profit of approximately 5.01%
in 2015, the gross profit in 2016 dropped slightly to
approximately 4.94%.

Due to the ongoing expansion of the oil products
business, its proportion in the total revenue of the
Group continued to pick up. In 2016, it reached
55.34% (same period in 2015: 40.81%; same period
in 2014: 26.56%).

Although the depot of 70,000 tons located in Zhuhai
had been in use since 2015, parts of the facilities
and functions (e.g. the newly-built berths of 5,000
tons and bonded warehouses) were indeed still at the
stage of application to the government. At present,
such depot could only be used for oil mixing and
as the storage warehouse for diesel and chemical
products. In short, it could only handle the domestic
sales and purchases of oil products and chemical
products (i.e. domestic business). At the beginning
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2.4

which allows us to initiate the importing business
of oil products during 2017, and then to lodge the
application relating to the bonded warehouse. We
believe, such depot will only be able to showcase
all of its efficiency of being a transit warehouse after
obtaining the approval of the application of the berths
and bonded warehouses.

Electronics business

During the year, the Group had cut the sales
volume of electronic products substantially. In
2016, it only retained a few businesses of selling
smartphones to Thailand and electronics parts
(mainly the integrated circuits related to smartphones)
business. Such revenue was only amounted to
approximately HK$201,730,000, representing a
drop of approximately 69.41% as compared with
the revenue of approximately HK$659,404,000
for the same period of last year. The gross profits
were approximately HK$10,146,000, representing a
decrease of approximately 64.40% as compared with
the gross profits of approximately HK$28,503,000 for
the same period in 2015. However, the gross margins
rebounded from approximately 4.32% of 2015 to
approximately 5.03%.

Net exchange loss

In the first half of the year in 2016, due to the
depreciation of around 2.78% of Renminbi, a
net exchange loss amounting to approximately
HK$62,416,000 was recorded in our interim report.
In the second half of the year, the depreciation of
Renminbi continued and even higher than that of the
first half of the year. Throughout the year, Renminbi
had depreciated for approximately 7.37% in total,
so that the impact of the Renminbi depreciation was
more severe than the earlier expectation. Throughout
the year, the Group recorded a net exchange loss
of approximately HK$154,098,000 in total, among
which:

(1) In relation to the trading businesses of imported
LPG and oil products, a net exchange loss
of appr

imately HK$59,850,000 in total
edyidn mosteef the 2 litu io we
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the abnormally vigorous competition within the
industry in 2016, our counterparts chose to take
up such losses but not to adjust prices so as
to avoid losing our market shares. Therefore,
the prices adjustment in 2016 was indeed not
an effective approach to eliminate the exchange
risks for the trading businesses. However, it is
believed that the adjustment in prices will still
be the only preferable and effective measure for
hedging when the market situation improves or
competitions ease;

A net exchange loss of approximately
HK$81,621,000 was recorded for the Group’s
intercompany current accounts and some
current assets that denoted in Renminbi.
Fortunately, such category of losses was mainly
the unrealized net exchange loss which would
not pose any actual impact on the Group’s
cash flow. Under the current situation, it is
difficult to find any solutions to efficiently hedge
against such category of losses. We can only
prevent such Renminbi assets from growing
continually, or use parts of the assets to hedge
against related liabilities under the compliance
of accounting policies. Such would reduce
the balances of such current accounts and
current assets, which in turn decrease the
losses resulted from the further depreciation of
Renminbi;

Only a net exchange loss of approximately
HK$12,627,000 was recorded in 2016 for the
structured matching of pledged deposits in
Renminbi and corresponding loans in the US
dollars. The balances in this aspect decreased
significantly, from approximately HK$3.9 billion
at the end of 2014 to approximately HK$1.4
billion at the end of 2015, and further dropped
to approximately HK$0.1 billion at the end of
2016. Due to the fact that the direct approach of
mitigating the balances was adopted, although
Renminbi had a dramatic depreciation of over
7% in 2016, a related net exchange loss of only
approximately HK$12,627,000 was recorded.
Comparlng with the net exchange loss of
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2.5 Operating income and cost control

Finance costs

In 2016, the finance costs of the Group were
approximately HK$180,087,000, representing
a seemingly decrease of around 7.63% as
compared with the finance costs of approximately
HK$194,953,000 for the same period of last
year. Indeed, the expenses on the finance costs
related to business operations were approximately
HK$163,641,000 in total, representing an increase of
approximately 14.29% as compared with the costs of
approximately HK$143,178,000 for the same period
in 2015.

The rise in such expense was due to four reasons:
(1) the improvement in sales volumes, so that we
had to borrow more short-term loans from banks in
order to retain sufficient liquidity to keep the business
operations smooth. The more borrowings we have,
the higher the expenses on interest rates generated;
(2) the Group’s key strategy for financing in 2016
was to avoid exchange losses due to the mismatch
of currency, therefore, we had put more efforts in
financing Renminbi assets by Renminbi borrowings
(including receivables) during the year. In addition,
the interest rates of Renminbi borrowings were higher
than those of the US dollar borrowings in the foreign
countries, so that the expenses on the interest rates
in this regards would increase; (3) during the year,
although the US dollars only experienced a one-
time hike in rates (0.25%) at the end of the year,
commercial banks indeed had raised their interest
rates offered to clients, which clearly reflected the
market expectation about the rates hike; (4) in
the second half of the year, the Group collected
syndication loans for refinancing, resulting in an
additional and significant amount of expenses on
bank charges.

Since the market in general believes that there will
be an ongoing upward trend of the energy products
prices, adding that the United States had announced
that it will hike rates for three times in 2017, it is
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2.6

Selling and distribution expenses and
administration expenses

During the year, the total amount of the selling and
distribution expenses and administration expenses
was approximately HK$691,578,000 (including the
selling and distribution expenses: approximately
HK$383,641,000; and the administration expenses:
approximately HK$307,937,000), representing an
aggregated increase of approximately 9.02% as
compared with the total amount of approximately
HK$634,381,000 (including the selling and distribution
expenses: approximately HK$352,071,000; and
the administration expenses: approximately
HK$282,310,000) in 2015. It is worth noticing that
the annual operating costs of the Lianxin Energy had
been consolidated into the Group’s account, adding
that the overall revenue and the sales volume of the
Group had shown a significant increase, therefore the
selling expenses increased correspondingly. As to
the administration expenses, it had also achieved an
increment of approximately 9.08% due to the addition
of the administration expenses of the Lianxin Energy.

It is expected that the revenue in 2017 will further
increase, thus the selling expenses would grow.
Meanwhile, it is estimated that the administration
expenses would also climb in the coming year.

Conclusion

The performance of the Group in 2016 was neither
good nor bad. In the end, a net profit of approximately
HK$750,160,000 was achieved, which was roughly
the same as the net profit for the same period in 2015
(only decreased approximately 1.16%). However, we
have all witnessed that the Group had tried its efforts
to strive for a better performance than last year under
the harsh operational environment. It was just out of
one’s expectation that the depreciation of Renminbi
would be so huge that a net exchange loss of over
HK$150 million was still recorded. All these were
beyond one’s expectation. Overall, the Group had a
very sounding business foundation, so that related
adjustment could always be conducted regardless
ces of any disoouragirlg factors in the
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market. Also, we could always find the way hedge
against the related risks in order to retain the Group’s
profits. Once again, positive free operating cash
flow was recorded during the year. Today, we must
acknowledge the limitations lied within markets which
are as huge as China, and their possibility of being
saturated. For these reasons, other than enhancing
our operational efficiency, we also have to explore
new markets and seek out business opportunities
overseas so as to raise our business volume and
profitability at the same time.

3. Major changes in the financial position

3.1

3.2

Current ratio

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had the total
current assets of approximately HK$8,530,214,000,
representing an increase of approximately 8.43% as
compared with the current assets of approximately
HK$7,867,265,000 at 31 December 2015. The total
short-term liabilities were amounted to approximately
HK$4,266,103,000, representing an increase of
approximately 10.33% as compared with the short-
term liabilities of approximately HK$3,866,582,000 for
the same period in 2015. The current ratio marked a
very minor downward movement from approximately
203.47% in 2015 to approximately 199.95% in 2016.
However, the current ratio of the Group remained on
a very healthy level.

Fixed assets and investment

During the year, in order to meet with the increasing
throughput of oil products and LPG by enhancing
and improving the facilities at terminals, the Group
had invested approximately HK$160 million into
the addition of pipelines and renovation, as well as
scaled river dredging construction at the jetties.
Other than these, with the aim to strengthen the
existing oil products businesses in Hong Kong and
the Guangdong Province, the Group further added
29 oil vessels for the distribution of oil products to
different regions during the year. The Group also
actively developed the oil products businesses in
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Since the end of 2015, the Group’s headquarter
located in Zhuhai had been under construction, in
which during 2016 the Group invested approximately
HK$120 million which was reflected in the
construction in progress under the fixed assets. The
Group expected that the headquarter located in
Zhuhai will be completed in around the second half
year of 2018.

After the application to the government for several
years, the Group had eventually bid a land parcel with
an area of approximately 15,000 square meters in
Zhuhai at the end of 2016. The Group will construct
a large LPG bottling plant for coverage of Zhuhai,
Macau and the surrounding regions.

Regarding the investments, all of the Group’s available
for sale investment of a listed company in Korea had
been sold in 2016. A cash inflow of approximately
HK$72,856,000 and an income for the sales of
the available for sale investments of approximately
HK$12,874,000 were recorded. In December 2016,
the Group purchased a charcoal project which owned
unique technical know-how for charcoal production
and is now under application to register this technical
know-how. Such project was mainly to apply its
unique technology to manufacture anthracite and
active charcoal.

3.3 Gearing ratios
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31 December 2016 31 December 2015

HE 2016 HE2015F

Unit: HK$’000 12A31H 12318

Total bank loans RITETRAE 4,292,541 4,948,568
Bank balances and cash and pledged ~ #R1T45 % kIR 4 kB K HF
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Around half of the Group’s liabilities were short-term
and rolling short-term current borrowings which were
also backed up by the relevant receivables. During the
year, the gearing ratios had a significant drop without
any mismatches between short-term borrowings and
long-term usage, such had well proved the ongoing
improvement in the Group’s liabilities.

4. Business conditions

4.1

LPG business
Procurement

During the year, the Group had a total procurement
of LPG of approximately 1,913,100 tons; such was
roughly the same as that of 2015, representing a
slight increase (an increment of approximately 1.06%)
as compared with the procurement of approximately
1,893,000 tons for the same period in 2015. The
total procurement of LPG from the overseas markets
was approximately 1,108,700 tons, representing
an increase of approximately 61,300 tons or an
increment of approximately 5.88% as compared with
the approximately 1,042,400 tons for the same period
in 2015. The total procurement of LPG from domestic
refineries or NG processing plants was amounted
to approximately 809,400 tons, representing a
decrease of approximately 41,200 tons or a decline
of approximately 4.84% as compared with the
approximately 850,600 tons for the same period in
2015.

LPG procured from overseas (“imported LPG”)

Imported LPG approximately contributed 57.69% to
the total procurement: (1) almost all of the imported
LPG procurement were settled via the letter of
credit issued by international banks (among which,
including The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited, the Standard Chartered
Bank, the Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation,
the Rabobank etc.); (2) there were 5 suppliers in
total, among which the largest supplier supplied

approximately 785,100 tons (contributing 71.13%
to the total volume) (8) the places of origin of the
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small proportion of them from Australia and Nigeria.
Among the approximately 1,103,700 tons of the
Group’s imported LPG procurement, approximately
232,700 tons were delivered in the overseas. The
remaining of approximately 871,000 tons was
first shipped to several bonded warehouses in the
Guangdong Province, among which imported LPG
of approximately 630,900 tons became domestic
trading goods and were sold in the domestic markets
after the tax payment. The remaining approximately
240,100 tons were directly re-exported from the
bonded warehouses to the overseas markets. In the
first half of the year, the imported LPG procurement
was approximately 557,300 tons whereas there were
approximately 546,400 tons in the second half of the
year. Despite the fact that the global market prices
of LPG in the second half of the year experienced
a rebound, it did not pose any impact on our
procurement.

LPG procured from domestic markets (“domestic
LPG”)

In 2016, the Group’s total domestic LPG procurement
from domestic refineries and NG processing plants
was amounted to approximately 809,400 tons, which
contributed 42.31% to the total procurement. During
such period, the trend of the prices of domestic
LPG was roughly aligned with those of the imported
LPG, in which they almost co-varied with each other.
Between the two LPGs, there was not much room for
hedging, therefore, we conducted purchases mainly
according to the customers’ needs. Our procurement
was mainly distributed to some industrial customers,
other bottling plants and bottled LPG customers. In
the first half of the year, the procurement of domestic
LPG was approximately 522,700 tons. Due to the
rebound in prices in the second half of the year, such
quantity experienced a significant decline to only
approximately 286,700 tons.
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Sales

In 2016, the total LPG sales was approximately
1,913,100 tons, representing a minor increase of
approximately 20,100 tons or an increment of only
1.06% as compared with the approximately 1,893,000
tons for the same period in 2015.

Sales volume in 2016 (tons)
2016 SFEHEE = (Nf)

First
half of
the year

HEEH LeF

Sales category

Second
half of
the year

TeE

#HE

2016 LPG# 5 & 2 B &
1,913,100 - Lt ¥ 20154 [A &
#) #91,893,000M8 + 4 7 1 0 49
20,100 Mg - 1EIR{E 1.06% °

Sales
volume
in 2015

(tons)
20155

HEE (W)

Increase/
(Decrease)
(tons)

|/

(i) (W)

Full year
2F

Overseas customers BINE 229,600 243,200 472,800 351,000 121,800
Deliveries conducted I

overseas 93,900 138,800 232,700 222,700 10,000
Re-export #4140 135,700 104,400 240,100 128,300 111,800
Industrial customers TERF 420,000 327,000 747,000 797,000 (50,000)
Other terminals and H55E &

bottling plants F R 183,400 43,100 226,500 254,000  (27,500)
Botted LPG MELPG 158,000 139,300 297,300 279,000 18,300
Auto-gas refueling RE IS 89,000 80,500 169,500 212,000 (42,500)
Total CE 1,080,000 833,100 1,913,100 1,393,000 20,100

Overseas customers — In 2016, the sales to overseas
customers increased approximately 121,800 tons,
such increment was approximately 34.70%, among
which the volume of deliveries conducted overseas
in the second half of the year increased one
shipment, amounting approximately 44,900 tons as
compared with that of first half year. The total volume
of deliveries conducted overseas over the year
(approximately 232,700 tons) increased approximately
10,000 tons (an increment of approximately 4.49%)
as compared with that of last year. The volume of re-
export through the Zhuhai Terminal (approximately
240,100 tons) increased approximately 111,800 tons
(an increment of approximately 87.14%) as compared
with that of last year. Due to the rebound in prices in
the second half of the year, the volume of re-export
was around 31,300 tons less than that of the first half
of the year.
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Industrial customers — due to the prices of LPG
remained low during 2016, industrial customers
(especially the manufacturers of non-diesel chemical
products) in general remained their demand for LPG.
In the first half of the year, the sales to industrial
customers had a better performance, which had been
decreased due to the LPG prices rebound in the
second half of the year. The annual sales volume was
approximately 747,000 tons, representing a decrease
of around 50,000 tons or a decline of approximately
6.27% as compared with the approximately 797,000
tons for the same period in 2015.

Other terminals and bottling plants — the annual
sales volume was approximately 226,500 tons
(all of which were domestic LPG), representing a
decrease of approximately 27,500 tons or a decline
of approximately 10.83% as compared with the
approximately 254,000 tons for the same period in
2015. In the first half of the year, the sales volume
increased drastically because of the low prices,
however, after the prices picked up in the second half
of the year, such activity which required high demand
and price elasticity had been decreased immediately.
Therefore, a drop of approximately 10.83% in the
sales volume over the year was recorded.

Bottled LPG - the annual sales volume was
approximately 297,300 tons, all of which were
domestic LPG. During the year, the sales volume
increased by approximately 18,300 tons (an increment
of 6.56%) as compared with the approximately
279,000 tons for the same period of last year. In
the mid-year, we had been conservative towards
the sales in the second half of the year (the sales
volume in the second half of the year was expected
to be less than 150,000 tons). At the end, it could
only reach approximately 139,300 tons in the second
half of the year, indicating that the rebound in prices
would also pose a certain level of impact to the sales
to end-users. The bottled LPG business in Hong
Kong, on the other hand, could remain to develop in
a steady pace. At present, there are 22 distributors
in total which are registered with the Electrical and
Mechanical Services Department. Comparing with
2015, the total sales volume increased approximately
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4.2

to commercial customers also improved from
approximately 40:60 in 2015 to approximately 55:45.
Such had indicated that the distributors under the
Group had gradually gained the household customer
market with high level of loyalty and profits.

Auto-gas refueling — The auto-gas refueling market
in Guangzhou has been under the influence of
two unfavorable factors since 2015: (1) under the
enforcement of government policies, some buses
using LPG before switched to the use of LNG as the
fuel, resulting in the drop in the demand for auto-
LPG. At present, as the prices of LPG and LNG do
not lie with huge differences, the government does
not have any solid reasons to speed up the process
of switching to LNG, therefore the situation will
not be overly severe in the near future. However, it
has become very difficult for us to regain the drop
in the demand for LPG; (2) taxis were prone to
underemployment under the influence of informal
passenger service, which indirectly led to the
decrease in LPG demand for taxis. These two issues
had caused the Group’s auto-gas refueling business
volume dropping down to approximately 169,500
tons in 2016, representing a decrease of around
42,500 tons or a decline of approximately 20.05%
as compared with the approximately 212,000 tons in
2015.

Oil products business

In 2016, the Group achieved the total oil products
sales of approximately 3,277,000 tons in Hong Kong
and the Southern China Region in China, representing
a significant increase of approximately 1,284,000
tons or an increment of approximately 64.43% as
compared with the sales volume of approximately
1,998,000 tons for the same period in 2015.

4.2
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Oil products business handled in Hong Kong

Procurement of fuel oil

EEEBBER R X

HEE PR

Procurement volume in 2016 (tons) Procurement Increase/

2016 FIRMRE (1) volume in (Decrease)

First half ~ Second half 2015 (tons) (tons)

of the year  of the year Full year 20155 i/

Products procured L4 T4E 2E BHE(H) (i) ()

Vessel fuel oil (commonly known 8Bk #H

as “black ail’) (AR 2]) 274,400 399,400 673,800 693,300 (19,500)
Vessel diesel (commonly known — # B (ATEI 4T3 )

as “red oil") 81,000 93,500 174,500 216,000 (41,500)
Other oil products and chemical ~ HftiiER kIt TEER

products 301,100 365,800 666,900 95,700 571,200

Total ag 656,500 858,700 1,515,200 1,005,000 510,200

In 2016, the Group completed a procurement of
approximately 1,515,200 tons of oil products in Hong
Kong, representing an increase of approximately
510,200 tons or an increment of approximately
50.77% as compared with approximately 1,005,000
tons for the same period in 2015. The form of fuel
oil procurement did not change compared with that
of last year. The main supplier of black oil was two
bonded warehouses at the terminals in Shenzhen and
Nansha, in which part of the black oil was purchased
from the oil companies in Hong Kong, whereas the
red oil could only be procured from a Hong Kong
oil company’s depot which locates on the Tsing
Yi Island. As to other oil products and chemical
products, they were mainly from the Middle-East,
Japan and Malaysia, whereas the suppliers were
mainly from Singapore and some bonded warehouses
located along the coastal shore of the Pearl River
Delta.

Logistics

At present, the Group employs 7 refueling vessels
in total (with a total carrying capacity of around
12,890 tons) to handle the logistics deliveries of the
oil products (including black oil and red oil) business.
Befor' % of Vth_e> year, we successfully leased

)
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the NEWOCEAN 6 (with a carrying capacity of 4,500
tons) to an oil company in Singapore in the forms of
bareboat charter in order to cut the fixed expenses
related to vessels. As for the trading of other oil
products and chemical products, most of which were
purchased in terms of CIF while the suppliers were
responsible for the shipping works. In the fourth
quarter of 2016, we tried to complete a transaction
relating to a batch of chemical products in terms of
FOB price. We rented a chemical transporting vessel
with a carrying capacity of 40,000 tons in the forms
of trip charter in the market for transporting relevant
goods from Singapore to the Southern China Region.
Such had successfully lowered the overall costs for
similar procurement.

Sales

Throughout the year, a sales volume of
approximately 1,515,200 tons of oil products had
been accomplished in Hong Kong, representing
a significant increase of 50.77% as compared
with the sales volume of approximately 1,005,000
tons for the same period in 2015. The significant
increase in the sales volume was mainly triggered
by the trading businesses of other oil products and
chemical products. Such business had just begun
in the second half of the year 2015, marking a rapid
expansion in 2016.

Sales volume in 2016 (tons) Sales
2016 FHAEE ()

First half Second half

of the year
Sale of products 7 33

Black oil: direct bunkeringto B : BEXH

of the year
Tef

657 (4,500 ) LA YL FH 89 T2
AR A — RTINS A A o g
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MN50.77% - 5 SR KIEIEINE
ERAEMAR R TEERNE
SEBIEE - WA EKE2015
FOTEFARMMBFAL - 7£2016
FRERTRRHEER -

Increase/
volume of  (Decrease)
2015 (tons) (tons)

20154 "/
(i ) ()

Full year
25 HEE(W)

656,500

858,700

)

ships 147,400 291,800 439,200 351,900 87,300
Black oil: supply to other 2 REM

operators BEE 127,000 107,600 234,600 341,400 (106,800)
Red oil: direct bunkeringto AL : EEXH

ships 47,600 65,300 112,900 202,400 (89,500
Red oil: supply to other AT« EAM

operators EEE 33,400 28,200 61,600 13,600 48,000
Oil products/chemical i/ C TRER

products 301,100 365,800 666,900 95,700 571,200
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Throughout the year, the total sales volume of black
oil was approximately 673,800 tons, which was
roughly the same as last year but a slight decrease
(a decline of only approximately 19,500 tons) as
compared with the approximately 693,300 tons for the
same period in 2015. Comparing the sales situation
of 2016 with that of 2015, the major difference was
that the volume of goods directly bunkered to ships
had shown a significant increase during the period,
whereas the volume of goods supplied to other
operators had decreased correspondingly due to the
limitations on the logistics tool. The proportion of the
volumes of direct bunkering to ships and supply to
other operators was approximately 65.18: 34.82 (the
proportion in 2015 was approximately 50.76: 49.24).

During the year, the sales volume of red oil was
roughly 174,500 tons, which had recovered to the
sales level of 2014 (approximately 174,700 tons).
Comparing with the approximately 216,000 tons for
the same period in 2015, such number had been
decreased significantly (a decrease of approximately
41,500 tons). We believe, there will not be any drastic
change in the red oil market in the coming few years,
unless we could regain the long-term supply contract
with Cotai Water Jet and the Hong Kong Government.
If not, the annual sales volume may most probably
only retain between 170,000 tons to 200,000 tons.

The trading of oil products/chemical products are
transactions falling to the category of trading. For
such business, the suppliers were mainly located in
Singapore, which also included the domestic bonded
warehouses. Products included chemical products,
vessels fuel and etc. We mainly deployed two
business modes which are re-selling the whole vessel
or delivery from bonded warehouses. During the year,
a total sales volume of approximately 666,900 tons
was achieved, representing a significant increase of
approximately 571,200 tons as compared with the
sales volume of approximately 95,700 tons for the
same period in 2015.
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Oil products business handled in China

Procurement of oil products

In 2016, the procurement volume of oil products
was approximately 1,761,800 tons, representing a
significant increase of 773,800 tons or an increment
of approximately 78.32% as compared with the
approximately 988,000 tons for the same period in
2015. The oil products procured included:

TEB P 8 BB 1 i a3
I an IR FE

EE016FMNHBKRBEBEN A
1,761,800 © Lt ¥f2015F [
HY #7088,000M8 » X 1@ 12 0 49
773,800M8 + F+ 18 49 £78.32% °
KB hmBE

Procurement volume in 2016 (tons) Procurement

2016 FIRMRE (1) volume in
Firsthalf ~ Second half 2015 (tons)  Increase
of the year  of the year Full year 20155 (tons)
Products procured L$E T4E 2E BHRE(H) 18 ()
Vessel fuel oil and diesel R BRI R e 366,000 348,800 714,800 399,000 315,800
Land automobile diesel and fuel [ FE R4 )T 130,000 110,100 240,100 130,500 109,600

Other oil products and chemical ~ HfiiE R kI TEER

products 272,000 534,900 806,900 458,500 348,400
Total By 768,000 993,800 1,761,800 988,000 773,800

The oil products procured by the Group domestically
mainly included vessel fuel oil, vessel diesel,
automotive diesel, fuel and etc.; the suppliers were
local refineries and state-owned oil companies.
Other oil products and chemical products included
kerosene, bitumen mixtures, aromatics, light cycle
oil and etc., which were mainly purchased from the
importers who owned large-scaled warehouses of oil
products in Guangdong and Fujian. Besides, part of
the goods volume was imported from overseas by the
Group’s subsidiaries in China. The custom clearing
works were done through the leased oil depot. The
majority of the oil products and chemical products
procurement adopted the ex-godown prices whereas
a few would adopt the CIF as the basis for pricing.
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Logistics facilities

Working with the marine refueling operators in China,
the Group utilized its marine and land transportation
to conduct the deliveries of vessel fuel and automobile
fuel. During the period, the Group’s subsidiary in
China itself had an addition of a few oil tankers for
assisting to handle the wholesaling of oil products and
logistics deliveries. The depot of 70,000 tons located
in Zhuhai had already been in use. At present, it is
only used for the trading of domestic oil products and
chemical products (i.e. domestic trading business).
At the beginning of 2017, a permit for importing
was obtained, so that the importing business of oil
products can be initiated during the year, at the same
time, prepared for the application relating to bonded
warehouses.

Sales

In 2016, the domestic oil products business achieved
a sales volume of approximately 1,761,800 tons,
representing a significant increase of approximately
773,800 tons or an increment of approximately
78.32% as compared with the sales volume of
approximately 988,000 tons for the same period in
2015. The sales volume was categorized by different
operating modes as follows:

Sales volume in 2016 (tons)
2016 FHHEE ()
First half Second half

of the year
st 32

Products procured

Sales of vessel oil to end- PR i

of the year

TeF

93
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Sales
volume in
2015 (tons)
20154

2F BEE(W)

Increase
(tons)

(%)

Full year

users 366,000 348,800 714,800 399,000 315,800
Wholesales of land P FE AR

automobile fuel 130,000 110,100 240,100 130,500 109,600
Trading and wholesales of i,/ {t THEES

oil products/ chemical EUYEin

products 272,000 534,900 806,900 458,500 348,400
Total g 768,000 993,800 1,761,800 988,000 773,800
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4.3

The sales targets for vessel oil were the riverboats
and long-distanced ships stopped at each port in the
Pearl River Delta. During the period, the increment
of the sales volume was fairly substantial due to the
strengthening of partnership with other operators in
the industry. Due to the limitations in the market, it is
expected that the growth in the sales volume would
be slowed down next year.

The wholesaling targets for automobile fuel was the
refueling stations at the Pearl River West, industrial
customers and transportation companies. Such
market lies with a substantial potential with many
rooms for development.

The sales targets for oil products and chemical
products were mainly the oil products operators
located in Guangdong, Fujian and Guangxi, followed
by the traders in Eastern and Northern China Region.
In 2016, the Group had laid the business bases in
these regards for getting well-prepared for further
development in 2017.

NG business

In 2016, the network construction of the LNG
auto-gas refueling network marked a very slow
progression facing numerous obstacles. Due to
the incident of serious explosion in Tianjin in 2015,
it had caused serious delay for all the approvals
regarding dangerous goods projects. In the past,
the implementation of the NG auto-gas refueling
project would proceed smoothly without any
significant difficulties if the approval from the National
Development and Reform Commission had been
obtained (if there were not too much opposition by
the neighboring residents). However, in the current
situation, the approval by the National Development
and Reform Commission can only be regarded as an
approval for accepting the project establishment; yet,
in the process of implementation, the departments of
the municipalities, technical departments, fire service
departments and etc. all raise high restrictions in all
steps during the construction and inspection process.
As a result, the ordering of re-doing occurs very often,

4.3
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5. Business outlook

5.1

LPG business

Given that the LPG market in the Southern China
has been nearly saturated, the Group will adopt the
following development strategies in order to keep a
certain growth in its sales volumes:

(1

In the Southern China market, the Group will
expand its market shares by competing with
the existing businesses of other operators.
In regards to such strategy, the Group will
explore the bottled LPG retailing businesses in
some second and third tiered cities. It will also
strengthen the cooperation with manufacturers
of non-diesel chemical products, motivate the
sales of LPG as the raw materials of chemical
products and continue to propel the bottled LPG
business in Hong Kong (in particular to focus on
exploring the household customers with higher
loyalty and profits);

We will actively explore overseas markets in
order to strive for the ongoing growth in the
businesses of the LPG wholesales and the sales
to end-users. At present, the markets which
have started their feasible researches include
Indonesia, Vietnam, the Philippines, Burma and
far to Kenya in Africa;

Besides, we will engage into the LPG
businesses in other types by utilizing the
established logistics systems and bank facilities
relationships, for example to join the international
trading of LPG and to provide logistics services
related to the LPG transiting activities (through
the LPG bonded warehouses in the Southern
China market) to some global traders.
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5.2 Oil products business 5.2 HREH

It is expected that oil prices will show a steady
increase in 2017, however, such pace will not be too
fast and will only be a small increment. Due to the
rebound in oil prices, it is possible that the spreads
of the oil products business will experience a minor
improvement. During the year, the marine bunkering
business (including black oil and red oil) in Hong Kong
is not expected to have a substantial growth, in which
the pace of growth will become slower as compared
with that of the last few years. Similarly, the marine
bunkering business in China is not expected to not
grow as rapidly as it had in 2016.

Nonetheless, we will still target at the marine
bunkering, with our aims to remain our leading
position in the markets (Hong Kong and the Pearl
River Delta Region). The focus of 2017 is to seek out
the source of supply which will provide cheaper fuel
oil to further improve the efficiency of the logistics, so
that the procurement costs can reduce 1% to 2 %
and the profitability of the oil products business can
be enhanced.

It is clearly known that the Group has always been
determined to adopt the development strategy, that
is to leverage on the sales to end-uses to expand
its businesses. Therefore, the future development
of the oil products business will focus on building
an extensive retailing network in the Guangdong
Province. On land, we will continue to seek for
suitable locations to construct our own refueling
stations. Also, we will not exclude the possibility of
rapidly building the refueling networks in the forms
of mergers and acquisitions so as to reach our goals
of expanding the sales to end-users within a shorter
timeframe. At sea, we will construct several marine
bunkering stations in the Pearl River, the Beijiang
River and the Xijiang River in the Guangdong Province
and the western shore along the coast in order to
expand the vessel refueling businesses along the river
and the coast in the Southern China Region.
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5.3

During 2017, the Group will continue to largely
increase the trading volumes/ wholesaling volumes
of oil products and chemical products. We will take
the Group’s advantages in its capital to strengthen
the communication with overseas markets, widen
the international trading of oil products and chemical
products, and establish an operation route with low
risk but vyielding stable income for the oil products
business.

NG business

At present, the development of the NG business has
doubtlessly faced numerous obstacles. Firstly, the
drop in oil prices narrowed the differences between
the prices of NG and the traditional oil products,
resulting that NG has lost its known competiveness
on prices. The process of consumers switching to NG
is slow, or even stagger. Secondly, the government’s
requirement relating to the construction of NG auto-
gas refueling stations have been becoming stricter
and stricter, adding to its uncertain attitude, it will
take a very long time before the implementation of a
project.

NG is the business that the Group will focus on
developing for safeguarding our benefits in the
long run. We will continue to seek for appropriate
investment opportunities or partners, meanwhile to
slowly implement each of the NG auto-gas refueling
project.

The project in relations to the plan of constructing
an ultra-low temperature NG receiving terminal in the
neighboring region in Guangzhou has also met with
difficulties in its application process. However, we,
together with our partners, will continue to put our
efforts in negotiating with the local government in
order to implement such project at the most suitable
location. We truly believe, such project will provide
sufficient back-up services for the NG auto-gas
refueling network, and at the same time to supply the
NG power plants in the Guangdong Province with the
NG fuel for generating electricity in the long run.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities at 31
December 2016 and 2015.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 December 2016, apart from the pledged bank deposits of
approximately HK$112,151,000, the Group also pledged its oil
vessels with carrying value of approximately HK$118,819,000 to
secure bank loans granted to the Group.

EMPLOYEES AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

As at 31 December 2016, the Group employed 1,275 (2015:
1,231) full time employees in Hong Kong, Macau and other
regions in the PRC. The Group remunerated the employees
based on their performance, experience and prevailing market
practice. Employee benefits provided by the Group include
a mandatory provident fund scheme and medical insurance
scheme.
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The Company is committed to good corporate governance
principles. Its Board recognises that an effective corporate
governance framework and high governance standard are both
essential to the Company’s long-term development. Set out
below is the corporate governance report prepared by the Board
in accordance with Appendix 14 “Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report” of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

Corporate Governance Practices

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2016 the Company
applied the principles and complied with all code provisions
as set out in the corporate governance code (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 for the Listing Rules, save for a
deviation from the provision governing tenure of non-executive
directors mentioned below.

Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code provides that non-executive
directors shall be appointed for specific term, subject to
reelection. The Company deviated from this provision in that
none of the non-executive directors are appointed for a fixed
term, instead their tenure of office are governed by the provisions
for retirement by rotation and re-election as provided in the
byelaws of the Company (these provisions are described in the
paragraph headed “Non-executive Directors” below). The board
of directors believes that the fixing of the tenure of non-executive
directors by way of provisions contained in the bye-laws, and
the shareholders’ right to re-elect retiring non-executive directors
as contained in the bye-laws, will serve the long term interests
of the Company. In the opinion of the Board, the measures
adopted by the Company are no less exacting than those in the
CG Code.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the directors.
Following specific enquiry by the Company, all directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard as
set out in the Model Code during the year.
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Board of Directors (the “Board”)

The Board currently comprises six executive directors and
three independent non-executive directors. Biographical details
of all directors of the Company are set out in the paragraph
headed “Directors’ Profile” on page 4 to page 6. The current
structure and composition of the Board have provided it with an
appropriate mix of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity
and the Board reviews its structure and composition from time to
time to ensure that appropriate expertise and independence are
maintain.

Membership of the Board during the year ended 31 December
2016 were as follows:

Executive Directors

Shum Siu Hung (Chairman)

Shum Chun, Lawrence (Managing Director)
Cen Ziniu

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond

Siu Ka Fai, Brian

Wang Jian

Independent Non-executive Directors

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict
Dr. Xu Mingshe

All directors have disclosed to the Company the number and
nature of offices they held in public companies or organizations
and other significant commitment, including the identity of the
public companies or organizations and indication of the time
involved. Managing Director Mr. Shum Chun, Lawrence is the
son of Mr. Shum Siu Hung, Chairman of the Company and a
cousin of Mr. Cen Ziniu, executive director of the Company. The
Board establishes the strategic direction for the development of
the Company and sets out the objectives of the management,
with operational decisions and execution delegated to the
management. The Board also approves annual budgets, major
funding proposals and investment proposals, and oversees the
processes for evaluating the adequacy of internal controls, risk
management, financial reporting and compliance. The Board is
responsible for the corporate governance functions of the Group,
including the developm
. porate

EEg((EEe))

ARABERZEFTEHOZNITESTRIEE
MEMITEFEK - MEEFEZHENCEN
FAECRIEEH{N RN - EEGHRAN
REREKEEZEENREAS - F8 -
KkZnll BT THEHNERBLE
X - AR EE BRI RIBINE o

MR2016F12A31HILZFEN  BEFEE

BITEE

B (FERE)
LB (EFLEATE)
27

AR

EEV-

FE2

BIUFRTES

REE
BRIBIE
rELEL

MBEEERARARELZ2ERIRDARL
BENBEMMEREMBELEZEXRS
% BRARARKNEEN S D RATE O
B EXRKEELTER/RARBEFES DL
2T BOUEFEN/EARTANTEES
FHEZEN - EEFRIANR AR
EAAEGEEEBR  ZERTELHTH
ZERERE -BEFSVHEFEES -
ZEERRLKERE RERARFE AN
B RBRERE BERSRETERRED
HENREF BEERAEAKENDEERY
B BERERLKFHASENSEEARE
KRBT °



Corporate Governance Report
rERERWE

With the assistance of the company secretary, Board meetings
are initiated by the Chairman and all directors are consulted on
the agenda. Procedures are established for all directors to have
free access to board papers and related information, to review
the Group’s internal controls, and to have the services of the
company secretary to ensure matters are transacted in the Board
in accordance applicable rules and practices. Directors may seek
independent professional advice upon reasonable request to
discharge their duties. All committees of the Board have specific
terms of reference clearly defining their respective powers and
responsibilities and committee meetings are held as required
under these terms of reference. All committees are required by
their terms of reference to report to the Board in relation to their
decisions or recommendations.

The following table shows the attendance of directors at
meetings of the Board during the year ended 31 December
2016:
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ExeemdIRAs(XhmARNER
B @FRRETREEELR - MEESY
ARBERINEFRHMEFTE XM LA
Bl BREEZAREREREARME
MiE)  EREFERFHETHAAERD
HMAIRKD - EFRE/REMNERTZRE
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BN REE TRREBBEHERTE
AHRZEgeR MEZEEHARRER
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TRERHE2016FE 12431 BIEFERS
BEERNEESHRZ2HELE

Number of Meetings

Name of director Attended
EEla HESERE
Executive Directors: HITERE -

Shum Siu Hung (Chairman) B (FE) 4/4
Shum Chun, Lawrence (Managing Director) BB (EFLMHE) 4/4
Cen Ziniu =74 4/4
Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond i AR 4/4
Siu Ka Fai, Brian BRIB 4/4
Wang Jian EEBX 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUIHHTEE -

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony iR 89796 4/4
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict FRABIE 4/4
Dr. Xu Mingshe wEtIELT 4/4

During the year, all directors received regular briefing and
updates on the Group’s business, operation and corporate
governance matters. They also attended training relevant to the
industry, regulatory updates or directors’ duties to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills as listed company directors.
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Through participating in the Company’s board meetings and
committees meetings, and review of briefings and updates
on the Company’s business and affairs, all directors are able
to make contribution required from them to the Board and to
the development of the Company. The Company has received
confirmation from each director that he has given sufficient time
and attention to the affairs of the Company during the year
under review. The Company has also received from the directors
a record of training received by them during the year which is

EREFEBRL2EARANEFTEEENE
Eggd REHARANEBLEBZHE
WREH - EWELTEEZTERARAHE
REEMEBRNER - AR CHEIEBLE
SR RFEARHARANEHRATE
BELRET ARBINERIEZTRNFRE
HEI L8k WM

summarized as follows:

Type of Training

Name of director Attended

EElE H B

Executive Directors: HITESE -

Shum Siu Hung (Chairman) E D (ERE) A B

Shum Chun, Lawrence (Managing Director) BB (EFLELHE) A B

Cen Ziniu BFH4 A B

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond AR A B

Siu Ka Fai, Brian EES A B

Wang Jian FEX A, B

Independent Non-executive Directors: BUINTESE -

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony w95 A, B

Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict FRABIZ A B

Dr. Xu Mingshe wEMEL A B

Notes: Bt -

A Attending briefing and updates on rules and regulations related to A HEEMEESRERSTAA B LFIE
corporate governance law and practice EOGE &

B Reading of material and updates on the Group’s operation and B MEEAER N EBTENR L LB EHR
finance and on the industry generally 2B

Chairman and Managing Director TR RESHER

The roles of Chairman and Managing Director of the Company
are separated by written guidelines adopted by the Board to
ensure a clear division of responsibilities. The responsibilities
of the Chairman include leadership of the Board, providing
relevant information and mobilizing the collective resources of
the directors in the Board’s roles and functions. The Managing
Director is responsible for leadership of the management, and for
execution of business strategies and front-line execution.

ARANEFRMNEFAZEECBUCSED
E=QURIV T —REEBINEREER
EFRRECHEEBHOBELST - £F
MBEEREFINES RHUARENR -
LRHABHEENERERUNETEHEESS
IR - EEMEENBESREERENSE
B BEXRD OB RN ATAREEFF -
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Non-Executive Directors

As at the date of this report, three members of the Board are
independent non-executive directors. The term of appointment
of non-executive directors is governed by the Company’s
byelaws pursuant to which at each annual general meeting one-
third of the directors of the time being (or, if their number is
not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not greater
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
the chairman of the Board and/or the managing director of the
Company shall not, whilst holding such office, be subject to
retirement by rotation or be taken into account in determining
the number of directors to retire in each year.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive directors in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board
has assessed their independence and concluded that all the
independent non-executive directors are independent within the
definition of the Listing Rules.

Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony (“Mr. Cheung”) and Mr.
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict (“Mr. Chan”), who are to be retired by
rotation in the coming annual general meeting, have served as
an independent non-executive directors for more than 9 years.
The Nomination Committee has assessed the independence
of Mr. Cheung and Mr. Chan for reappointment as non-
executive directors and concluded that they have satisfied the
independence factors set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
that there are no relationships or circumstances which would
interfere with the exercise of their independent judgment in taking
up their role as independent non-executive directors, and that
they have the required professionalism, integrity and knowledge
to continue to fulfill their roles as independent directors despite
their length of service of more than 9 years. The Nomination
Committee also noted the positive contributions of Mr. Cheung
and Mr. Chan to the development of the Company’s strategy
and policies through independent, constructive and informed
contributions supported by their valuable professional knowledge
and experience, and from their active participation at meetings.
Hence, the Nomination Committee recommended to the Board
that Mr. Cheung and Mr. Chan be nominated for re-election as
independent nonexecutive directors.
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During the year, arrangements were made for the non-executive
directors to meet with the Chairman without the presence of the
executive directors, to consider and discuss various matters in
respect of the management of the Company.

Board Committees

The Company has set up three Committees in accordance with
the CG Code, namely the Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Audit Committee. In addition to the above 3
Committees, the Board has set up an Executive Committee
comprising all executive directors on the Board. Under its terms
of reference, the Executive Committee is responsible for the
oversight of the management of the Group and the formulation
of administrative guidelines.

Audit Committee

The Company has adopted terms of reference for the Audit
Committee, which are in line with the principles of the CG Code
and are posted on the Company’s website. The Audit Committee
comprises all independent non-executive directors and two
executive directors as follows:

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony (Committee Chairman)
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict

Dr. Xu Mingshe

Shum Chun, Lawrence

Cen Ziniu

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to ensure the
objectivity and credibility of financial reporting and internal control
procedures as well as to maintain an appropriate relationship
with the external auditor of the Company.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the
effectiveness of the internal audit function and the system of
internal control covering all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions. Through direct communication and meetings with the
management, the Audit Committee has reviewed the financial
reporting of the Company, including the Company’s interim and
annual reports, and the financial position of the Company as
disclosed in the financial reports, and it has also reviewed the
engagement of external auditors and the effectiveness of the
audit process.
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The Audit Committee met 3 times during the year 2016 during R2016FNEREZEEERITIAZHE ' U
which the following matters were reviewed and discussed: FERNFIRATEIA -
e Auditing and financial reporting matters; o  REEUBKHRESEHE:
e Appointment and remuneration of external auditor; o HEINERBEIRORTHS
e Non-auditing work of external auditor; o INERREANZIEBFZIMGE
. Financial reporting process and risk management functions; o SR ERT REEEIRINGE |
e Maintenance of the Group’s internal control system; o MR AKENIEIERLR
e Review of interim results and full year audited financial e EHIPHEEREERZFENBR
statements; =
. Review and monitor of the internal audit function including o EHMERRNITBZINEREERENMANRN
review the findings and recommendations from the B ET A PIATIRH BB R EE - WE
internal audit department and monitored subsequent REBOHITER &

implementation; and

e Based on the Group’s risk management function i.e policies e WREAREERGHEEIE  WBEKERE
and procedures, formulate and approve the scope of Fr o HIET Rt 2016 FRNSPES IR S [E -
internal audit work for 2016

Attendance of each member of the Audit Committee at meetings REENEZZEEENUNE L FIEEOT
during the year is as follows:

Number of Meetings

Name of Member Attended
BEMHE HEEERE
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony (Committee Chairman) REB(ZELFE) 3/3
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict PR B JE 3/3
Dr. Xu Mingshe BREMABL 3/3
Shum Chun, Lawrence 2a 3/3
Cen Ziniu T4 3/3

P
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Remuneration Committee

The Company has adopted terms of reference for the
Remuneration Committee, which are in line with the principles
of the CG Code and are posted on the Company’s website.
The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent
nonexecutive directors and two executive directors as follows:

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony (Committee Chairman)
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict

Dr. Xu Mingshe

Shum Chun, Lawrence

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal
and transparent procedures for developing remuneration policies
and overseeing the remuneration packages of the executive
directors and senior management. It takes into consideration
factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities of directors and senior
management. The Remuneration Committee meets at least once
a year to access the performance and review the annual salaries
and bonus of the senior executives.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has assessed the
performance of the executive directors, reviewed and discussed,
among other matters, the Remuneration Policy of the Company
and its implementation. 2 meetings of the Remuneration
Committee were held in the year to review, among other things,
the remuneration packages of the Chairman, the executive
directors and senior executives.

Attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee at
meetings during the year is as follows:
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Number of Meetings

Name of Member Attended
BRERR HESERE
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony (Committee Chairman) KB (ZEEEF/E) 2/2
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict FRIBJE 2/2
Dr. Xu Mingshe mEMEL 2/2
Shum Chun, Lawrence 2E 2/2
Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond AR 2/2
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Nomination Committee

The Company has adopted terms of reference for the Nomination
Committee, which are in line with the principles of the CG Code
and are posted on the Company’s website. The Nomination
Committee comprises three independent non-executive directors
and two executive directors as follows:

Shum Siu Hung (Committee Chairman)
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony

Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict

Dr. Xu Mingshe

Shum Chun, Lawrence

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
the size, structure and composition of the Board, identify suitably
qualified individual for appointment to the Board, assess the
independence of independent non-executive directors and to
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of directors and succession planning for directors.

2 meetings of the Nomination Committee were held in the
year to review and discuss the structure, diversity, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board and to assess the independence of independent
nonexecutive directors of the Board. The Nomination Committee
considers that all Board members possess the relevant skill and
knowledge in the area of the business operation of the Group.
The Nomination Committee also considers that an appropriate
mix of skills, experience, knowledge, expertise and diversity on
the Board is maintained and therefore no measurable objectives
were proposed to the Board.

Attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee at
meetings during the year is as follows:
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Number of Meetings

Name of Member Attended
BRERR HEZERRE
Shum Siu Hung (Committee Chairman) BLW(ZEEFE) 2/2
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony iR 89796 2/2
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict [y 2/2
Dr. Xu Mingshe wETIELT 2/2
Shum Chun, Lawrence & 240
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Corporate Governance Function

The Board does not have a Corporate Governance Committee.
The functions that would be carried out by a Corporate
Governance Committee are performed by the Board as a whole
and are as follows:

o to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

° to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

° to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Company’s corporate governance policy is formulated
with an emphasis on transparency and accountability to all
shareholders of the Company. The Board strives to comply with
the code provisions and reviews its corporate governance policy
regularly in order to maintain high standards of business ethics
and corporate governance, and to ensure the full compliance of
our operations with applicable laws and regulations.

During the year, all members of the Board have discussed and
reviewed, among other things, the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance. They have also reviewed and
monitored the training and continuous professional development
of directors, and the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements as well as
its disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report. A code of
conduct applicable to employees and directors setting out the
standards of behaviour that the Company expects from them and
the guidelines on how they should handle different situations in
business dealings with the Group were formulated and adopted
by the Board. The board also established written guidelines no
less exacting than the Model Code for dealing in the Company’s
securities by employ
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Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of internal
controls and for reviewing its effectiveness and for this
purpose has maintained an internal audit function which is
internally resourced and forms part of the Group’s permanent
establishment. The management of the Company has established
a set of comprehensive policies, standards and procedures in
areas of operational, financial and risk controls for safeguarding
assets against unauthorized use or disposition; for maintaining
proper accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of
financial information to achieve a satisfactory level of assurance
against the likelihood of the occurrence of fraud and errors.

The evaluation of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
is conducted by the internal audit function on an on-going basis,
and the responsible personnel will directly report to the Audit
Committee on any significant finding on internal controls.

The Board considered that throughout the year 2016, the
Company complied with the code provisions on internal controls
as stipulated in the CG Code. During the year the Company
conducted a full review of the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Group and discussed the assessment bases with
the management. The Board considered that the existing internal
control systems of the Group are effective.

Inside Information

The Company adopted a policy for disclosure of inside
information which sets out guidelines for the release and control
of inside information to ensure that the Company, its directors
and employees meets the obligations for the handling and
dissemination of inside information. A framework has been
set up to assess whether any particular information is inside
information, to ensure that any information considered to be
inside information should be kept confidential before the relevant
information is fully disclosed to the public, and to coordinate the
disclosure of the information in accordance with the requirements
of the Securities and Future Ordinance and. The Chairman, the
Managing Director, executive directors responsible for the control
of the Group’s operation and the Head of Investors Relations are
authorized as spokespersons of the Company.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Rights of shareholders of the Company are provide under, and
are subject to applicable laws and regulations (which include
the Bermuda Companies Act and the Listing Rules) and the
bye-laws of the Company. Set out below is a brief summary of
certain rights of the shareholders of the Company, which is for
easy reference only. The relevant laws and regulations and the
byelaws of the Company should be referred to for a full account
of such shareholders’ rights.

Convening Special General Meeting on Requisition

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall have the right to require an special general meeting (the
“SGM”) to be called by the Board by written requisition, duly
signed by the shareholder(s) making the requisition and stating
the purposes of the requisitioned SGM, deposited at the
registered office of the Company.

If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to convene
such SGM, the shareholders making the requisition, or any of
them representing more than one half of the total voting rights
of all of them, may themselves convene an SGM, provided that
the SGM so convened shall not be held after the expiration of 2
months from the date of deposit of the requisition.

Putting Forward Proposals at Shareholders’ Meeting

Proposal may be made by shareholders in the form of resolutions
proposed at an annual general meeting, or in the form of
statements circulated to shareholders with respect to matter(s)
referred to in any resolution or matter to be dealt with at any
general meeting. Shareholders, representing at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-twentieth of the total
voting rights or not less than 100 shareholders, may by written
requisition request the Company to: (a) give to shareholders
notice of any resolution which may properly be moved at the
next annual general meeting of the Company, and which the
requesting shareholders intend to move at that meeting; and (b)
circulate to shareholders a statement of not more than 1,000
words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at the next general
meeting.
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In the case of shareholders requesting the Company to give
notice of a resolution, the written requisition must be deposited
at the Company’s registered office not less than 6 weeks before
the date of the annual general meeting. In the case of any other
requisition, the written requisition must be deposited at the
Company’s registered office at not less than 1 week before the
date of the annual general meeting.

In order to notify the Company at the earliest opportunity of
the deposit/intended deposit of a written requisition referred to
in the above, a copy of the requisition may be delivered to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at 23/F.,
The Sun’s Group Centre, 200 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong or email to cosecdept@newoceanhk.com.

Proposing a Person for Election as Director

Procedures have been set up by the Company in accordance
with the Bye-laws for shareholders of the Company to propose
a person for election as a director. Details of the procedures are
available on the Company’s website.

Contacting the Board for Enquiries

Shareholders may contact the Board for enquiries in respect of
the Company’s information, to the extent such information can
be made available to the public. Shareholders may at any time
make enquiry in respect of the Company in writing at our head
office in Hong Kong by post or facsimile via the numbers and
email address provided on the Company’s website or email to
cosecdept@newoceanhk.com.

Investor Relations

The Company has adopted a Shareholders Communication
Policy. The use and effectiveness of such policy will be
monitored and reviewed regularly by the Board. The Company
recognises the importance of shareholders’ privacy and therefore
will not disclose shareholders’ information without their consent,
unless required by law to do so.

To achieve equal access to information on the Company’s
latest major development, measures have been taken to ensure
all necessary information and appropriate updates are made
available to investors in a timely manner through corporate
communications and other corporate publications on the
g ) er the column of “Investor Relations”.
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Corporate communications required to be given under the
Listing Rules, any applicable laws and corporate procedures
will be provided to shareholders in plain language and in
both English and Chinese versions to facilitate shareholders’
understanding. Shareholders should direct their questions about
their shareholdings to the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited at 22/F., Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong. For enquiry about
the information of the Company, shareholders may contact the
company secretary.

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in the Company’s
general meetings. Members of the Board will attend to answer
their questions.

The Company has also posted its constitutional documents on
its website and there was no significant change in them during
the year under review.

Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year, the remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s
auditor, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu is set out as follows:

Services rendered
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Fees paid/payable

BR TR 4t B2ft, EFER

HK$’000

FET

Audit services EE R 3,420

Non-audit services IEFETARTS 633

Total &5t 4,053
Accountability and Audit BERIEREZE

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group and ensuring that the financial
statements are in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The statement of the external
auditor of the Company about their reporting responsibilities
on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on page 66.

EERMARMUAEE 2B RE - LR
BHEBEREEEEERL AR ZEFERNR
BEERZBE - IMNEZEE Z PR
RAFIRE 66 BB ZBENHRERA -




Annual Report 2016 Z—Z—XEFHKR | 55

Directors’ Report

== g5 A 20 A

EEFEWME

The directors present their annual report and the audited EECENEEHZE2016F12A31HILSF
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 ERFER ML EZIE AP IEHRE -

December 2016.

Principal Activities FTEEH
The Company acts as an investment holding company. KRR EEZERRR - KRR ZEEBHE
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in RNElFFIBENERE MIE RN 43 -

note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group was REE2016F12831HIEFE - AEEFE
principally engaged in the sale and distribution of liquefied ZRtFHEEREREABR(RER]D
petroleum gas (“LPG”) and natural gas (“NG”), oil products AAR(TRAR]D) - BmEBRIBEEEFE
business and sales of electronic products. M °

Business Review XBEE

A detail review of the Group’s business and the analysis using the AEBFREGBOBLFERAYEHEHRHRKIAE
financial key performance indicators are set out on pages 9 to 40 HETNDMEREAFREIBZFI08
of the annual report under the heading “Management Discussion [EEEN AT — R - 21EKE &8
and Analysis”. In summary, the Group’s total sales volume BEREMBIHE=£45,190,10018 - 38N T
of energy products increased by 33.56% to approximately 33.56% ° B2 FRMELEWALNE157E
5,190,100 tons. However, revenue from operations for the BT BEM EATH1.20% FTERKRT
year was only increased slightly by approximately 1.20% to BERE mIE2016F R EER - BRITEM
approximately HK$15,700 million reflecting the substantially REOEEETH®  BENTKRTHLI4E51%E
low price for energy products compared with last year in 2016. WITESFT7TEERB L - FAHEENER
Due to the decline in auto-gas sales volume, the gross profits FEREEEFRARERULE - o &
decreased by approximately 4.51% to approximately HK$1,757 BEE R ERB2015F 8 4911.86% | k& 4
million. The growth in sales volume in this year mainly came from 11.19% ° AR EIHHAB AEEFREE BT T
wholesaling of oil products with low gross profit margin, therefore BT 096%ZELTRITOBESTT - IR
the overall gross profit margin dropped from approximately EEAREMA051E L HEFHER - AR
11.86% in 2015 to approximately 11.19%. Profit for the RIEB AR EF 79.47% 2458185
year attributable to owners of the Company from operations FraEET-

decreased by 0.96% to approximately HK$749 million. Basic
earnings per share from operations is HK$0.51 which remains
the same as last year. Equity attributable to owners of the
Company increased by 9.47% to approximately HK$5,857

million.

There are a number of principal risks and uncertainties facing AEBEEH MIETETERABE I EER
the Group as follows: (i) global economy is gloomy especially = ()IRBEBRRER 2P B EEERR
China’s economy growth has slowed down in recent years; (ii) & (ipdm s RARKBRIEREBREMS L
the fluctuation of the oil, NG and LPG price in the global market; ZBERE ; (i) P BT SR EEIRINE
(i) PRC government’s policies in promoting green energy such NDRRARZER K (iv) A REEIE X K18
as electricity power and NG and; (iv) the substantial fluctuation BB o bSPTIR A AN & B P E A AT

in RMB exchange rates. The above are not intended to be an BERBETEERZZFRIR ELBR
Y cxh i _all principal risks and uncertainties facing 15 BE R A Pk # %ﬁi}il, S
8 = — o
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the Group. These may change over time as new risks and
uncertainties emerge and others cease to be of concern. Looking
ahead, the global economy will remain uncertain. However,
as necessity goods, the rigid demand for energy products will
continue to exist, thus LPG and oil products are still the core
business for the Group In addition, pursuant to the existing PRC
government policies, the demand for NG is expected to grow in
coming years and the Group is now actively developing the retail
network of NG in Guangdong province.

Particular of the major suppliers and customers of the Group
are set out on page 58 of the annual report. The Directors are
satisfied with the relationship with customers and suppliers.
The Directors recognize the importance of having good working
relationship with its staff as staff is the key assets to the Group.
The Group has not experienced any significant problems with
its staff nor significant labour disputes or industrial actions. The
Group did not experience any significant staff turnover especially
for the management level. The Directors believe that the Group
has good working relationship with its staff as a whole. In
respect of corporate social responsibility, our target is to commit
to motivating the low-carbon growth of the industry, providing
green energy for the developing of the whole society and taking
into account the needs of our stakeholders, including impact
on the environment and the communities in which we operate.
The details of the above are set out in the Environmental Social
and Governance Report for the year ended 31 December 2016
published on the Company’s website www.newoceanhk.com.

Save and except for one deviation from the Corporate
Governance Code as set out under Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules (the details of the deviation are set out on page 41 of
the annual report), the Company has complied in all material
respects with all relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group.

Results and Appropriation
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016

are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on pages 73 and 74.

The directors do not recommend the payment of dividend and
propose that the profits for the year be retained.
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Five Years Financial Summary

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 192 of
the annual report.

Property, Plant and Equipment

During the year, the Group spend approximately
HK$168,468,000 (2015: HK$22,717,000) on property, plant
and equipment to expand and upgrade its LPG and oil plant.
Details of the movements during the year in property, plant
and equipment of the Group are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Purchase, sale or redemption of securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2016.

Reserves of the Group and the Company

Details of the movements in the Group’s reserves during the year
are set out in the “Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity”

on page 77 and page 78.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders
as at 31 December 2016 were as follows:

Annual Report 2016 =—Z—XFEFEH
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2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$’000

AT BT

Contributed surplus N 1,667 1,667
Retained earnings IR Y F| 412,322 296,300
413,989 297,967
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Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(@) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(b)  the realizable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium accounts.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

Sufficiency of Public Float

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 December 2016.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The largest customer of the Group by itself and the total of the
five largest customers accounted for approximately 12% and
36% (2015: 13% and 36%) respectively of the Group’s total
turnover for the year, including discontinued operations.

The largest supplier of the Group by itself and the total of the
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 17% and 51%
(2015: 7% and 23%) respectively of the Group’s total purchase
for the year.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of
a director, or a shareholder of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) have an interest in any of the Group’s five
largest customers or suppliers.

Charitable Donations
During the year, the Group made charitable donations amounting

to approximately HK$400,000.
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Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive directors:

Shum Siu Hung (Chairman)

Shum Chun, Lawrence (Managing Director)
Cen Ziniu

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond

Siu Ka Fai, Brian

Wang Jian

Independent non-executive directors:
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony

Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict

Dr. Xu Mingshe

In accordance with clauses 86 and 87 of the Company’s bye-
laws, Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony and Mr. Chan Yuk Wai,
Benedict, both are independent non-executive directors, shall
retire by rotation from office at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company. All directors retiring at the annual
general meeting have offered themselves for re-election.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The term of office for each non-executive director is the

period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Company’s bye-laws.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in Shares EFERTETHRARBREG RERMEG
and Underlying Shares hziga

At 31 December 2016, the interests of certains directors and R2016F12A31H  EFERTETHASR
chief executives and their associates in the shares and underlying MEHEZEE ARKRR REEEEEZ K
shares of the Company and its associated corporations, as MEEARDT  BEARREREZESFRK
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant B E &0 5 352 1638 & sR 8 AR K0 P s i 15
to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, or as BzERMREZR  IREBEEBELTARE
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange FRTEAFRHZZESTREIRTE  BHNEAR
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by NaE| R FT EmINT

Directors of Listed Companies, were as follows:

(a) Long positions of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of (a)ZLAFISREEOI0EBTEERIZHFE
the Company

Percentage of

the issued

Number of share capital of
issued ordinary the Company

shares held FritZE 2 F
Name of director Capacity RSB 8T ERTRG
EEus S EiEBRRRR Bigk
Shum Siu Hung Beneficial owner 63,340,358 4.28
=y EmEEA
Corporate interest (Note 1) 490,779,280 33.15
INARERFEE (K7 1)
554,119,638 37.43
Shum Chun, Lawrence Beneficial owner 57,623,558 3.89
ZE En#EEA
Other (Note 2) 73,616,892 4.97
H(Hat2)
131,240,450 8.86
Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond Beneficial owner 2,200,000 0.15

it AR BE&mBEAA




Directors’ Report
ESEEWE

Notes:

1. These represent the block of 490,779,280 shares beneficially
owned by Uniocean Investments Limited (“Uniocean”) which were
held as corporate interest by Mr. Shum Siu Hung, and were the
same block of shares as referred to in note 1 under section (a) in
the paragraph headed “Substantial Shareholders” below. Uniocean
is owned as to 70% by Mr. Shum Siu Hung, 15% by Mr. Shum
Chun, Lawrence, and 15% by Mr. Shum Ho, Neo, both are sons of
Mr. Shum Siu Hung.

2. These interests reflect 15% proportional interest of Mr. Shum
Chun, Lawrence in the 490,779,280 shares held by Uniocean.

Other than disclosed above and nominee shares in certain
subsidiaries held by certain directors in trust for the Group, none
of the directors, chief executive nor their respective associates
had any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as at 31 December 2016.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

Other than disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries, a party
to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’/Controlling Shareholders’ Interests in
Contracts of Significance

Details of related party transactions during the year are set out in
note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no other transactions, arrangements
and contracts of significance to which the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director or a connected entity of a director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly in any contract,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

P

#h6 >

HEWOCEMN 5

®

Annual Report 2016 =—Z—XFEFEH

wzt

1. ZRERGIESHIERERAG(EH])E
A 2 490,779,280 B A% 1 - I i = A I
FHENRREREE  BTRIEZREIN
1R BRI RS DR E  BEK
ERBEEE(REREDBEEZRF)HE
BH70%  15% N 15% °

2. ZERENESALERLOESEES
490,779,280 JRA& (D ) 15% 2 o

BrEXFHEER G TESRERAEEBUE
AERAMRETHBARFE ZNREARD
Gh o HA2016F 12 A81H S £H - £B77
BRABRBEESAZHEATITEREAR
B EHE AR 2 BHFERAR -

MERNKBRFZRH

B EXPTREESN - ARTF) - REBRAF S
HAEMMERRRFAEME RSB ZE
Mz EARBEEAHRBEARARE
A EA AN RS Z B D sk EZ MRS Az -

EE RERREREXSHZHER

FRAZMERHHBLENGRE M BRI
a1 e

B EXFRREESN - AT - AERAFSHHE
FAEMNBARYEZ2EITIARBESERK
EE7HECEEERAEEREPERERX
MmN AFRERGER LEFATMEREA
BRZEARS ~ THREH

61



62 1

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #1/S8EREBHBR QA

Directors’ Report
EEEWmE

Connected Transaction

The Group had the following continuing connected transactions
during the year ended 31 December 2016:

On 18 December 2013, Sound Management Services Limited
(“Sound Management”) entered into an office tenancy agreement
with Ever Lucky Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong
and wholly owned by Mr. Shum Ho, Neo, for the use of office
premises owned by Ever Lucky Limited located on 23“ Floor, The
Sun’s Group Centre, 200 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
at HK$380,000 per calendar month for a period of one year
commencing on 1 January 2014. On 29 December 2014 and 29
December 2015, Sound Management and Ever Lucky Limited
entered into two office tenancy agreements to extend the rental
period for one year to 31 December 2015 and 31 December
2016 respectively with the same monthly rental fee. For the year
ended 31 December 2016, the aggregate amount of the rental
paid or payable to Ever Lucky Limited was HK$4,560,000.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged
the auditor of the Company to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transaction in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor of the Company has issued
his unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions
in respect of the Group’s continuing connected transaction as
disclosed above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by
the Company to the Stock Exchange. The independent non-
executive directors confirm that the continuing connected
transaction has been entered into by the Group in the ordinary
and usual course of its business, on normal commercial terms
and in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreement
governing such transaction that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Group and the shareholders as a whole.
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Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2016, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance shows that other than the
interests disclosed above in respect of certain directors and chief
executive, the following shareholders had notified the Company

Annual Report 2016

FEEX

e AT

of relevant interests and short positions in the issued share
capital of the Company:

ETEERTE

TE-REFR

R2016F 12 A31H  RBEADQRKBESF
yg:! if1‘m1§']§ﬁ336 1638 F B%

RS2 EFERRE
ﬁﬁAaFt

Xﬁﬂ)}i&%z% w2 THBRRAME AR
BAAR ﬂE?ééﬂﬁx$Zﬁ%§%ﬁ£&mE:

Percentage
Number of of the issued
issued share capital
ordinary of the
shares held company
Long/Short X QT Fr{EF 4T
Name of shareholder positions Capacity ERTEER ERTERF
B R Be #e S5 A B
Uniocean Long Beneficial owner 490,779,280 33.15
b3 A EmBEAA
Tong Shiu Ming Long Family interest (Note 1) 490,779,280 33.15
ENE e Kk (Mat 1)
Long Family interest (Note 2) 63,340,358 4.28
e Kikress (Hat2)
FFMC Holdings Pte. Ltd. Long Interest of controlled corporation 75,706,000 5.1
(Note 3)
e RGN RERER (M 3)
Fullerton Fund Management  Long Investment manager (Note 3) 75,706,000 5.11
Company Ltd. /S52) WEKIB(WZ3)

Notes:

Hist

These represent the same block of 490,779,280 shares held
as corporate interest by Mr. Shum Siu Hung, spouse of Ms.
Tong Shiu Ming as referred to in note 1 under section (a) of the
paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in
Shares and Underlying Shares” above, and were deemed to be the
family interest of Ms. Tong Shiu Ming.

These represent the same block of 63,340,358 shares held
beneficially by Mr. Shum Siu Hung, spouse of Ms. Tong Shiu
Ming as referred to in the paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares” above, and
were deemed to be the family interest of Ms. Tong Shiu Ming.

Fullerton Fund Management Company Ltd. as investment manager
|s deemed to own a total of 75,706,000 shares through various
agement.

FuIIerton Fund Management
is indire

e interest
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Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

Disclosure Pursuant to Rule 13.18 of the Listing
Rules

On 4 September 2015, the Company entered into a facility
agreement for a syndication loan facility of US$170,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$1,322,600,000) for the purpose
of financing the general working capital requirements of the
Group and refinancing of any existing indebtedness of any
member of the Group. The loan to be made to the Company
upon utilization of the facility will be repayable in five instalments,
10% of the utilized amount is repayable on the date which falls
12 months after the date of first drawdown, 10% of the utilized
amount is repayable on the date which falls 18 months after
the date of first drawdown, 12.5% of the utilized amount is
repayable on the date which falls 24 months after the date of
first drawdown, 12.5% of the utilized amount is repayable on the
date which falls 30 months after the date of first drawdown, and
the remaining 55% of the utilized amount is repayable on the
date which falls 36 months after the date of the first drawdown.

On 25 August 2016, the Company entered into a facility
agreement for a term loan facility of US$150,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$1,167,000,000) for the purpose of
refinancing of any existing indebtedness of any member of the
Group and financing the general working capital requirements of
the Group. The loan to be made to the Company upon utilization
of the facility will be repayable in four instalments, 10% of the
utilisated amount is repayable on the date which falls 30 months
after the date of first drawdown, 10% of the utilisated amount
is repayable on the date which falls 36 months after the date of
first drawdown, 10% of the utilisated amount is repayable on the
date which falls 42 months after the date of first drawdown, and
the remaining 70% of the utilisated amount is repayable on the
date which falls 48 months after the date of the first drawdown.
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Under the above facility agreements, in the event the Shum
Family (comprising certain family members and relatives of Mr.
Shum Siu Hung, Chairman of the Company as set out in the
facility agreements) cease to remain as the largest shareholder
and maintains less than 30% shareholdings of the Company,
the facilities available to the Company will be cancelled and all
outstanding amounts will then become immediately due and
payable.

As at 31 December 2016 the Shum Family beneficially own
approximately 41.32% in aggregate of the issued share capital of
the Company.

Auditor

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to
re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board
Shum Siu Hung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2017
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Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NEWOCEAN ENERGY
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on
pages 73 to 191, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters REEXFER
FARBTEESRERMOSEHE - R A
HABGEUBERERNEATRAEENS
H o GHEEFHEERMEAERBSREM R
ZAREAERKETEEN - ZAMTEHE
LEBREEBNER -

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

3 pl: ok gk

How our audit addressed the HEREHEE
Key audit matter key audit matter MEEHEE EFEE
Impairment of goodwill ABRE
We identified the impairment of Our procedures in relation to the ReralEssEs ZTZHhmERmEs
goodwill as a key audit matter due impairment of goodwill included: HAEERESREA BEOE -
to the involvement of significant HERES BT
judgments and assumptions e Understanding the Group’s EEGELEEEEE TREBRT R
in determining the recoverable impairment assessment EEBNEANE BT mRe
amounts. As at 31 December 2016, process, including the $E W F4RI8H B B B A
the carrying amount of goodwill is impairment assessment model Z H2016E12 B3 T4 2 R B
HK$639,308,000 as disclosed in used and key assumptions B BEYEAESL EEE Y

notes 4 and 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

used;

o Assessing the reasonableness

639,308,000 % TT. ©

s BESWMER

Goodwill has been allocated to of the assumptions made EHBEERDHEBRILR GBS EE g
individual cash-generating units by the management by K BEZHEE Bl LA
(“CGUS’) relating to the sales and comparing the historical BRIzEEELEEN EEEL Y B
distribution of LPG and oil products. forecasts to the actual results; ([(HeELSEM)- & I AgE
Impairment of goodwill is assessed ERENEBBEEM

by comparing the recoverable e Testing the discount rates PEZBEEELEBNZ o i 38 46 78 8 B
amounts of CGUs to which the applied in the forecasts by AU o] 4 2B B 0 4 HR =D
goodwill is allocated with their comparing them to externally RERMEELSRmER N 2R T R B
carrying values at the end of the available data; i fl o 72016612 A VEEL B - LA
reporting period. As at 31 December A REeELEf SHEEIE K

2016, the recoverable amounts of
the CGUs have been determined

o Challenging the growth rates

hEeE2ERER
TEABNZERERE

o« HUEBEHN

with reference to the value in use used by comparing against mMET EREZEL =]
of the relevant CGUs, which require historical data to assess the BEBEAMER R E &2 H 5
assumptions about suitable discount reliability of the management’s RFEHEELERNR R ASE(ES
rates, growth rates, budgeted forecast; and ZRE AtERKR = [ 38 8 > A
sales and gross margin in order to eREZEERE . A

calculate the present value of the
estimated future cash.

OWS.
el

HHhG ¢

HEWOCEMN 5



68 |

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #/EsEREBHER A A

Independent Auditor’s Report

AR A TR

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the
key audit matter

J Comparing the budgeted
sales and gross margin
against historical performance
and the directors’ strategic
plans in respect of each CGU.

Recoverability of trade debtors and allowance for bad and doubtful

debts

We identified the recoverability of
trade debtors and allowance for
bad and doubtful debts as a key
audit matter due to the significance
of the balance to the consolidated
financial statements and significant
management judgment is involved
in determining the appropriate level
of allowance for bad and doubtful
debts. As at 31 December 2016,
the carrying amount of the Group’s
trade debtors is HK$3,164,818,000
as disclosed in note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As disclosed in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements,
in assessing the recoverability of
the trade debtors, the management
considers the credit history including
default or delay in payments,
historical settlement records,
subsequent settlements and aging
analysis of trade debtors.

Our procedures in relation to
assessing the recoverability of trade
debtors and allowance for bad and
doubtful debts included:

o Testing, on a sample basis,
the aging analysis for trade
debtors by checking to
supporting documentation
to assess the accuracy of
the data used to determine
allowances for bad and
doubtful debts;

J Testing, on a sample basis,
the details of settlements
during the current year and
the subsequent settlements
to supporting documentation
including bank receipts; and

J Assessing the recoverability
of trade debtors and
reasonableness of allowance
for bad and doubtful debts by
considering the credit history
including default or delay in
payments, settlement records
and aging analysis of trade
debtors.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
ERVE R Gk e

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Yu Kin Man.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

21 March 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
e Bm REM I E R

For the year ended 31 December 2016

EE2016F 12 531 HI-FZE
2016 2015
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Hiat FEIT FET
Revenue WA 5 15,700,406 15,514,990
Cost of sales SHE AN (13,943,529) (13,675,086)
Gross profit EH 1,756,877 1,839,904
Other gains and losses HApr1s k&8 7 (122,258) (343,596)
Other income H ALK A 7 63,525 113,141
Selling and distribution expenses HE R oEY H (383,641) (352,071)
Administrative expenses TEZH (307,937) (282,310)
Finance costs BB A 8 (180,087) (194,953)
Share of profits of joint ventures ’\TEA B FEF 3,807 2,631
Share of (losses) profits of associates D 1EHE 4 A 7 (E5E ) % K (945) 13,009
Profit before taxation B A% B & ) 10 829,341 795,755
Taxation Bi1E 9 (79,181) (36,783)
Profit for the year FWEF 750,160 758,972
Other comprehensive expense Ht2m>
ltem that will not be reclassified TEEMHEIEREK
to profit or loss: ZIER
Exchange differences arising RMmE R REEEE
on translation to presentation ZIEHZ%8
currency (230,219) (210,056)
ltems that may be reclassified BEA TR EHEE
subsequently to profit or loss: BmK AR -
Fair value gain on available for AEHERE 2 A TE
sale investment Fr1% 35,617 8,932
Reclassified to profit or loss upon BEHE TR
the disposal of certain amount of HEREREFHE
available for sale investment BEER (12,874) 17,898
(207,476) (183,226)
Total comprehensive income for FRBE2EK S
the year 542,684 575,746

HHhG ¢
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
ireBm LEM e a R

For the year ended 31 December 2016

EE2016F 12 531 HI-FZE
2016 2015
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
k23 FRET F&T
Profit for the year attributable to: FEMRFEREF
Owners of the Company RATHER A 749,397 756,643
Non-controlling interests FEFEHil i 763 2,329
750,160 758,972
Total comprehensive income (expense) ME{G#E U (ZH) -
attributable to:
Owners of the Company PiN/NGIEZZEN 543,814 573,529
Non-controlling interests FEJ2E il (1,130) 2,217
542,684 575,746
Earnings per share FRAF
Basic BN 14 HK$0.51 HK$0.51

Diluted g 14 N/A HK$0.51
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

“re ISR

At 31 December 2016

20164 12 A.31 A1k
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
st FETT FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Yl - 2 MR 15 2,160,093 1,506,653
Land use rights T+ b A 16 401,633 266,611
Prepaid lease payments for coast BERNEERIE 17 5,983 7,214
Goodwill S 18 639,308 658,648
Other intangible assets HitnEHEEE 19 399,926 357,310
Interests in associates 9?%’&7*%/\ 20 7,739 15,960
Interests in joint ventures SRR 21 23,600 21,332
Available for sale investment ﬂfﬁtﬂ%&ﬁ 22 — 37,770
Deposits paid EfiRE 23 375,280 663,005
Deferred tax assets FEETIEE E 33 352 3,197
4,013,914 3,537,700
Current assets mEEE
Inventories FE 24 933,534 260,285
Trade debtors and bills receivable R E 5 BR 7k & e U ZE 4 25 3,289,310 2,518,348
Other debtors, deposits and EMmERERER - ke Rk
prepayments SN 25 1,773,808 1,890,558
Amounts due from associates JE U B 2= N B FR 26 2,938 124,303
Amount due from a joint venture e — */\Lﬁ:\i 26 4,275 1,078
Derivative financial instruments PTEMBIA 44 45 12,378
Land use rights i A 16 19,452 11,701
Prepaid lease payments for coast FERMNAERIE 17 769 822
Properties held for sales BEGEYE 147,670 157,754
Properties under development FEERDME
for sales 27 388,665 211,959
Pledged bank deposits BRRERTTIE K 28 112,151 1,108,142
Bank balances and cash RITEBR MRS 28 1,857,597 1,569,937
8,530,214 7,867,265
Current liabilities mEEE
Trade creditors and bills payable ENEZERARENEER 29 1,599,956 641,816
Other creditors and accrued charges E@Fﬁ%m&fﬁ%ﬁq 482,367 214,952
Amount due to an associate B — KB R AR 30 13,819 8,706
Amount due to a joint venture ERN—REERFER 30 2,916 479
Derivative financial instruments PTEMBIA 44 1,961 25,785
Tax liabilities MEaE 109,767 60,031
Borrowings secured by pledged R E P RITIFHRIERE
bank deposits fE
— repayable within one year — HR—FAEE 31 108,920 1,370,614
Borrowings secured by other assets I EH i B ZEEIRIIE %’\
— repayable within one year — AR—FANEER 31 15,560 11,227
Borrowings unsecured — repayable  ZEERMER —
within one year AR—ERNEE 31 1,930,837 1,532,972
4,266,103 3,866,582
Net current assets mENEERE 4,264,111 4,000,683
REERRBDBE 8,278,025

Total assets less current liabilities

7,538,383

456
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

“re SRR

At 31 December 2016

R2016 % 12 531 A1t
2016 2015
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
izt F#&iT FET
Capital and reserves EER R
Share capital % 32 148,040 148,040
Share premium and other reserves R 19 i (8 R E b 7 % 5,709,187 5,202,383
Equity attributable to owners of the NN Wl EE ST N
Company FE(E S 5,857,227 5,350,423
Non-controlling interests e B S 83,718 38,193
Total equity BRET 5,940,945 5,388,616
Non-current liabilities EREIAMR
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFHIESE &3 99,856 116,012
Borrowings secured by other assets B E & EEZFRAER
— repayable over one year — AR —FREER 31 37,429 30,404
Borrowings unsecured EIEIRIE K
— repayable over one year — AR —F&EE 31 2,199,795 2,003,351
2,337,080 2,149,767
8,278,025 7,538,383
The consolidated financial statements on pages 73 to 191 were EEeR2017F3 A 21 HEH R FEREH
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on FI3ER19I B G EHEKk  WAHTIE
21 March 2017 and are signed on its behalf by: ERERE
Shum Siu Hung Shum Chun Lawrence
HDUWH 58
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RARSEHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
EE2016F 12 531 HI-FZE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FOTCHE B
Statutory Share Investment Contributed Non-

Share Share Special surplus  Exchange options  revaluation surplus Other  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve  reserves reserve reserve reserve  accounts reserve profits Total interests

13 &l
Bk BRER WHER BEBGE  ERER WENGE REER RARBE  REEE  RERN @2 FRAHR

HK8000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKB'O00  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$'000
7T 7T 7T 7T 7T 7T FET FET 7Er  FEr FEn TEr TEn
(Note j (Note i)
) (ki)

A1 January 2015 520155
1A1A 148040 1439717 122,085 46,650 212,859 3,743 (49,673) 1,667 (127) 2,949,539 4,874,600 31,184 4,905,784

Proftfor the year IS - - = - - - - - - 756,643 756,643 2,329 768,972
Exchange RE B3

diferences arising ~ E4 &4

on tranglation EiEE

to presentation

currency = - - - (0094 - - - -
Farvale ganon ~ WEHERE

avalable forsale  ATERE

investment - - - - - - 8932 = = - 8,082 - 8932
Reclassified to profit &~ HE

or loss upon HAkiHE

the disposal of  REREH

certain amount of 4%

avalablefor sl EHE

(209.944) (12 [10,038)

investment = = = = = = 17,898 = = = 17,898 - 17,898
Total comprehensive EA2

(expense) income~ (3¢11)

for the year etk - - - - (209944 = 26,830 = = 756,643 573,529 2217 575,746
Incorporationof A3

subsicaries with X KB

non-controling A8

interests - - - - - - - - - - - 4,792 4792
Appropriations ik - = = 1,857 = = = = = (1,857) = = =
Dividend paid BfikE

(note 13) (Wit 13) = = = = = = = = - e (97,70 - r0e
Transfer to retained  EERIERIE

profits upon EEDIIR

expiration of share 7]

options - - - - - (3,743) - - - 3,743 - - -
M1 December 120155

2015 12A318 148,040 1,439,717 122,085 48,507 2915 - (22,743) 1,667 (127) 3610362 5,360,423 38,193 5,388,616

7l
HEWOCEMN 5
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

—|I— N7 Z_
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For the year endeo’ 37 December 2016
EE2016F 12 531 HI-FZE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KUEHA RS

Statutory Share Investment Contributed Non-

Share Share Special surplus  Exchange options  revaluation

capital premium reserve reserves reserve reserve

£

reserve

Etf

surplus
accounts

Other  Retained controlling
reserve profits Total interests

B BREA KHRE  BBGE  EREN  RRERE
HKS000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS$'000  HK$000

BRG
HK§'000

BARRE
HK§'000

RftGs  GEEY #HE  FEER
HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000

f#r  FET TRt FET  FET  TET FET FET FET FET FET FET  FET
(Note | (Note i)
(het) (ki)

Proft for the year /%A = = = - = - - = - AT TA3 763 750,160
Exchange RAE BAIE

diferences arising ~ E4EE

on translation EiEE

to presentation

currency - - - - (228,326) - - - - - (228,320) (1,893 (230,219
Fairvaug ganon  TfEERE

avalable for sale ~ MATE

investment fig - - - - - - 35,617 - - - 35,617 - 35,617
Reclassified to profit &~ HE

or loss upon HkiE

the disposalof ~ REEEH

certain amount of A3

avalable forsale  BER

investment - - - - - - (12,874) - - - (12,874) - (12,874)
Total comprehensive £A2E

(expense) income (it

for the year &g - - - - (228,326) - 20,143 - - 749,301 543,814 (1,130) 542,684
Incorporation of ~ F LA

subsicaries with X KB

non-controling A7

interests _— - - - — = - - - - = 461655 461655
Appropriations 2% = = - 5,185 - - - - - (5,185) = - -
Dividend paid BkE

(note 13) lirat) - - - - - - - - - (37,010) (37,010) - (37,010)
At31 December  H20165

2016 12A318 148,040 1,439,717 122,085 53692  (225411) - - 1,667 (127) 4317564 5,857,227 83,718 5,940,945
Notes: e
()  The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between (i) INE B 2 R R 1 H IR D BN R Rk 9

the share capital, share premium and capital redemption reserve of
the Group’s former ultimate holding company whose shares were
exchanged for the Company’s shares and the nominal amount of
the share capital issued by the Company pursuant to a scheme of
arrangement dated 14 April 1999.

(i) The statutory surplus reserves represent enterprise development
and general reserve funds appropriated from the profit after
taxation of subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) in accordance with the PRC laws and
regulations.

Egia“‘m@mw@uu ¥ i Ui h,l\“,

e

(i

ZAEBAREERD B ZRA - BREE
NEABLOFRE  BARERIE1999F 4 A
14 BTS2 BB EIE ZHEat I 31T A
EfEZEH

AEBBREERBETFEARLME(H
B ) 2 53 RAR IR B Sz KB A RIRR B
BENADIREEERE —RFEES -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
meEReERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016

B Z2016F 1231 HILFE
HK$°000 HK$’000
TFAET FEIT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEEH
Profit before taxation F A5 K 829,341 795,755
Adjustments for: FEE
Share of profits of joint ventures AME—REEEERT (3,807) (2,631)
Share of losses (profits) of associates D 1EHE4 A 7 EHE G 7)) 945 (13,009
Finance costs BB KA 180,087 194,953
Interest income B A (53,299) (110,808)
(Gain) loss on fair values changes of  $TAEM T A A ENE
derivative financial instruments 2 (Frfs ) Esia (18,966) 33,690
(Gain) loss on disposal of available for HERHEEREZ
sale investment (%) Eia (12,874) 17,898
Depreciation of property, plant and VI - I RREITE
equipment 99,868 88,587
Loss on disposal and written off of & RMEE T - e
property, plant and equipment Kk tEE R 5,294 4,632
Amortisation of land use rights o Hb 58 R A 5 10,498 10,806
Amortisation of prepaid lease BTN SRR
payments for coast 806 860
Amortisation of other intangible HihEp &EEEE
assets 41,621 43,404
Operating cash flows before EEEREHAIL
movements in working capital KEIRSRE 1,079,514 1,064,137
(Increase) decrease in inventories HFE GG M) R (674,960) 174,820
(Increase) decrease in trade debtors  EUE 5 R & fE Uk
and bills receivable PR (38 0) sk > (782,080) 515,058
Decrease (increase) in other debtors,  HihEUWER « & &
deposits and prepayments FERTFIRR A (3500) 56,904 (457,168)
Decrease in amounts due from FEU — KBt = A R
associates FIE R A 121,365 218,283
Increase in amount due from a joint Bl —REEDE
venture FIBIE AN (3,197) (1,078)
Increase in properties under FEERP LM
development for sales (115,394) —
Increase (decrease) in trade creditors  JEfIE 5 BREUN FE (M 2%
and bills payable A CR) 968,139 (723,448)
Increase (decrease) in other creditors — H{th FEBR X K fE=T & FR
and accrued charges ZAnCR ) 269,134 (77,038)
Increase in amount due to JE A — SR B & A RIRRIR
an associate 0 5,113 8,706
Increase (decrease) in amount due B —RE&EEERIE
to a joint venture 32 10 Ok > 2,437 (30)
Decrease in properties held for sales #7513 & W25 2 = 17,377
Decrease (increase) in derivative PTER BT AR (3G 0)
financial instruments 9,236 (22,661)
Cash generated from operations REEFXR SR 936,211 716,958
Income tax paid SRR (32,450) (27,708)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING EERBELRSBH
ACTIVITIES 903,761 689,250

456
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

A RTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2016

B Z2016F 1231 HILFE
2016 2015
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
K&t F#ET FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEEE
Interest received B W FH B 25,415 86,670
Acquisition of intangible assets through i i@ & A M &8 2 7] U i
purchase of subsidiaries (net of cash ~ Z&EE(RHBRFFEZ
and cash equivalents acquired) ReERERBRLIEAER) 34 (100,715) (100,000)
Dividend received from an associate m) Bk 2 &) R AR B 20(a) 6,721 15,022
Addition of land use rights BN+ Hh {5 A AE (169,354) (25,047)
Purchase of property, plant and EEYE  HBRRERE
equipment (419,069) (26,225)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits Uz Bl 2 K 4R 1777 7K 2,579,760 4,856,908
Placement in pledged bank deposits 17 IR TIF K (1,589,866) (2,482,069)
Refund of the registered capital from — —ZRE# & A TR [E
an associate & A 20(a) — 61,432
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEE - #E K
plant and equipment BEITIES 452 -
Proceeds from disposal of available HERHEEREMF
for sale investment 72,856 53,120
Capital contribution to an associate mM—XKEEQARILE = (8,986)
Increase in deposits paid BEfiRe 22 (177,910) (554,686)
NET CASH FROM INVESTING BREDELERGPH
ACTIVITIES 228,290 1,876,139
FINANCING ACTIVITIES il 25 5% B
Interest paid EIHLE (176,156) (153,084)
New borrowings raised E5IER 10,571,748 9,835,734
Repayment of borrowings EEER (11,227,775) (12,303,705)
Dividend paid BTAR A (37,010) (97,706)
Capital contribution from non-controlling & & M ZK & A &) /Y
shareholders of two subsidiaries JEFEFIAR R 2 & 46,655 4,792
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING MREE AR PR
ACTIVITIES (822,538) (2,713,969)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN HeRERHAELEEHIENM
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (KD )R 309,513 (148,580)
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE [EX&E e
RATE CHANGES (21,853) (20,104)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS S#HR&RSARLEHR
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 1,569,937 1,738,621
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS SXR&ERSRAHELEH
AT END OF THE YEAR 1,857,597 1,569,937
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF HR&RERRLEE SR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances and cash SRITEBRNIE S 1,857,597 1,569,937
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

—=AN £+ 2
RE ISR M
For the year ended 31 December 2016
EE2016F 12 531 HI-FZE

1.

General

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Its ultimate and immediate holding company
is Uniocean Investments Limited (“Uniocean”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The Company acts
as an investment holding company. The principal activities
of the Group are the sales and distribution of liquefied
petroleum gas (“LPG”) and natural gas (“NG”), oil products
business and sales of electronic products.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi
(“RMB”), the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the Group operates. For the purpose of the
consolidated financial statements and convenience of the
financial statements users, the results and financial position
of the Group are expressed in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”),
the presentation currency for the consolidated financial
statements.

Application of New and Amendments to Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the
current year:

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment entities: Applying the
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 consolidation exception

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for acquisitions of interests
in joint operations
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure initiative
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of acceptable methods of
and HKAS 38 depreciation and amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer plants
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2012 — 2014 cycle

HHhG ¢
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre g R M ot

For the year ended 31 December 2016

B E 2016 F 12 431 AIEFE

2. Application of New and Amendments to Hong 2. ERAHITREETEEMBEREE
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) B([ FEMEREER ) (&)
(Continued)
The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the RAFEEBFIBBMISREEL Y
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s REBRAFERBEFE 2 HHERE
financial performance and positions for the current and AR - RS FERE TS RERFTE
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these ZIRBEEIRWEE K E o

consolidated financial statements.

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet ERGERRENZHITREEITEE

effective MEmEER

The Group has not early applied the following new and REBWHEIBEERATNE EBMER A

amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not Kk ST R R ST B h B TS 3R 5 o8

yet effective: 8l :

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments' BB RS EA BIA'

E9%

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with BB RS EA REGHEF 2 Wi
customers and the related F15%: L HES
amendments’

HKFRS 16 | eases? BB R EER HE?

£165
Amendments to Classification and measurement BB RS EA PARR R RERE 2 St
HKFRS 2 of share-based payment B2RZEFA RHNDEHE
transactions’
Amendments to Applying HKFRS 9 Financial BB RS EA BEBHHRE LS
HKFRS 4 Instruments with HKFRS 4 RAFZEFAR BAFRBEH—
Insurance Contracts’ HEEAMB AN
HAAE QTR E
BIA'
Amendments to Sale or contribution of assets BRMBREEAR0 HEERHBENT
HKFRS 10 and between an investor and its HREBGHEAR REERRLEN
HKAS 28 associate or joint venture® 28 Z BRI NV
Amendments to Disclosure initiative® BRGEAETHZ BEEHN
HKAS 7 BRI
Amendments to Recognition of deferred tax assets BREHEAE 125 RABRERRRE
HKAS 12 for unrealised losses’ EHES EREAE"
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 1 M2018F1 A1 R 2 BB ZFE
2018 HARAERK o
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 R2019F1 A1 A2 BB ZFE
2019 EAR AL o

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to 3 REEREZBBRZERBZFE

be determined AR A -

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 4 R2017F1 A1 B2 BB ZFE

2017 AR AERK o
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Application of New and Amendments to Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15
will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction
contracts” and the related Interpretations when it becomes
effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, HKFRS
15 introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

o Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Ildentify the performance obligations in the
contract

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer. Far
more prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS
15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15
in relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing
application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipates that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more
disclosures, however, the directors of the Company do
not anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 will have
ateri act on the timing and amounts of revenue
B2 756 8
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Application of New and Amendments to Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16
will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by
a customer. Distinctions of operating leases and finance
leases are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced
by a model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees,
except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for
interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of lease
modifications, amongst others. For the classification of
cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid
lease payments as investing cash flows in relation to
leasehold lands for owned use and those classified as
investment properties while other operating lease payments
are presented as operating cash flows. Under the HKFRS
16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will be
allocated into a principal and an interest portion which will
be presented as financing and financing cash flows.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an
asset and a related finance lease liability for finance lease
arrangement and prepaid lease payments for leasehold
lands where the Group is a lessee. The application of
HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes in classification
of these assets depending on whether the Group presents
right-of-use assets separately or within the same line item
at which the corresponding underlying assets would be
ey w%re owned
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Application of New and Amendments to Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease
either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS
16.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of approximately
HK$156,945,000 as disclosed in note 38. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet the
definition of a lease under HKFRS 16, and hence the Group
will recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability in respect of all these leases unless they qualify
for low value or short-term leases upon the application of
HKFRS 16. In addition, the application of new requirements
may result changes in measurement, presentation and
disclosure as indicated above. However, it is not practicable
to provide a reasonable estimate of the financial effect until
the directors of the Company complete a detailed review.

In the opinion of the directors, the application of the
other new and amendments to HKFRS issued but not yet
effective is not expected to have a material effect on the
consolidated financial statements.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (“CQO”").
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for financial instruments
that are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Shared-based
payments”, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in
HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

es are set out below.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its return.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant
components of equity including reserves and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted, after re-attribution of the relevant equity
component, and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable
to the owners of the Company. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKAS 39, when applicable,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 “Income taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee benefits”
respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
“Share-based payment” at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current
assets held for sale and discontinued operations” are
measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-
assessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
mterests in the acqwree and the falr value of the acquirer’s
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of
liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on
a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are measured at their fair value.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in
a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, the
contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-
date fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments made
against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained
during the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed
one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent
consideration that do not qualify as measurement period
adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration
is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates
and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an
asset or a liability is remeasured to fair value at subsequent
reporting dates, with the corresponding gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts
arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition
date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest
were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), and additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date
that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised
as of that date.

Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to
the financial assets and financial liabilities at the respective
fair values, the remaining balance of the purchase price
is then allocated to the other individual identifiable assets
and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the
date of purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise to
goodwill or bargain purchase gain.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see accounting policy above) less any
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Goodwill (Continued)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or
groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, which represent
the lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes and not larger an operating
segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently when there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill, and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or
group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of
an associate and a joint venture is described below.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
quire uﬁ}gnimous;oonsent of the parti naring
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of associates and joint ventures
used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate or a joint
venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture.
When the Group’s share of losses of an associate or a joint
venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate or
joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes an associate or a joint venture.
On acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in associate or a
joint venture. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets” as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs to sell) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal
of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate or joint control over a joint venture, it
is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in the
investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the
former associate or joint venture and the retained interest
is a financial asset within the scope of HKAS 39, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date
and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition in accordance with HKAS 39. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate or joint
venture at the date the equity method was discontinued,
and the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds
from disposing the relevant interest in the associate or joint
venture is included in the determination of the gain or loss
on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
or joint venture on the same basis as would be required
if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by
that associate or joint venture would be reclassified to profit
or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities,
the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit
or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity
method is discontinued.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes
an investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement
to fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues to use
the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss
the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group (such as a sale or contribution of
assets), profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate or joint venture are recognised in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are
not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities, as
described below.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time
all the following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

o the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Specifically, revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary
course of business is recognised when the respective
properties have been completed and delivered to the
buyers.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue
from operating leases is described in the accounting policy
for leasing below.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for

use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for

administrative purpose other than construction in progress,

are stated in the consolidated statement of financial

position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation

and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation and amortisation are recognised so as to
write off the cost of assets, other than construction in
progress, over their estimated useful lives and after taking
into account of their estimated residual value, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. For vessels,
the residual value of each vessel is equal to the product of
its light weight tonnage and estimate scrape rate.

Vessel components costs include the cost of major
components which are usually replaced or renewed at dry
dockings. The Group capitalises dry docking costs as they
are incurred and depreciates these costs using the straight-
line method over their estimated useful lives.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the
same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Buildings under development for future
owner-occupied purpose

When buildings are in the course of development for
administrative purposes, the amortisation of prepaid
lease payment provided during the construction period is
included as part of costs of buildings under construction.
Buildings under construction are carried at cost, less any
identified impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings
commences when they are available for use (i.e. when
they are in the location and condition necessary for them
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management).

Properties under development for sales

Properties under development for sales are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises both
the land use rights and development cost for the property.
Net realisable value takes into account the price ultimately
expected to be realised, less applicable selling expenses
and the anticipated costs to completion.

Development costs of property comprise construction
costs, borrowing costs capitalised according to the
Group’s accounting policy and directly attributable cost
incurred during the development period. On completion,
the properties are transferred to properties held for sales.

Properties held for sales

Properties held for sales are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
and recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which
is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are
reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful live less
impairment losses, if any (see the accounting policy in
respect of impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets below).

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of
goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit (“CGU”) to which the asset belongs. When
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
CGU, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of CGU for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
narket asse %rrv‘"- of’the time value of money and the
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other
other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above) (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset
is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro
rata to the other assets of the unit. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a
CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined on a
first-in, first-out basis. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the year, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of the exchange reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a
joint arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign
operation of which the retained interest becomes a financial
asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at the rate
of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in the other
comprehensive income.

56 O\

HEWOCEMN 5

FEEHBEE)
S (&)

REERBNHEEKRAKEL ZE
REBHYNREFEEHAN RS HER

MEIGAMBHRERME - AREEH
REXBZEERABDRRERPR
CATEXBRESASEZIRER
(BET) - WMARSIHIER T iRZF
B2 FHERETIRE - FRIFERNZ
FRAHRARKEAERR - RILBER
T ARARNBEERZERER - ff
EEZELZRWA) DRERFE
(RERAIER TR ATEHER) 215
BN E b 2 W a FERR o

RHEEBIEEXEHBAHERARER
BIMNEERBZ 2 #E AHESFR
REBEBIMNSEEB 2 MBARZE
B AMOHEREBINEEERBZ
KRB E T 2 s - MRERE
BRASVBEE)S  MBEARBESR
ANEEBRZEBNER R ZERLE
BMIOBEHHERER -

R 2005F 1 A1 Bk 2 B RUREEEINE
BRELEZEBAMBETSIEEZE
BRATFERABIERZBIMNEEXTS
CEENBEERE  WERERHPRZ
ERERETIRE c EEVIERZET)
FARE . s A FERR o

1101




1021

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #/EsEREBHER A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AN

wIN [ /\ﬁ%i&% Iz,f\—.l-%\f
For the year ended 31 December 2016
EE2016F 12 531 HI-FZE

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised
as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Leasing (Continued)
Leasehold land and building for own use

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases, in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element
of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “land use rights”
in the consolidated statement of financial position and is
amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income because of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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3.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of\the reporting period.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. Where current
tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for
a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Retirement benefit cost

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit scheme
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL”), available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets
and loans and receivables. The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial asset is (i) contingent consideration that may be
paid by an acquirer as part of a business combination
to which HKFRS 3 applies, (i) held for trading, or (iii) it is
designated as at FVTPL.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised
in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss includes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial assets and is included in the ‘other gains and
losses’ line item. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in note 46.

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as FVTPL, loans and
receivables or held to maturity investments.

Equity held by the Group that are classified as AFS financial
assets and are traded in an active market are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Changes
in the fair value of AFS equity investment are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated under
the heading of investments revaluation reserve. When the
investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment
loss on financial assets below).
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

AFS financial assets (Continued)

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the
dividends is established.

The fair value of AFS monetary financial assets
denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that
foreign currency and translated at the spot rate prevailing
at the end of the reporting period. The foreign exchange
gains and losses that are recognised in profit or losses are
determined based on the amortised cost of the monetary
asset. Other foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognised on other comprehensive income.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables including bank balances and cash, pledged
bank deposits, amounts due from associates, trade
debtors and bills receivable, other debtors and refundable
deposits are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the

recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For AFS equity investments, a significant on prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financing re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
debtors and bills receivable, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments
and observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade debtors and other debtors, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When
a trade debtor is considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 3. XEgBEKE)
Financial instruments (Continued) MBEIR(E)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) HESEREE)
When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired, BRI HEEMEEERESE TRE
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other AR EMmEEREERZZETIR
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in HRNEHHBEEER -
the period.
For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in PIRB R AVE M BEEMS + W
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss EREREAR - REBESBRY  mE
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively R ERE FHERBEREECSE
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was HERE  BIEREERZBERERS
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss BIEEE T AR - 2 A E R E
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the Bl g B 2 AR B T35 8 8 AR TR (E
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is LB -

reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on AFS equity investments will not be At EREREREEEETEER
reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value BaD - BEEREZEMA T EE
subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised directly MEEERNEMEEKRERER - R
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in R B Eh S o

investments revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments HMERBERKRETR

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity SEEBRBRTZEBERBRAIATIRE
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity EREZHEzMEHMEAEERRATA
in accordance with the substance of the contractual ZEEDHEAVEAESER -

arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments RATA

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a IRATATFEREENIRAE &ER
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting ZEEYHRERGESZ2ERNER o &
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group EEBTZRAT ERMBREEEITRK
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue N2 B BT S RIBHER

costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is BEARAIARNGRATADEEN Em
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss BT UARERR K Bl R o AN £ B N 4 L EE
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue B B8 BIORFHEAEGRATA
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Oher financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (other than derivative financial liabilities)
including trade creditors and bills payable, other creditors
and accrued charges, amount due to a joint venture and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition. Interest expense is recognised on an
effective interest basis.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives (including embedded derivatives which are
not closely related to the host contracts) that are not
designated as hedging instrument are classified as held for
trading.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date the derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end
of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts
are treated as separate derivatives when they meet the
definition of a derivative, their risks and characteristics are
not closely related to those of the host contracts and the
host contracts are not measured at FVTPL.
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3.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirely, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been received and receivable is recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects
the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustments to
share options reserve.

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in the share option reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in the
option reserve will be transferred to %gngg its.

e
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4.

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the management are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill relating to the sales and
distribution of LPG/oil products business are impaired
that requires estimation of the recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less cost to
sell and value in use. The Group performed impairment
assessment by estimating the value in use of the cash-
generating units in which the goodwill are attributable to.
The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. The discount rate represents
the rate that reflects the current market assessment of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the future cash flow estimates have not been
adjusted. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected or where there are revision in future estimated
cash flows due to unfavourable changes in facts and
circumstances, a material impairment loss may arise. As
at 31 December 2016, the carrying amounts of goodwill is
approximately HK$639,308,000 (2015: HK$658,648,000).
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4. Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)
Allowances for bad and doubtful debts

In assessing the recoverability of trade debtors, the
directors of the Company take into consideration the credit
history including default or delay in payments, historical
settlement records, subsequent settlements and aging
analysis of the trade debtors.

When there is objective evidence that trade receivables
may be impaired, the Group estimates the future cash
flows of those balances. The amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the assets’
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial assets’ original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed on initial recognition). Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment
loss may arise. At 31 December 2016, the carrying amount
of trade debtors was approximately HK$3,164,818,000
(2015: HK$2,477,122,000).

5. Revenue

Revenue represents the fair value of amounts received
and receivable for goods sold by the Group to outside
customers, less discount, related taxes and returns, sales
of properties and rental income of oil vessels and LPG
bottles and subcontracting fee for the year. An analysis of
the Group’s revenue for the year is as follows:

HHFRERZEERE(Z)
IR 2 0l

AR (i FE U B 5 ARk O ] (B M B - R
RAEESEREKEZRFNERT
i BREQIEHNR  BEEHECD
8% AREBERREDT -

ERREBBEERERE SR L
WA AEEMFZEEBZRKRAS
ME - BEBESEAEEERAER
VABA 75 8 B 2 IR BB FI = (B Y1 e R
TECEBRAER)RR 2 EErARARIR S
MERECTEENREEZRKREER
ER)ZEZETE - MEBRRKBESR
EERNEY  BEAREBREIEEE
£ o R2016F12A31H ' B E 5
BR X 2 BRE{E %) /5 3,164,818,000 78 7T
(2015 : 2,477,122,000787T) °

B A

WA BRAFERAEERIIAEFHE
5 o PTUCER R B W ER 2 & BRORAT
BRARENIRE) #HEMEREEH
R BIERBBAREBDER 2 AT
B -REAFE  REBZRADHN
T

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#ET FET

Sales and distribution of LPG HE kD #HBRIER 6,797,470 8,460,373
Sales of oil products Fi=k=die: e 8,689,014 6,331,336
Sales of electronic products HEBTEM 201,730 659,404
Sales of properties SHE Y% — 35,731
Rental of LPG bottles HERIELFIR 12,192 18,744
Subcontracting fee k-4 — 9,402

15,700,406

15,514,990
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6.

Segment Information

Information reported to the Chairman of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM?”), for
the purpose of resources allocation and assessment of
segment performance focuses on nature and location of
the goods being sold. These revenue streams and the basis
of the internal reports about components of the Group
are regularly reviewed by the CODM in order to allocate
resources to segments and to assess their performance.
No operating segments identified by the CODM have been
aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the
Group.

The Group currently organises into the following major
operating segments, each of which represents an operating
and reportable segment of the Group:

1. Sales and distribution of LPG — This segment derives
its revenue from selling of LPG to various customers
including industrial customers, auto-gas operators,
overseas wholesaler customers, bottled LPG end-
users, auto-gas end-users etc. The operation is
carried out in Hong Kong, PRC and Macau for both
onshore and offshore customers.

2. Qil products business — This segment derives its
revenue from selling of oil products to both wholesaler
and retailer customers and leasing of oil vessels.

3.  Sales of electronic products — This segment derives
its revenue from trading of electronic products such
as integrated circuit and mobile phones etc.

In prior years, the Group began to venture into sales and
distribution of NG industry, but still in preliminary stage,
the segment information reported below includes assets
related to the sales and distribution of NG business. The
NG business is still in development stage and no revenue is
contributed during the year.

In December 2016, the Group acquired a technical know-
how for production of charcoals through acquisition of two
companies incorporated and operated in the PRC. The
Group will be engaged in manufacturing and distribution
of charcoals in year 2017. The segment information
ep ".wﬁ"“" des assets and liabilities related to the
. i yution of char D Bl
TS 7456 N
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6. Segment Information (Continued) 6. H¥EBIHE)
Segment revenues and results SEBARER
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and UTNERERSEREESEAII D Z K
results by reportable and operating segment. EEBAREEST -
For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HF2016F 12A31 HILEE
Sales and Oil Sales of
distribution products electronic
of LPG business products Consolidated
e
e X BFER fRe
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FRET FREIT FRET
Segment revenue DEBA 6,809,662 8,689,014 201,730 15,700,406
Segment profit Ak bigil 773,649 201,167 10,061 984,877
Share of profits of joint ventures  HEA &£ H 3,807 - = 3,807
Share of losses of associates DIHE R R EE (945) = = (945)
776,511 201,167 10,061 987,739
Other income HabUg A 49,385
Central administration costs R E IR AR (48,994)
Gain on disposal of available HEJHEEREZ
for sale investment Fis 12,874
Directors’ emoluments i (10,542)
Changes in fair values of THEMBIARTE
derivative financial instruments 2 2% 18,966
Finance costs BE A (180,087)

Profit before taxation B A ALV ] 829,341
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6. Segment Information (Continued) 6. SEBEHEGE)
Segment revenues and results (Continued) SBBARER(Z)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HE2015F 12831 AILEE
Sales and QOil Sales of
distribution products electronic
of LPG business products  Consolidated
HE R HHE
SRR R EFEM fRe
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHET
Segment revenue DA 8,488,519 6,331,336 659,404 15,479,259
Segment profit DR 799,457 144,905 21,345 965,707
Share of profits of joint ventures D EA & EEF 2,631 = = 2,631
Share of profits of associates k& A T A 13,009 = = 13,009
815,097 144,905 21,345 981,347
Other income HA 110,808
Profit from property investment Bl Z ¥R E & #
and development in the PRC )& A 18,354
Central administration costs R B RKAR (69,734)
Loss on disposal of available for H&EA[fHERE 2
sale investment g (17,898)
Directors’ emoluments o (8,479
Changes in fair values of THEBMEIARTE
derivative financial instruments 2 2 (33,690)
Finance costs BE KA (194,953)
Profit before taxation B A Al v A 795,755
The accounting policies of the reportable segments are EROoBEr e RERRNEFBRMEES
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described 22 REHRR  EXFIE®/RZIAED
in note 3. All of the segment revenue reported above is BUTABHKBINS RS - & &1 FE B
from external customers, joint ventures or associates. BT o DEIRFIEZ D ERD AT E
Segment profit represents the profit earned by each WA~ PEYELEREEES 26
segment without allocation of interest income, profit from - AREBEA - HERHBEIRE
property investment and development in the PRC, central ZHE(EE)  EE/e - (TEMBET

administration costs, gain (loss) on disposal of available- BANFE 2 R &k
for-sale i directors’ emoluments, changes in fair o

i

gosts. ] .
HH6 ¢\

HEWOCEMN 5



181

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #/EsEREBHER A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre g R M ot

For the year ended 31 December 2016

EE2016F 12 531 HI-FZE

6. Segment Information (Continued) 6. HEMEHEE)
Segment revenues and results (Continued) SBBARER(Z)
The total reportable segment revenue can be reconciled BERSFRAFTHEGEERZREME
to the revenue as presented in consolidated statement of HY KT 25 2 WALRRIOT :

profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000
TF#ET FET
Total reportable segment revenue @2y U A 15,700,406 15,479,259
Add: Revenue from property investment 77 - B ¥EIRE K&
and development in the PRC BERTES ZKRA — 35,731
Revenue as presented in the meBEmkAMEERER
consolidated statement of profit Fr 2% 2 WA
or loss and other comprehensive
income 15,700,406 15,514,990
The Group has a subsidiary engages in the property RNREFH 7 —BNBATIRPEKEEYE
investment and development in the PRC and the revenue WERER W WBEBEFBAEEAHNKAD
generate from this business is included as the consolidated BIEANEFBNGZSWA © KB AT
revenue of the Group. The operating result and other EEEE N HMMEERN T EEEE
financial information of this subsidiary are not reviewed RS EZ=R . PIEE RS RKIE
by the CODM for the purpose of resources allocation and P4 o

performance assessments.
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6. Segment Information (Continued) 6. HEMEHEE)
Segment assets and liabilities SHEEERAR
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and UTRIEEENREDZAEBEER
liabilities by operating segment: BEI
Segment assets PEEE

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$’000
F&iT T
Sales and distribution of LPG HE R HRIER 3,968,170 4,333,157
Sales and distribution of NG HE R D HRAR 158,696 148,626
Oil products business JH mh T 5,140,369 3,177,649
Sales of electronic products HEBTEM 213,500 98,660
Manufacturing and distribution of BIE R 5 SHARIR
charcoals 102,519 —
Total segment assets BAKEEE 9,583,254 7,758,092
Available for sale investment Al ERE — 37,770
Deferred tax assets RER IS EE 352 3,197
Pledged bank deposits B ITER 112,151 1,108,142
Bank balances and cash IRITEB AR E 1,857,597 1,569,937
Derivative financial instruments TEMBIA 45 12,378
Properties under development for sales {3 & ET W% 388,665 211,959
Properties held for sales HFERFEYHE 147,670 157,754
Other unallocated assets HEmARD IR EE 454,394 545,736
Consolidated assets meBE 12,544,128 11,404,965

HHhG ¢

HEWOCEMN 5
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6. Segment Information (Continued) 6. HIEBEHE)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PHERERARE)
Segment liabilities SHBER
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Sales and distribution of LPG HE M HBIER 912,102 462,493
Sales and distribution of NG HERDHRAR 123 —
Oil products business M ER 1,155,596 384,021
Sales of electronic products HEBETEM 114 120
Manufacturing and distribution of BUE R D AR
charcoals 1 _
Total segment liabilities BMOKEEE 2,067,936 846,634
Derivative financial instruments PTEFBTA 1,961 25,785
Tax liabilities nBaE 109,767 60,031
Deferred tax liabilities BELEFBEE 99,856 116,012
Borrowings EE 4,292,541 4,948,568
Other unallocated liabilities Hit KRB AE 31,122 19,319
Consolidated liabilities maaE 6,603,183 6,016,349
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and ETHERBEERSEBRSIERM

allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to reportable segments (other
than available for sale investment, deferred tax assets,
pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash,
derivative financial instruments, and certain deposits
paid, certain other receivables, properties under
development for sales, properties held for sales and
certain property, plant and equipment); and

° all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments
(other than current and deferred tax liabilities,
borrowings, derivative financial instruments and
certain other payables).

The Group has allocated goodwill to the relevant segments
as segment assets.
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6. Segment Information (Continued) 6. HEMEHEE)
Other segment information Htt > BEHE
For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HE2016FE 12831 AILEE

Manufacturing
Sales and Sales of Oil Sales of and
distribution distribution products electronic distribution

of LPG of NG business products of charcoals  Unallocated Consolidated
HERAR HERSH #He  RERZR
.14 Pt | g1 4] irER AR 3K
HK$'000 HK8'000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT AT AT AT AT

Amounts included in the measure s EAERFIF S FE
of segment profit or segment ERTAZEE:
assets:

Addition to nan-current assets AEEREE

(Note) (i) 353959 7,568 321,982 - 100417 118,945 902,821
Depreciation of property, plant and 1% - K& R3REZ

equipment kS 79,817 - 18,703 - - 1,348 99,868
Amortisation of other intangiole M EFEES

assets 24,501 - 17,120 - - - 41,621
Amortisation of land use rights ThEREER 1987 - 1015 - - 7,49 10,498
Amortisation of prepaid lease BRBNRET RS

payments for coast 806 - - - - - 806
Loss on disposal and written off of  HERH EHE - #2%

property, plant and equipment Rz &R 2,748 - 2,546 - - - 5,204

756 -\
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6. Segment Information (Continued)

Other segment information (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015

6. HEMEHEE)

HthS@|EHE)

#HFE2015F 12531 HILEF

Sales and Sales (o] Sales of
distribution of distribution  products electronic
of LPG of NG business products Unallocated Consolidated
BERSH $eE
ERAR HmEE EFES £2E Al
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Amounts included in the FENBRNENEE
measure of segment profit ERTAZEE
or segment assets:
Addition to non-current assets B IERHEE
(Note) (i) 42,327 144,751 407,699 - 27,099 621,876
Depreciation of property, plant ~ #1% « 8 RkfE 2
and equipment il 81,787 - 5,668 - 1,132 88,587
Amortisation of other intangible  E{t & &
assets 26,284 - 17,120 - - 43,404
Amortisation of land use rights £ 365 FR & 4 &5 2,617 - 1,083 - 7,106 10,806
Amortisation of prepaid lease  BFENHAETIESH
payments for coast 860 - - - - 860
Loss on disposal and written ~ HE RN E - #E
off of property, plant and REER
equipment 4,587 - 45 - - 4,632

M SERBEETBREMB A RELER

Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments and
deferred tax assets.
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6. Segment Information (Continued) 6. HIEBEHEE)
Geographical information HmEZHE
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong (country AEEZREEBUNRNEB(EEEE
of domicile), Macau and the PRC. Hol&) - SBPIRAE o
Information about the Group’s revenue from external REBEIIBEPRAER AR FEE 2
customers is presented based on customers’ location of MNEZ -  REBFERBEE 2 ERIA
the operations. Information about the Group’s non-current EEMBMNEZYWOT
assets is presented based on the geographical location of
the assets:

Revenue from external

customers Non-current assets
SrEERIA FEREEE
2016 2015 2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TF#&T FET F#ET FET
Hong Kong B
(country of domicile) (FEBLEME) 3,421,432 3,867,146 668,102 666,571
The PRC =8
(excluding Hong Kong) (TEEEB) 8,096,377 7,864,302 3,343,430 2,828,316
Other countries H xR 4,182,597 3,783,542 2,030 1,846
Total BE 15,700,406 15,514,990 = 4,013,562 3,496,733
Note: Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets and Bt ERBEETBRBRECHBEE R
available for sale investment. HEERE -
Information about major customers EREEERZEH
Revenue from a customer contributing over 10% of the R2016F ' L TEFEMASEHEE
total sales of the Group in year 2016 and corresponding EEI10% A EZ WA - K 20154F 2 1
figure in 2015 are as follows: R :
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
Customer A (Note) BPEAHE) 1,938,000 2,068,000
Note: Revenue related

to the LPG business. Kt  BEBRIEREEZIA

B2 ) s

s iR A ‘ai'_-n\ "
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7. Other Gains and Losses and Other Income

7. HttFisRGREEMBEA

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000
TF#EiT FET
Change in fair values of derivative PTEMBETARNTE 2 HE
financial instruments 18,966 (33,690)
Gain (loss) on disposal of available for & At H &R E RS (EE)
sale investment 12,874 (17,898)
Net exchange loss (Note) bE W B8 F R (it ) (154,098) (292,008)
Other gains and losses HApris K &S (122,258) (343,596)
Interest income on pledged RMB bank 2K A RIEIRITIEK
deposits FEWA 20,081 87,866
Interest income FEWBA 33,218 22,942
Others HAh, 10,226 2,333
Other income H YA 63,525 113,141

Note: The amount included net exchange loss arising from pledged
RMB bank deposits for United Stated Dollars (“USD”)
borrowings amounting to approximately HK$12,627,000
(2015: HK$123,453,000).

8. Finance Costs

Mt eBEeREAFET(ET]) ERMmK
W2 ARBRITGERMELEZIERE
8% 8 #912,627,0008 (2015 :
123,453,000/87T) ©

8. MBERAE

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Interests on bank trust receipts loans SRITIEUBUEE TR K
and other loans EMfERZFE 54,625 69,004
Interests on bank loans pledged with AN REESRITE ZR IR 2
RMB bank deposits RITIEFZ S 16,446 51,775
Interests on bank borrowings wholly BREFERNEHER
repayable within five years RITIE I ZF S 109,016 74,174
180,087 194,953

11T
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9.

Taxation 9.

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
represents:

RIAZH

KRB B M EMEmBERAHEGR
PR EEE

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Current Tax BN ERR 18

Hong Kong B 3,635 =
Other regions in the PRC R B E At b [ 81,484 40,640
85,119 40,640

Deferred tax (note 33) EXEFIR (A7 33)
Current year REFEFEAE (5,938) (3,857)
79,181 36,783

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years. For the year
ended 31 December 2015, there was no provision for
Hong Kong Profits Tax had been made in the consolidated
financial statements as the Company and other subsidiaries
had no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong or the
assessable profits were wholly absorbed by tax losses
brought forward.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC
subsidiaries is 25%.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
EE2016F 12 531 HI-FZE

9.

Taxation (Continued)

9.

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

2016 2015

WIRSTH (#2)

AREFZBRAXHA RS 8as REM
2HEHNBERZFHADENERAT

HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FEIT
Profit before taxation ik F2 BiT Vs A 829,341 795,755
Tax at the domestic tax rate 25% BT 25% EJr*éZﬁIE 207,335 198,939
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ~ AR S B 2 T is &
for tax purpose 94,366 88,169
Tax effect of income not taxable for BARMIMAZ RIEE
tax purpose (41,582) (43,968)
Tax effect of profit which are exempted %% F 2 Fi 7% 52 &
from tax (201,375) (182,329)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised  RIERMRISE B 2 TS 2 26,396 27,8083
Utilisation of deductible temporary &) A Jo B AR TERR 2 B) HR B B
differences previously not recognised MEERE (1,841) (3,392)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not B 4E Bl RIER 2 BB &8
recognised (19,523) (50,772)
Effect of different tax rate of group AEBEERBNF IDWPZEWJ
entities operating in jurisdictions BERELZTRAME 2 FE
other than PRC 15,405 2,333
Taxation for the year AREEHIA 79,181 36,783

The domestic tax rate (which is the PRC enterprise income
tax rate) in the jurisdiction where the operation of the Group

is substantially based is used.

Details of the deferred tax asset and liabilities are set out in
note 33.

ERZRER/AEETELEHEER

@A 2 ANt F 2R (BN AR B (b S AT S R f
) o

EERBEEN B EFIBRNMESS o
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10. Profit Before Taxation 10. BB#EIEF

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FETL
Profit before taxation has been arrived B %4 AT K 2 H1k (G A)
at after charging (crediting): T31EE :
Amortisation of land use rights T AR R B (BT
(included in administrative expenses) 17X HA) 10,498 10,806
Amortisation of prepaid lease AETANHEFIRE
payments for coast (included in cost  (BIEERERARA)
of sales) 806 860
Amortisation of other intangible assets E b 24 E#E S (B35
(included in selling and distribution EHERDHEZHA)
expenses) 41,621 43,404
Auditor’s remuneration ZE BN € 4,228 4,130
Depreciation of property, plant and M - MR RBEITE
equipment 99,868 88,587
Loss on disposal and written off of s RMEEE - KRR
property, plant and equipment B =) oE 5,294 4,632
Minimum lease payments under WMAE Ry HELH
operating leases for offices, oll B mut &L 4
vessels, leasehold land and LPG =EHEE
station 41,208 37,274
Gross rental income from leasing of HEMAEYE - HE
office premises, leasehold land and T REE RS
warehouses WA (2,309) (1,518)
Less: Direct operating expenses R BREEETH 254 88
(2,055) (1,430)
Staff costs 1B B AR
Directors’ fees (note 11) sE8e(WF11) 330 330
Directors’ other emoluments EEHMME
(note 11) (HtaE11) 10,212 8,149
Contributions to retirement benefits % 108,000/5 7T
schemes excluding HK$108,000 (2015 : 105,000/&7T)
(2015: HK$105,000) included in Bt AEZHE ZRIK
directors’ emoluments & F Bl R 10,126 6,171
Staff salaries and bonus BTH&hES 121,534 111,339
142,202 125,989

46 N
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EZ 2016 F 1231 HIEFE

11. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments 11. EFERFETHARMS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 9 (2015: 9) Bk ER FONM(2015: 9 ) EE K
directors and chief executive were as follows: FETBRAESAZMEMT

Executive Directors Independent Non-Executive Directors
#iEs BUFanES
Chiu i Cheung Chan

Shum Shum Sing Kwan Yuk

Siu Chun, Chung, i Hung Wai, Xu
Hung Lawrence CenZiniu  Raymond i i Anthony  Benedict ~ Mingshe  Total 2016
g 7 B I} BEE ORER  BEit &l

HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKSOO0  HKSO00 ~ HKSO00  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
féT  FET  FET  FET  FET AT FET  FET  TET TET

Fees e - - - - - - 130 100 100 30
Other emoluments Efhe
Salaries and other benefits e RAREH 3,000 850 1520 1,800 2205 709 = = - {0104
Contrbutons fo retiement benefs  BAEHETEIAS:
schemes 18 18 18 18 18 18 - - - 108
Total emoluments Heas 3,018 868 1,538 1818 2,243 i 130 100 100 10542
Executive Directors Independent Non-Executive Directors
§i7ES Bujings
Chiu S Cheung Chan
Shum Shum Sing Ka Kwan Yuk
Siu Chun, Chung, Fai Wang Hung Wi, Xu

Hung  Lawence  CenZnu  Raymond Brian Jan  Anthony  Benedict  Mingshe  Total 2016
L)% 2 A @R BR 12 FHE REE BAEE AU
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS(000
fhr  fEr  THr  TEr T T fEr TEr TRt TEn

Fees g = = = = = = 130 100 100 30
Other emoluments e

Salaries and other benefits ﬁ 7 R 3,000 600 1,107 1,500 1,381 456 - - - 8,044

Contrbutons to refiement beneffs  BAEHETEAR:

schemes 18 15 18 18 18 18 - - - 106

Total emoluments feas 3018 615 1,125 1518 1,399 : 414 130 100 100 8479
No director or chief executive waived any emoluments PRRAEANTEESRETMME -
during both years.
The executive directors’ remuneration shown above were P E s HITEEMEe T EENARE
mainly for their services in connection with the management EWEANNTRANEERERL 2R °
of the affairs of the Company and the Group.
The independent non-executive directors’ remuneration P E B I IERTTESNE T EM
shown above were mainly for their services as director of RNEZEANANRES 2R °

the Company.

Mr. Shum Siu Hung is also the Chief Executive of the =
ugmw“’CompéﬁWan his. emoluments dlsclosed b lude & 8 -
those f@Lsenug;ﬁ. ‘dereﬁmg as cutive: D
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EZ 2016 F 1231 HIEFE

12. Employees’ Emoluments 12. EEM&
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the REBSH=HATEIEIA(2015
Group, three (2015: three) are directors of the Company SRLARRFRIES - A S B &N Lali#
whose emoluments are included in the above disclosures. BEERA - H5p2471(2015 247 ) 1@ Bl
The emolument of the remaining two (2015: two) individuals AT ZEHEHTENT ¢

are disclosed as follows:

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Salaries and allowances e MR 4,535 3,231
Contributions to retirement benefit RRERIFF 2R
schemes 36 36
4,571 3,267
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Their emoluments were within the EMe N AT EE
following bands
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 £ 1,500,000
BT — 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 £ 2,000,000
BT — 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 £ 2,500,000
BT 2 _
No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors NEFBWEMES N M FERNA LTI
or the above individual as an inducement to join or upon e (EARGEEMASMAKREREZ
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. 2 BRE) - IERKREBAL 2 E -

76 ¢
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13. Dividend 13. &R
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEIT FET
2015 final dividend recognised as FABRRBDIKL 20155
distribution during the year — RERR S — k2.5 Bl
HK2.5 cents (2014 final dividend: (2014 FRERE. - 6.6/81L)
HK6.6 cents) per share 37,010 97,706
No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders FR2016 6 I Ik 3% 5k 38 o8 Ik 3 & fa]
of the Company during 2016, nor any dividend been RE - BWEHARUAR - MEERIRE
proposed since the end of the reporting period (2015: EAIAR S (2015 ¢ &HQJ%Z%/%\E2-5
dividend HK2.5 cents per share amounts to approximately Al - #937,010,000787T) °
HK$37,010,000).
14. Earnings Per Share 14. BERT
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share $QEZ%EAE{EH§%$&%%§
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the MR T B E

following data:

2016 2015

HK$°000 HK$°000
FET T#ET

Earnings z2%
Earnings for the purposes of basic and 5T & & J& & 7 K #58 2 7l 7y
diluted earnings per share (profit for KA B (EKRARER A
the year attributable to the owners of  EIEER %))
the Company) 749,397 756,643
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14. Earnings Per Share (Continued) 14. BSEERH(E)
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&iT FET
Number of shares EHn&A
Weighted average number of ordinary 5T & &I EAZ T Frik A
shares for the purpose of basic 2 L BT InRE 9
earnings per share 1,480,398,216 1,480,398,216
Effect of dilutive ordinary shares BEEs TRk o o8
Share options e AR N/A XEH 17,514,459
Weighted average number of ordinary st EERESEEFIFTEA 2 X
shares for the purpose of diluted AR hNHE 192K
earnings per share N/A FEH 1,497,912,675
No diluted earnings per share is presented as there are no REZE2016F 12 A31 HIEHME - AR
potential ordinary shares in issue during the year ended 31 MERFERNETEEROERN @ HES
December 2016. P EGREERF) -
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15. Property, Plant and Equipment 15. ¥ BRI

Pumps and
Gasandoil  equipment Furniture,
Construction Leasehold Plant and plant and forgas fixtures and Motor

in progress Buildings  improvements  machinery facilities andoil  equipment vehicles Ol vessels Total
FERHER i i RE
§% HRHARE  HIEREN 1] R it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET

CoST A

At 1 January 2015 Ro015%1 A1R 7051 13,150 153% 3% 148901 143159 20962 08T 17A7 213032
Addtions AE 15,40 - a - 90 6414 1400 9,002 - 33,146
Disposals and wite-off HERMH - (1,590 (299) = {4,075 (.987) (1,055 (6,53 ) (16,585)
Exchange realignment Ei#E (1,101 (] (o04) 9 @878y @7 (965) (23%) - (0079
At 31 December 2015 Bo015E12A31R 21,550 3,142 14,863 3165 136694 42188 20,362 500 T80 2046001
Avising on acquiston of RiEGEAHELA

property, plant and Nz BER

equipment through AEMEE

purchase of subsidiares (W)

(Note 34) - - - 537 - - - - - 537
Additons i 209,380 = 4 a 168 5507 1328 1050 418656 86447
Disposals and wrie-off it - - - - (2,790} (2,132) (58) (3,120) (599 (156%)
Exchange relignment [ (12,568) (250 (208) (204 (16377) (25,858) (1,00) (2426) (18873 (140,043
At 31 Decemboer 2016 R016%12A31H 218342 36,640 14703 365 1MO68 309460 0627 55024 G6O450 275039
DEPRECIATION AND fTERAE

IMPARMENT
At1 Janvary 2015 Ro015E1R1H = 2,719 4628 %0 238,802 176310 13,322 27,641 3.969 197431
Proviced for the year EpifE - 1,531 1550 164 1H547 5,117 1718 713 4821 88,567
Eiminated on disposalsand R E R RS

wrte-off - (#70 (299) - {1002 (1270) ) (091 (]
Exchange realignment S - (1299 %) 64 (10489 (1070g) (662) (1384 - (24,627)
At 31 December 2015 0158 12A31A - 21476 5,857 1080 20818 189512 13,501 28,305 8789 530438
Providec for the year Emife - 2,340 1728 154 56,579 2,134 1614 1013 5,306 99,868
Fiminated on disposalsand AL ERHEE A

wrte-off = = = = (599) (1,699) ] (2,680) (4,926) (0,047)
Exchange realignment EifE - (1,480) 29) (76) (13,686) (12,599) (764) (1,476) 0] (30,119)
At 31 December 2016 B016%E12 8318 = 23% 1,556 158 M58 198,349 14,402 31,162 065 50046
CARRYING VALUES Ef
At 31 December 2016 12016F 124318 218,342 14,304 T4 27 112550 20if 6,225 U762 560285 216009

1,086,126 230,34 2,641 1,506,688

LT
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15. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 15. %  MBREE®E (2
The above items of property, plant and equipment, except PRIEZETIZNN - LAz - SRR E
for construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight- HE  DETIEMNEAEGENE -

line basis at the following rates per annum.

Buildings Over the term of the lease g R A F H]

Leasehold 20% to 33'/;% HEYERE 20% %= 33'/,%
improvements

Plant and machinery 4% to 33"/,% as MR 4% % 33'/,%

Gas and oil plant and ~ Over the shorter of the lease RERBERS REFEAERLH
facilities term of coast use right and it} i AR 4 FE HASK

land use right, or 25 years 5 FH A

Pumps and equipment  10% to 33"/,% REHBZARE 10% =33",%
for gas and oil M &

Furniture, fixtures and ~ 15% to 16°/,% B BEBRRER  15%E16%:%
equipment &

Motor vehicles 16°/:% to 33"/,% R E 16%/:% %= 33'/,%

Qil vessels 3% to 11% aiiie 3% Z=11%

The buildings are situated outside Hong Kong, in the PRC. BF A RFE(FARIHN) °

The gas and oil plant under construction are situated TERESRUME T AR B (B BE ) ©

outside Hong Kong, in the PRC.

LPG bottles with carrying values of approximately T AR R &% A BR EE 491,887,000
HK$1,887,000 (2015: HK$2,552,000) included in gas 7t (2015 : 2,552,000 70 ) 2 RIL R
pumps and equipment are leased to customers for BOARBEABETER - MELAHES
short term to generate rental income. The rental income WA > RELZ=2016F 12 31 BIEFE
generated was approximately HK$12,192,000 (2015: FrEA 2 e WAL A12,192,000 57T
HK$18,744,000) for the year ended 31 December 2016. (2015 : 18,744,000787T) °

-
{
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16. Land Use Rights

16. T b {E A&

2016 2015

HK$°000 HK$'000
FAET FETL
The Group’s land use rights comprise:  AREE 2 + i A
Land use rights in Hong Kong REE 2 b AR 25,498 26,345
Land use rights outside Hong Kong, R E(FERIN 2
in the PRC 3 A 395,587 251,967
421,085 278,312
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BEHREHNINT:
Non-current asset EMENE E 401,633 266,611
Current asset MENEE 19,452 11,701
421,085 278,312

In December 2016, the Group acquired a land in the PRC
from the PRC Government for construction of LPG bottling
plant. As at 31 December 2016, the carrying value of
these land use right in respect of which the Group was
not yet granted formal title of ownership amounted to
approximately HK$168,935,000 (2015: Nil). In the opinion
of directors of the Company, the absence of formal
title of these land use rights does not impair the value
of the relevant properties of the Group. The director of
the Company also believe that formal title of these land
use rights will be granted to the Group in due course. In
November 2015, the Group acquired a land in Hong Kong
and leased to an independent third party, the rental income
generated by this piece of land in year ended 31 December
2016 amounted to approximately HK$1,581,000 (2015:
HK$69,000). Both lands are carried at historical cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses items.

The Group acquired a leasehold land in Zhuhai (the “Land”)
in year 2011. The size of the Land is 15,750 square meters.
The Group is developing half of the Land to construct a
property for owner ocoupled purpose and the remainlng

17l o piope

M2016F 12 A » AEE P BEBTRE

— R EN T A EERERTR
B> 720164F 12 A31H " KEE W
RERTEAHEE L ERAENR
1B 49 168,935,000 7T (2015 : ) °
RABEERE  ZELHFRELR
ESEXAGERTTZEEASEERES
MERNEE - ARRIEERE %EL
Ho(6E AR BY IE 2V B R SR B R R 4%
FARER - R2015F 11 A XEEE

— RSN LI HITHETFT—BYFE=
B REIE2016F 12 A31 B IEEE -
Z I EE 2 S WAL 1,581,000 %
76(2015 : 69,0007 7T ) R L ih 15
RELEKAR R R R EEIE
HEJIER ©

AEBMP 2011 FREB—BLURKEZ
MEt((ZEH])  ZLHmEmES
15,750 F 75K -« REBEEERZ M2
—FNEBE-BREBAWE BT
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17. Prepaid Lease Payments for Coast

17. BEWEFAHEERE

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&iT FAET
The Group’s prepaid lease payments REE 2 HFEMHEHERE
for coast comprise: BIE:
Coast outside Hong Kong, in the PRC ~ R B (FHABINEE 2 B 6,752 8,036
Analysed for reporting purposes as: EE2FHREMDIT:
Non-current asset EMENEE 5,983 7,214
Current asset MEVEE 769 822
6,752 8,036

The prepaid lease payments for coast represent the rights

BEENEEREDERKEZBFE

to use coast in Zhuhai ranging from 20 years to 28 years, FA# - FR1999F1 A1 BH - HEH
starting from 1 January 1999. NF20FE28%F -
18. Goodwill 18. W&
HK$’000
FET

COST BN
At 1 January 2015 R2015F1 A1 H 668,139
Exchange realignment kS (9,491)
At 31 December 2015 R20154F 12 A31 H 658,648
Exchange realignment kS (19,340)
At 31 December 2016 R20164F 12 A31 H 639,308
CARRYING VALUES fRmEE
At 31 December 2016 R20164F 12 A31 H 639,308
At 31 December 2015 MR2015F 12 A31 H 658,648

756
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18. Goodwill (Continued) 18. @ (&)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill set out
above has been allocated to ten (2015: ten) individual
CGUs in segments in relation to the sales and distribution
of LPG and oil products segment.

The basis of the recoverable amounts of the above CGUs
and their major underlying assumptions are summarised
below:

The recoverable amounts of these CGUs have been
determined based on a value in use calculation. That
calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering 5-year period,
and discount rate at 10% (2015: 9%) for LPG segment,
16% (2015: 18%) for oil products business segment. The
cash flows for the financial budgets are using a steady
decline/growth rate ranging from -10% to 5% (2015: -5% to
5%) for a 5 year period. The cash flows beyond this 5-year
period are extrapolated using a zero percent growth rate.
Other key assumptions for the value in use calculations
related to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which
included budgeted sales and gross margin, such estimation
is based on the unit’s past performance and management’s
expectations for the market development.

SBERNANE  EXFHEHZEEE S
B2 = 101&(2015 : 1018) AR E D
HERERE AR EERNBESELS

fiL o

NERGEABNZA MR EE
METZMEBAREBENT

SRS EA BN 2 AT E &5 T iRE
FREBEFELET % TEERAE
BEBHEZS FTHMBEEERY 2]
emEEARBRERD EEE10%
(2015 : 9%) « M ¥ » FIT ] X
16% (2015 : 18% )T E - BIETEE R 2
REREUSFHZIBE B MIEER
N F-10% % 5% (2015:—5% = 5%) H
B o L5 FHE RS RENTHEREEX
HH - ARG RERA S REERAE
BEREEzHEMEERIABIEBEHEE
REFE  ZETRBEEMZBERE
BEREREEETZMISREMmMED -
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19. Other Intangible Assets

19. RthEfE R E

Distribution Business Leasing  Technical  Customer
network license agreements know-how relationships
2HPR ERUE HEGR it ERME
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET FHET FHT FHET FAT
COoSsT B&
At 1 January 2015 R2015%1 A 18 370,146 29,754 15,456 - 102,722 518,078
Exchange adjustments RS (21,358) (1,516) (892) - - (23,761)
At 31 December 2015 2015512318 348,793 28,238 14,564 - 102,722 494,317
Exchange adjustments RS (22,297) (1,583) (931) 604 - (24,207)
Arising on acquisition of BREANBAR

intangible assets through WEEVEEMES

purchase of subsidiaries (Hiz#34)

(note 34) - - - 99,880 - 99,880
At 31 December 2016 R2016%€12 A31H 326,496 26,655 13,633 100,484 102,722 569,990
AMORTISATION HBREE

AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2015 R2015F1 510 73,293 11,609 15,456 - - 100,358
Charge for the year FAZI 24,426 1,858 = = 17,120 43,404
Exchange adjustments & Ji A (5,311) (552) (892) - - (6,755)
At 31 December 2015 R2015612A31H 92,408 12,915 14,564 - 17,120 137,007
Charge for the year ENZH 22,901 1,600 — — 17,120 41,621
Exchange adjustments B 5 A% (6,957) (676) (931) = = (8,564)
At 31 December 2016 12016512 A31 8 108,352 13,839 13,633 - 34,240 170,064
CARRYING VALUES BEE
At 31 December 2016 2016512318 218,144 12,816 — 100,484 68,482 399,926
At 31 December 2015 R2015%12A31 8 256,385 15,323 — - 85,602 357,310

756
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19. Other Intangible Assets (Continued) 19. HtWEmEEZ)
The distribution network, the business license, the leasing DAL  BEHR HEBRELEF
agreements and customer relationship were acquired from FRDEEBEHPRE=ZFEA - &
third parties in business combinations. The technical know- iTE B EANB R &S -

how was acquired through purchase of subsidiaries.

The above intangible assets have definite useful lives. Such L EERERAFEAFH - 25
intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over BB EABE A AT B 5s

the following periods:

Distribution network 10 to 15 years o EH AR 4K 10E 154
Business license 5 to 15 years &R 5Z& 154
Leasing agreements 5to 10 years ME W= 5ZF104F
Technical know-how 10 years i &0 8% 104F
Customer relationships 6 years Y=ol 6F
20. Interests in Associates 20. REAFERZ
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$°000
FEIT FET

Ny
N

Cost of interests in unlisted associates 3 _- Tl & A RI4E 5 Ak AN

At 1 January ®w1HA1H 15,960 71,766
New associate incorporated RS 2 Bt N &) - 8,986
Share of net losses and other DG F A B R SRR R A

comprehensive expenses net of FEHXH(BEREFAR

dividend for the year B) (8,221) (8,360)
Refund of the registered capital from — R A ER E ]

an associate (Note a) BAR(Htita) = (61,432)

At 31 December n12 A31H 7,739 15,960
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20. Interests in Associates (Continued) 20. BiBAFESRK (&)

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group had
interests in the following significant associates:

M20164 K2015F12 A31 8 -
BERATEZBHENRFAER

Country of Principal
incorporation/ place of
registration  operation
e AR 3L/
BRER

Proportion of nominal value
of issued capital held
by the Group
FRAMBERT
REEELH
2016 2015

Class of
shares held

Form of

Name of entity entity Principal activity

Ri2zn

Bk IREENE mRRAEH FRED

Sinopec NewOcean Energy  Incorporated ~ PRC PRC Registered - 49 Sales and distribution
Company Limited capital of energy
(“Sinopec NewQcean”) products
(Note a)

PRILTGREERAT  BEfiRu  $E i &R HERDHEERER
(ThA{LmE]) (fita)

HaEMeERERAA  Incorporated  PRC PRC Registered 50 50 Sales and distribution
([3xBHEHE]) (Note b) capital of energy

products

WEATSHEERAR  BHEfiKy  PE i &R HERDHEERER
(ThaBIE ) (Wito)

Notes: Bt -
(@ On 10 April 2013, NewOcean Baifuyang Investment (@) 201344108 » & B & it 5K

Company Limited (“NBIC”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of MZARREZEMNBARNEEET

the Company incorporated in the PRC, entered into an
agreement with China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation
(“Sinopec”) to establish a company. On 1 September 2013,
Sinopec NewOcean was established. Sinopec NewOcean
had a registered capital of RMB100,000,000, of which
51% is owned by Sinopec and 49% is owned by NBIC.
The principal business of Sinopec NewOcean includes: (i)
motor vehicle refueling in Guangzhou for LPG vehicles; (i)
motor vehicle refueling in Guangzhou for liquefied natural
gas (“LNG”) vehicles, which will be added in stages to the
business; (iii) sales of non-petrol chemical consumer item
with sales support from Sinopec’s chain of petrol filling
stations; (iv) sales and distribution of bonded oil products for
marine bunkering; and (v) sales and distribution of bottled
LPG.

456

HEWOCEMN 5

KEBRAR([EEFIRE ) EHFEH
BRIETRHAERAR(H AL
M KA E QA - R20134F
9B1B 68 ARFA{LHFEBE K
Yo RALRFEZAMERAAEARE
100,000,0007T * E#F51%H R Ak
e MA% B BB FIREHES - &
BEFEBZ EZEBBE  (\REMNA
WAL BT EHEITRENG ¢ (i) B E M
BRIERAR(BRIERAR]) REE
TAENR  ZEBBIBEIMAZE
TSR s (i) FE P AL 2 EE S N b 2 38
EXHET HEFAHLELIHEER
(iv)$HE o8 EIRRBASR &
(V) SHE D HERERER -
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20.

Interests in Associates (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

On 17 October 2013, Sinopec NewOcean entered into
a subcontracting agreement with NBIC (“Subcontracting
Agreement”) to subcontract from NBIC all the 17 LPG
refuelling stations in Guangzhou currently owned and
operated by the subsidiary of NBIC, Lianxin Energy
Development Company Limited (“Lianxin Energy”). Under the
terms of the Subcontracting Agreement, the subcontracting
period of Lianxin Energy’s business will be 10 years
commenced from 1 November 2013 (“Subcontracting
Period”) during which Sinopec NewOcean will pay a
subcontracting fee of RMB10,000,000 to NBIC each
year and the Group is allowed to charge Lianxin Energy
information and technical services fee up to RMB48,300,000
each year. In addition, as set out in the Subcontracting
Agreement, the Group will be the sole supplier of LPG for
Sinopec NewOcean.

On 30 October 2015, Sinopec and NBIC entered into a
termination agreement to terminate the subcontracting
agreement with effect from 1 November 2015. For the
year ended 31 December 2015, the subcontracting fee
received from Sinopec NewOcean amount to RMB8,333,333
(equivalent to approximately HK$10,448,000). The details
of the arrangements are set out in the announcement dated
30 October 2015 issued by the Company. On 31 December
2015, a shareholders resolution was passed by Sinopec and
NBIC, Sinopec NewOcean would be dissolved in year 2016.
On 25 December 2015, NBIC received the refund of the
registered capital amounted to RMB49,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$61,432,000) and distribution of
dividend amounted to approximately RMB11,982,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$15,022,000) from Sinopec
NewOcean. In September 2016, the dissolution of Sinopec
NewOcean was completed and final distribution of dividends
of approximately RMB5,718,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$6,721,000) was received.

A is established on 5 February 2015. #1/G82R
(3kF) B AR owns 50% of the ownership interests in ¥k
JEE A and the remaining 50% owns by R/ & &M
REBR AT (“IKEHHEE”). However, according to the
memorandum and association of ¥EEHE, HEMTE
38 has over 50% voting power and thus has control of the
board of directors in ZR)EE 18, thus ZKEBFTE is treated
as an associate of the Company.

20. BiELAVRR(E)

Hret - (48)

(a)

(%)

M2013F10H178H » # AL #FH
BELE B IR AT A B W ([ &
Bzl LABEEFERERE
AEAREZHBE R RB e RE
BAR AR IR ) IR
AREEMREIMNZ 217 @8R
bR Mmuh o RIBA B E &
3K BEETREIR TS 2 AR BRfE i A
2013411 A1 H #£ 5t A& #1045
(B HEE] - BBR - AL
BEREEFRESFINARE
10,000,000 L 2 A B E » MA %
B AT 5t & 51 M Bl AR 75 & 4F (A Bt 3
B8 IR W EX £ % A K ¥ 48,300,000
JC ° WA - IR B R AT EL 0 AN
EEBEBK AP ALFTE 2RI

MR2015F 10308 © 1 A1k &
BEARERNL DR ISR
A B B WHR2015F 11 A1
B4R #HE2015F12 A318
IEFE - WP AEHEREZ &
& ) 58,333,333 A R (HE
R#110,448,00078 7T ) ° 2B L HE
ZFBE FIE MR AAR AR 2015
FI0AB0HBEHZAEARN K
2016128318 # ALk A
EAREYHRBRES RE
A BB R 2016 ERREE - B
2015 12HA25H A B A& &
W B & A b 18 3R [81 49,000,000
AR (HEZ1 61,432,000 7T )
Z i MEAR - K #11,982,000 A
R # (38 % 1 15,022,000/ 7T ) 2
B DK > A20165E9 8 - F A
LB TR - WE WD &%
2K #75,718,000 A R ¥ (3 ZF 1
6,721,000 70) A% S o

KB AN 20156FE2 A5 H X
3o HBRERERE) AR A AE
BIRBHEFE0% 2 R M
T 2 50% # 25 B %k 8 35 T & E R
RAEBRAR(EREHTEE ) #H
AW BERESEHEZE
B H®KEHMmEEEABB50%
RERS R MEAIREEHEES
=) %H% UL BROB 7t

] I
“:.:: ERN R
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20. Interests in Associates (Continued) 20. BiELARESZ)
Summarised financial information of associates BREATZHERTHEE
Summarised financial information in respect of each of AEESHERR UM BERBZHN
the Group’s associates is set out below. The summarised T o TlB B E R E BRIEE S
financial information below represents amounts shown in T i 5 A Rl AR Y 2 Bt v R B S R AR P
the associate’s financial statements prepared in accordance PIRZ e - FTEEHE QAR ERA
with HKFRSs. All of these associates are accounted for BRI EGE M IEHRER AL -
using the equity method in these consolidated financial
statements.
Sinopec NewOcean AL F &
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#&IT FET
Current assets MENEE — 160,130
Non-current assets JEMENE E = 587
Current liabilities mBEE = (146,811)
Non-current liabilities EmEAaE — (72)
Revenue WA — 1,625,000
(Loss) profit and total comprehensive AEE/BEETKBHEZ
(expense) income for the period up (BE)aMEka2E(ZH)
to the completion of dissolution/year Wz tB5E (Mt a)
(Note a) (116) 26,132

756 © N
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20. Interests in Associates (Continued) 20. BiBAFESRK (&)
Summarised financial information of associates BREAFZMBESHEE (&)
(Continued)
Sinopec NewOcean (Continued) AL E(E)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial LB E RIS E R AR A IS R
information to the carrying amount of the interest in WRoBE AR E=EEEBE 2 HER
the associate recognised in the consolidated financial S ¢
statements:
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$°000
FEIT FET
Net assets of Sinopec NewOcean FACFNE 2 BETE — 13,834
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEBMGRAETE2HE
interest in Sinopec NewOcean HERE 7 L 1) — 49%
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest AN B AL 38 2 #2588
in Sinopec NewOcean H{E — 6,779
HiaBHE Hgaie
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEIT
Current assets MENEE 18,483 22,131
Non-current assets JEmENE E 83 84
Current liabilities BB E (3,088) (3,853)
Revenue WA 111,066 63,371

(Loss) profit and total comprehensive — ZN4FJE (E18) % R 2 E
(expense) income for the year () Wes4a s (2,884) 409
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20. Interests in Associates (Continued) 20. BiBAFESRK (&)
Summarised financial information of associates BEARZMBEIEHEE(Z)
(Continued)
B mEHE (Continued) BEEHEE)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial Ll BER 2 RN RS M HRE P
information to the carrying amount of the interest in WRoBE AR E=EEEBE 2 HER
the associate recognised in the consolidated financial S ¢
statements:
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$’000
FAET FET
Net assets BEFE 15,478 18,362
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AREEBMERG BB 2HE
interest in ZK/EEHE TERERR L ) 50% 50%
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest N8 B IR /&5 #1/E 2 25 0R
in FREAFE EE 7,739 9,181
21. Interests in Joint Ventures 21. SEBLHERS
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FAETL
Cost of unlisted investments in ELEMEEEFERERAR
joint ventures
At 1 January ®W1HA1H 21,332 19,969
Share of net profits and other DEERF RN &
comprehensive expense for Ht2mES
the year 2,268 1,363
At 31 December ®w12A31H 23,600 21,332

76 ¢
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SELRERE)

21. Interests in Joint Ventures (Continued) 21.

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group had
interests in the following joint ventures:

MR20164F K 201512381 H @ A&
ERUATAEEhEEEER

Proportion of
nominal value of
registered capital held
by the Group
FRAMBERT
REHELH

2016

Form of
business
structure

Principal
Country of  place of
incorporation operation
301
BRER

Fully paid up

registered capital Nature of business

Name of entity

KReR RERWEH FREENE CHRERRF REHER

2015

ks u‘m\u‘“ﬁﬁgﬁélbig}w‘t}gmat:n below rep
W&f 2 ure's fi?g‘n d|
| - :

BMTRIMMAERAR  Incorporated  PRC PRC RMB2,250,000 49% 49%  Sales and distribution
(&%) (Note a) of LPG

BNTREIMAERAR Bk HE HEl 2,250,000 AR HERDHRILR
(M&# ) (Hita)

ENEEETEFEARAR  Incorporated  PRC PRC RMB10,000,000 30% 30% Sales and distribution
("#H") (Note b) of LPG

ENEEETRRERAR Bafiky  $E el 10,000,000 AR HERDHERILR
(TEER 1) (ath)

Notes: Wi

(@) The Group'’s entitlement to share in the profits of its joint (@) $%;@+945ﬁé%ﬁ¥25ﬁﬂﬁ?§lﬁ(
venture is in proportion to its ownership interest after the IE&L%T%%g\g‘@gﬁfﬂﬁ&/ﬁ\ﬁﬂﬁﬁz
subcontracting period mentioned in the following paragraph. BRzBREERLOEE -
Pursuant to an agreement entered into between Qing Yuan fET§$§EZ?§M¢EQﬁ5%§ﬁ%
Shi Qingxin District Bai Fu Yang Petrol Chemical Company R E =T A ﬂ%lIﬁI?EQ}ET(FﬁE
Limited (“BFY”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, 1) BB 2 A &R R 2006 4 11
and the joint venture partner of %&#7 on 3 November 2006, H3 E'_EIMZWJ% B KBEINM
the operation of &% has been subcontracted to BFY with TEEF  SMIHE2015F - B8
a subcontracting period of 8 years until 2015. On 8 June F o 75@20]5@6)%8!3  BHBERIAM
2015, both parties entered into another agreement to extend > — 1D W& H%?lt#ﬂ%ﬁﬁtﬁ?)iimw
the subcontracting period for another 3 years to 2018. Under ¢ ° *EE%KEWJE%/ fR3K - BAR1E A
the terms of subcontract agreement, major decisions about ‘/EE)JZ@j(ﬁEﬁH%T%@JZ’:%@&TH\m
the relevant activities must require unanimous consent by Hﬁ%_@(ﬁ% - WUl - BRI BA
the Group and the other shareholder. Thus, % %7 is classified KEZAERE -
as joint venture of the Group.

() 50% interests of registered capital of ZEf% is owned by & (b) E%*ﬁf?rﬂ?éﬁﬁﬁ@@\ﬁngﬁ%
RIVGHETRBERAR (ERFEBET") in which 60% of BRI 1) 575 BE I 50% 8 RE K -
ownership interests of EHRINEETF is owned by FIIEH ﬁﬁ}%%%ﬁ;;ﬁ—‘ﬁm%ﬁ’qﬁgﬁmﬁﬂllg
KR AR A =] a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group. Thus, ﬁtﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ?ﬂﬁﬁ ' Bt AEE
the effective ownership interests of the Group in Z# is 30% BRFA R E J’Ef 3;0% (2015 :
(2015: 30%). Under the terms of memorandum and articles 80%) - IRIRE M A Al B A2 L AR A2 45
of association of #2#, major decisions about the relevant o BNBERES 2 EXNRERFSE
activities must require unanimous consent by the Group $%@&\EWH§§*§¥E% ° WL
and the other shareholder. Thus, #Ef# is classified as joint ERBSIAAREZ 8RR -
venture of the Group.

The summarised financial information in respect of the ARBEUEGEHAARZGEERE

Group’s interests in joint ventures which is accounted for
using the equity method is set out below. The summarised

in the-joint-

‘accordance with

S BERRERHINWT - TRHMBE
HESRETENFREERNGFR 2

PN
B

ﬁ% e

I

PO RZ &5

!
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

EZ 2016 F 1231 HIEFE
21. Interests in Joint Ventures (Continued) 21. SELERI(E)
BH L
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Current assets mBEE 16,320 14,026
Non-current assets EMBEE 7,648 8,103
Current liabilities mEaE (365) (53)
Revenue WA 22,302 27,107
Profit for the year F N 2,565 2,765
Other comprehensive expenses FREMEESH
for the year (1,038) (909)
Total comprehensive income FAZEW =BT
for the year 1,527 1,856

756
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21. Interests in Joint Ventures (Continued) 21. SELEXERH)
RERR RERE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFAEIT FEIT
Current assets MENEE 16,855 11,846
Non-current assets FERBNE E 4,430 3,697
Current liabilities mEEE (8,247) (3,986)
Revenue WA 45,139 179
Profit (loss) for the year F A (E1E) 2,484 (444)
Other comprehensive expense for the G RH{th 2% H
year (1,003) (361)
Total comprehensive income (expenses) FR2E Uz (ZH)4@%E
for the year 1,481 (805)
22. Available for Sale Investment 22, FIHHERSE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TFET
Available for sale investment comprise:  AJ L HEREBIE
— Equity securities listed in Korea B ET 2 E S (M)
(Note) — 37,770
Note: As at 31 December 2015, the Group owned 9.69% equity Hia R 2015FE 12 A31H » A& E#FH AIE
interest in IE Limited (formerly known as Integrated Energy Limited ( AT#& Integrated Energy Limited)
Limited) (“IE”). The fair value of IE shares was determined (TME) 2 9.69% ° IE 2 AF@E Ty %
based on quoted market bid price of shares of IE traded RNeEEBATSHEIREBEHEER
on Korean Securities Dealers Automated Quotation which ZIEBOHTHEEAREET  R2015
amounted to approximately HK$37,770,000 as at 31 F12 A31H # A&37,770,0007 JT °
December 2015. During the year ended 31 December 2016, REE2016FE12A31BIEZE » &

the Group disposed all IE shares. EFERE2HMHEEIEZRD °
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23.

24.

Deposits Paid

The amount included deposits of approximately
RMB315,671,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$354,030,000) (2015: RMB181,887,000, equivalent to
approximately HK$217,920,000) paid for several potential
acquisition of investment projects. The Group has not
entered into any formal sales and purchase agreement
as at 31 December 2016. The remaining amount mainly
represents the deposits paid for purchase of property, plant
and equipment.

Inventories

23.

24.

EftiEe

e ERBERBNIREEE X
 T7315,671,000 A B ¥ & % & (48
Z R #£9354,030,000% st )(2015 :
181,887,000 A & - H & K %
217,920,000 7T ) ° 72016 4F 12 A 31
B AEEWERTERMEXNNEEH
HoBBEIERERBEME  HBEEH
B NES -

R

2016 2015

HK$°000 HK$’000

FEIT FET

LPG BIER 87,812 128,976
Oil products izl 632,222 32,649
Electronic products BTEM 213,500 98,660
933,534 260,285

The cost of inventories charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year amounted to approximately
HK$13,943,529,000 (2015: HK$13,675,086,000).

756

HEWOCEMN 5

FREGAEFMEMEEWFRMEG
Z 17 &K AN 4 513,943,529,000 78 7T
(2015 : 13,675,086,000 /& 7T) ©
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25. Trade Debtors, Bills Receivable, Other Debtors, 25. BIGE AR - BURIE - HME
Deposits and Prepayments KRR - HERFAFRRIE
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Trade debtors U E S BR K 3,164,818 2,477,122
Bills receivable e R % 124,492 41,226
3,289,310 2,518,348
The Group allows an average credit period of 90 days. The AEBEZTFHEEHRRIOKX  BHE
bills receivable are matured within the range of 30 days 20164 K 2015F 12 A1 B ILFEE
to 180 days for the years ended 31 December 2016 and WEE ZHHAHENFI0XRXE180K °
2015. The following is an aged analysis of trade debtors R E R EWE 5 EFRRERER
and bills receivable at the end of the reporting period BB DR ZEH BRI WA ER B
presented based on the invoice date, which approximated 25T -

the respective revenue recognition dates:

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
0 to 30 days 0FE 30K 888,521 1,263,989
31 to 60 days 31 £60K 969,440 316,609
61 to 90 days 61 290K 782,864 297,171
91 to 180 days 91 £ 180K 441,294 584,914
Over 180 days B 180K 207,191 55,665
3,289,310 2,518,348
Included in the Group’s trade debtors, debtors of AREBZEWE S ERAFIZE(2015
approximately nil (2015: HK$5,000) are denominated in 5,000 7T) RETTEE - ETIIEEA
USD, which is not the functional currency of the relevant EEERZIEER -

group entities.

LT T T L ;. j ;
gissi ;MM rn | "



Annual Report 2016 =Z—XFEFIHR | 149

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

—=AN £+ 2
RE ISR M
For the year ended 31 December 2016
EE2016F 12 531 HI-FZE

25.

Trade Debtors, Bills Receivable, Other Debtors,
Deposits and Prepayments (Continued)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group
assesses the potential customer’s credit quality and
defines credit limits by customers. Recoverability
of the existing customers is reviewed by the Group
regularly. Included in the Group’s trade debtors and
bills receivable balance are receivables with aggregate
carrying amount of approximately HK$3,044,859,000
(2015: HK$2,283,925,000), which are neither past due nor
impaired.

Included in the Group’s trade debtors balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$244,451,000 (2015: HK$234,423,000) which are past
due at the end of the reporting period for which the Group
has not provided for impairment loss. The Group does not
hold any collateral over the balances. The trade debtors
past due but not provided for were either subsequently
settled as at the date of this report or no historical default
of payments by the respective customers. The average age
of these receivables is 224 days (2015: 129 days). As at 31
December 2016 and 2015, the Group has no provision for
allowance for doubtful debts. Subsequent to 31 December
2016, most of these past due trade receivables were
settled.

756

HEWOCEMN 5

25. BBRHIRRK - BURE - HMHE

WRER - BERWAMRER(E)

REBREMNEAHELAS LT HE
ERFZEEER U EHEES-
AEBTHEMREREF ZERET -
BIREAEEZE S RKER K EKE
& & 493,044,859,00078 J0(2015 :
2,283,925,0008 L) BN E SR 242
HEHS T BHASORE -

AEBZEKWE SRR GER - £
B8R M 1 49244,451,0007 7£(2015 :
234,423,000 7% 7T ) 2 B W AR SR 7R &5
HEAERY  BAEETARERES
BEE AEBVEFETMNERZS
HEZIRES - DRHEARIEREE
WESERAREEBNAREREE 3%
HEREBELELRHIA - ZEEK
BRR 2 FHER#R B 224K(2015 : 129
X) o PA2016 FE K 201512 5318 »
7N &R B N £ R BR 1 BB - 1R 2016
F12H31HLEE  BEREREHBHE B
HHE SRR -
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25. Trade Debtors, Bills Receivable, Other Debtors,
Deposits and Prepayments (Continued)

Aging of trade debtors based on the invoice date which are
past due but not impaired

25. BMRHIRRR - BUHRE - HftifE
Wi - BeERRAFAREE)

EBHERRECREEZRTIZER
Shiipdt 3

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

31 to 60 days 31 £ 60K 13,007 27,013
61 to 90 days 61 = 90Kk 31,116 29,539
91 to 180 days 91 2180 K 22,768 160,556
Over 180 days HBiE 180K 177,560 17,315
Total =N-18 244,451 234,423

Included in other debtors, there are trade deposits paid
to suppliers of approximately HK$1,423,804,000 (2015:
HK$1,530,080,000) in relation to the purchase of LPG
and oil products which will be delivered within one year
commencing from the date of the signed purchase
contract.

As at 31 December 2016, other debtors included loan
advances to independent third parties of approximately
HK$154,004,000 (2015: HK$98,627,000). The loan
advances are carried at fixed interest rates ranged from 4%
to 13% per annum (2015: 5% per annum) and repayable
within one year. The loan advance as at 31 December 2015
have been fully settled in the current year.

HiEWERTRBEENEERE ST
& #71,423,804,0007% 7L(20154F 12 B
31 H :1,530,080,0007T) * FREE
BIEREHMITAEETBE A LT —
FRRAT o

MN20164F12 A31 8 » H 1th jE Ug BR 3¢
BIERME F B E =774 154,004,000
7 7T(2015 : 98,627,000 T ) 2 &
e BRUBETEFFENT4%E13%
(2015 : FFIEE%)EL * YR —FR
BE - R20156F12 A31 HZERE R
AEEREZHEE -
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26. Amounts due from Associates and a Joint 26.
Venture

The amounts due from associates and a joint venture
are in trade nature aged within 90 days based on invoice
date. A credit period of 30 days to 90 days is granted to
associates. The balances are neither past due nor impaired
at the end of the reporting period.

BEHBEARNR—RSELERE

U ERR R —HKALEERARE
ZFME  REZAHFEZREA/IOX
A REBREE QAR TFIORE
RZEEH - IABBRNREHRY
REHARIE ©

27. Properties Under Development for Sales 27. HERERDPYME

HK$’000
FEIT

COST jo%.
At 1 January 2015 ®2015%F1 818 224,936
Exchange adjustments b 5 AR (12,977)
At 31 December 2015 Mm2015412 431 H 211,959
Additions NE 199,404
Exchange adjustments PE 5 5 2 (22,698)
At 31 December 2016 M 2016412 A31H 388,665

The Group is developing half of the Land into properties for
sales. The details of the Land are set out in note 16. All the
properties under development for sales are not expected
to be realised within twelve months after the end of the
reporting period. The properties under development for
sales is situated in the PRC.

-

H#%6

HEWOCEMN 5

AEBEFERZLWZ —FBFEED
¥ o R T ZFFIEENMITE 16 - FRIBER
EEETYERHRHTISERERRE
12 AARIER - FERRFPYELLNFR
.
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28. Pledged Bank Deposits, Bank Balances and 28. CEHRTER HBITRBRAR

Cash

The amounts represent deposits pledged to banks to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group. The deposits
have been pledged to secure short-term bank loans, and
are therefore classified as current assets. The pledged
bank deposits included an amount of approximately
HK$112,151,000 (2015: HK$1,108,142,000) carried at
fixed interest rates of 0.30% (2015: ranged from 0.30% to
4.80%) per annum and will be released upon settlement of
the relevant bank borrowings.

The bank balances carried interest at market rates which
ranged from 0.01% to 3.80% (2015: 0.01% to 3.80%) per
annum.

As at 31 December 2016, the pledged bank deposits
and bank balances and cash of approximately
HK$1,342,656,000 (2015: HK$2,155,552,000) were
denominated in RMB which is not freely convertible into
other currencies. Included in the Group’s pledged bank
deposits and bank balances, there are approximately
HK$5,021,000 (2015: HK$7,348,000) denominated
in USD/HK$ and approximately HK$5,771,000 (2015:
HK$352,390,000) denominated in RMB, which are not the
functional currencies of the relevant group entities.

ZHRBERERERTFETEAINEEER
RITHMEZERZITER - ZEGFEARE
KIFEAEHBRTERZER 8D
BARBEE -BERBRITGERFE
& % 49112,151,00078 (2015 :
1,108,142,0007% 7t ) % & & F F| X
0.30% (2015 : /7 F0.30% & 4.80% ) &1
B R AEBRITERSERRER -

R 17T & # & N T0.01%=3.80%
(2015 : 0.01% = 3.80% ) 2 T 5 & K| &
B e

R2016FE12 A31H - 2 BE 1775
AR 1T 45 8 ) 3R € 491,342,656,000
7 (2015 : 2,155,552,0007% 7T ) B
AREEE TTAAEHEBRSEM
BE - ANEB2EEBRITHFEREIR
1T 45 2 495,021,000 7T (2015 :
7,348,000 L) LAZETT B ILEE - 4
5,771,000/ 7t (2015 : 352,390,000 /&
AR AREEE  ZT,/BLTEA
REWIFEFAEE BB 2 NEEE -
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29.

30.

Trade Creditors and Bills Payable

29.

FE 11 52 55 R % ¢ PR £+ SR 4

2016 2015

HK$°000 HK$°000

FEIT FET

Trade creditors B E SRR 667,521 261,981
Bills payable BRI 932,435 379,835
1,599,956 641,816

The aged analysis of trade creditors and bills payable is as
follows presented based on invoice date:

R E SERA N ENER 2 RGO TR
BEHBEFWNT ¢

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$’'000

F#ET FAET

0 to 30 days 0E30K 600,476 430,564
31 to 60 days 31 E60K 605,781 72,582
61 to 90 days 61 90K 321,186 884
91 to 180 days 91 =180k 51,970 136,584
Over 180 days i 180K 20,543 1,202
1,599,956 641,816

Included in the Group’s trade creditors, creditors of
approximately HK$116,442,000 (2015: nil) are denominated
in USD, which is not the functional currency of the relevant
group entities.

Amounts due to an Associate and a Joint
Venture

The amounts were unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.

76 ¢

HEWOCEMN 5

30.

KEBZEMNE 5EXFLYH
116,442,000 7T(2015 : £ ) A X 7T
EE - ExVIEABEREE 2 IEE
?ﬁgo

E—KXBELFR—REELE
]

CREAERAR 2R RARERER -
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31. Borrowings 31. f&®
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000
FAET FETL
Bank trust receipts loans HRITEFEWIRIE K 1,292,488 844,442
Other loans (pledged with RMB HAER(AARERITHER
bank deposits) YEHE ) 108,920 1,370,614
Other loans (pledged with other assets) E & 3k (E At & E (EH ) 52,989 41,631
Other loans H A AR 2,838,144 2,691,881
4,292,541 4,948,568
Repayable within one year shown under RENBEE FIRAR —F
current liabilities NEE
Borrowings secured by pledged bank IR ITE FUEREE
deposits = 108,920 1,370,614
Borrowings secured by other assets Hfth & E EREVE K 15,560 11,227
Borrowings unsecured EERNER 1,930,837 1,532,972
2,055,317 2,914,813
Repayable over one year shown under ERENEEIE FNT/RER —
non-current liabilities FRER
Borrowing secured — more than one EEROER-BB—FE
year, but not exceeding two years DE2NES 15,688 11,227
Borrowing unsecured — more than one fEERHE K- BB —F(B
year, but not exceeding two years e kS 990,005 1,032,795
Borrowings secured — more than two 2 IERHE K- BERERE
years, but not exceeding five years NERAF 21,741 19,177
Borrowings unsecured — more than EERNER-BAMERE
two years, but not exceeding five NERAE
years 1,209,790 970,556
2,237,224 2,033,755

4,292,541 4,948,568
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31.

Borrowings (Continued)

Bank borrowings include approximately HK$325,415,000
(2015: HK$859,109,000) of fixed-rate. They carry average
interest at 2.55% (2015: 2.61%) per annum. The remaining
bank borrowings are variable-rate borrowings which
carry interest at 1 month London Interbank Offered Rate
(“LIBOR”) plus certain basis points, Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) plus certain basis points, EURO
Interbank Offered Rate (“EURIBOR”) plus certain basis
points per annum ranging from 0.51% to 4.13% (2015:
0.37% to 3.23%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2016, other loans of approximately
HK$52,989,000 (2015: HK$41,631,000) are secured
by three (2015: two) oil vessels owned by the Group
with carrying value of approximately HK$118,819,000
(2015: HK$90,244,000) and guaranteed by the
Company. Included in total borrowings of the Group,
approximately HK$3,969,706,000 (31 December 2015:
HK$4,628,597,000) is guaranteed by the Company and/or
its subsidiaries.

-
{

HHhG ¢

HEWOCEMN 5

31.

E™®(E)

iR 17 f& M R %325,415,0008 JT
(2015 : 859,109,000 70) BE & » F
5 F F B 52.55% (2015 : 2.61%) °
BRTIRITERBZEER  FRRAE—
A mBUERTTRIZER B ([RmBERTTRIZ
WEDNETER  FBRTEERS
([BEAFRTRERSDMETEZ R
BOM 88 77 R % 37 B ([ BUM SR 77 R % 37
BEmETHEE  1F051% £4.13%
(2015 : 0.37% %= 3.23%) °

PR20164F 12 A31H & fib & & &
52,989,000 75 (2015 : 41,631,000
TL) AR S EIFEIREEA 118,819,000
# JT(2015 90,244,000 7T ) 3
22015 : W AE ) i My /E 3K 38 I | AR
RAERR - AEBZERBELY
3,969,706,0007% JL(20154 12 A 31
H : 4,628,597,000/% 7T ) E & A A
N/ SREW B R AER -

—E—FFEHR |155
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31.

31. fE&(#E)

Borrowings (Continued)

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal REBERZ BB X

to contracted interest rates) on the Group’s borrowings are K)GEWT :
as follows:
Year ended
31.12.2016
#HE20164F
128 31H
ILERE
Effective interest rate: ERFIE
Fixed-rate borrowings TEEER 1.36% to E4.44%
Variable-rate borrowings FEBR 0.51% to £4.21%

The Group’s borrowings that are denominated in currencies
which are not the functional currencies of the relevant
group entities are set out below:

WZEBEE  #IWT

USD/HK$
ET AT
HK$’000
FEIT

M20164F12 A31 H
M2015412 A31 H

As at 31 December 2016
As at 31 December 2015

2,435,140
1,322,600

E(HERB QA

Year ended
31.12.2015

HZE 20154
12 B31H
WHFE

1.90% to £ 4.90%
0.37% to £ 3.28%

REE 2 BFRIAFEREE BRI

EURO
BT
HK$’000
FET

186,887
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32. Share Capital

32. k=&

B FFEHR | 157

33.

Number of
shares Amount
Bin & B &8
HK$’000
FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each SR EEOC1 BTz EBR
(2015: HK$0.1 each) (2015 : ®R0.1%7T)
Authorised share capital: EERRA ¢
At 1 January 2015, 31 December M2015F 1 H1H 20154
2015 and 2016 K 2016412 A 31 H 20,000,000,000 2,000,000
Issued and fully paid share capital: BT MR
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015 7201591 81 H + 2015
and 2016 FK2016F 12 A31H 1,480,398,216 148,040
Deferred Taxation 33. BIERE
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) REARBEESRFEE @ NEEBDER

recognised by the Group and movements thereon during

the current and prior year:

m -

Accelerated Other
tax intangible
depreciation Tax losses assets
mERARE REAGKR HttERSE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET T
At 1 January 2015 ®2015F1 518 52,5623 (7,312) 78,624 123,835
(Credit) charge to profit/loss RERER(AKE)
for the year Bk (1,521) 4,115 (6,451) (3,857)
Exchange adjustments b 3 R (2,911) — (4,252) (7,163)
At 31 December 2015 R2015%12 31 H 48,091 (3,197) 67,921 112,815
(Credit) charge to profit/loss REREZ(AKE)
for the year Bk (2,708) 2,859 (6,089) (5,938)
Exchange adjustments b 5 S (2,958) (14) (4,401) (7,373)
At 31 December 2016 12016512 A31 H 42,425 (352) 57,431 99,504

456

HEWOCEMN 5
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33.

HirEs

Deferred Taxation (Continued)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances
for financial reporting purposes:

33.

BIER (E)
AT RIEMBE2RA R 2 BLEREHE
DT

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#ET FET

Deferred tax assets RIERR TS B E 352 3,197
Deferred tax liabilities BRI EE (99,856) (116,012)
(99,504) (112,815)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has estimated
unutilised tax losses of approximately HK$263,513,000
(2015: HK$236,021,000) available for offset against future
profits. Deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of approximately HK$1,408,000 (2015: HK$12,788,000).
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to
remaining balances of approximately HK$262,105,000
(2015: HK$223,233,000) due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. The unrecognised tax losses of
approximately HK$3,163,000 (2015: HK$3,790,000) will be
expired before year 2019 (2015: year 2018). Other losses
may be carried forward indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$58,504,000 (2015: HK$65,868,000) in respect of
mainly accelerated accounting depreciation. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in relation to such
deductible temporary differences as it is not probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by
PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries
amounting to HK$705,423,000 (2015: HK$637,550,000) as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
rary dlfferenoes and |t is probable that the temporary

SRyl
‘d;feqreMMI og

REFR AR - A EE G AT K 8E
AR B2 ABDEAREBBEEDO A
263,513,000 7t (2015 : 236,021,000
) o B 349 1,408,000 7T (2015 :
12,788,000/ 0 ) lERIELE R 75 & &= »
AR A% Z5mF KRR TER - &
I £ B &R T 45 5 49262,105,000 7 JT
(2015 : 223,233,000 7T ) e R IE i
T %% B E o 43,163,000 7£(2015 :
3,790,000 70) 2 R ERTIEE B RN
20194 (2015 : 20184F ) B HAim o E fth
E518 Bl A B PR HA %

REFRPER - BEMESINESR - K
=B A AT 05 B IS = EHAY 58,504,000 75
7t (2015 : 65,868,000/ 7T ) ° B A K
AR A M A AR S =R LK A&
IR 2 ERBUER 2 AJREME TR - i3

BRI HN TR ZREDECHRS

RIFFBIATEIE - B20084F1 318
B RRENBARFBRIZENmE
K2 REEMMNTEN - AEE L&
REFATENBARZZFTEF Z
= % 2= 55 705,423,000 78 7T (2015 £ ¢
637,550,000 7 70 ) R 4R & B IE TR R A aT
RIEERTEEE - WA AEE AT
%I%éf@ﬁﬁﬁ%%%EZE%Fﬁ i B R =58
B2 ﬁ@ o
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34. Acquisition of Intangible Assets Through 34. FBBWAMBLATIBERLEE

Purchase of Subsidiaries

On 15 November 2016, NBIC entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”)
pursuant to which an independent third party agreed to sell,
and NBIC agreed to purchase, the entire equity interests
in BMAAREYE R EREGRAF and &M 7Tk H#
W% B B Q7 (“Charcoal Manufacturing Companies”),
companies incorporated in the PRC (the “Acquisition”).
The Charcoal Manufacturing Companies mainly owned a
technical know-how in respect of a set of self developed
machineries for manufacturing of charcoals. The Acquisition
was completed on 15 December 2016. The Charcoal
Manufacturing Companies have not yet commenced
business at the date of acquisition.

The consideration for the Acquisition was RMB90,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$101,540,000).

The Acquisition is accounted for as an acquisition of
intangible assets and the associated liabilities and other
assets of the Charcoal Manufacturing Companies.

-
{

H#%6

HEWOCEMN 5

MR2016FE11 B15H A B ¥R ER
F—HEERZ(EERR]) - Bitt -
—BUFE-FREHERBEFHRER
EBARTEA ZEBMNTMREDE
BETREL B A IR A &) K A8 N TT 5AHE AR 2%
BERAR([RKEEAR ) 2 =R
(WD)  ZARKEANRNETEHESR
— £ B 175 B A M AR BT AN B LA AR E R
® e ZIBEWEE N 2016 F12 A 15 H %
B o AR BEE QRN UEE B I R BIGE
% °

% A W BB 2 R {8 90,000,000 A R #&
(HHER#1101,540,000 47T ) °

WERGESKERTEEREBERZA
BEMEEEE °
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34. Acquisition of Intangible Assets Through

34. BBMAMBARKBELRE

Purchase of Subsidiaries (Continued) (&)
Net assets acquired: S EEFE:
HK$'000
FET
Non-current assets FERENEE
Property, plant and equipment M - EIERRE 537
Intangible assets mREE 99,880
100,417
Current assets B EE
Inventories 55 63
Other debtors, deposits and prepayment HEUERR « e RTE B 1,482
Bank balances and cash IRITHEHR NS 825
2,370
Current liabilities TEE B &
Other creditors and accrued charges H SRR EREA 1,247
Net assets at Acquisition Date WHERFEE 101,540
Satisfied by: ATRE A A=A
Cash consideration e RE 101,540
Cash and cash equivalents acquired EEHReRBESEREER (825)
Net outflow cash and cash equivalents in respect WEAKBIERF 2 RE RREERIER
of the Acquisition of Charcoal Manufacturing T R
Companies 100,715
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35. REEARETERMBIA

35. Capital Risk Management and Financial

Instruments

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes the borrowings as disclosed in note 31, and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital, share premium, reserves and retained
profits.

The management of the Group reviews the capital
structure on a continuous basis taking into account the
cost of capital and the risk associated with the capital.
The Group will balance its overall capital structure through
new share issues, payment of dividends and the raise of
bank borrowings or the repayment of the existing bank
borrowings.

The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged during the
year.

-
{
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35. Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Categories of financial instruments

35. REEAREERMBIA(E)

MBIRZER

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FHET
Financial assets MEEE
Loans and receivables (including cash B3k & fEUW I8 (B 3538 &
and cash equivalents) ;ERBFSIER) 5,532,556 5,532,909
Available for sale investment AIEHERE — 37,770
Derivative financial instruments PTEMBTA 45 12,378
Financial liabilities MBARE
Amortised cost BEIERR 6,102,953 5,748,400
Derivative financial instruments PTAEIET A 1,961 25,785
Financial risk management objectives and policies MBRRERHFRBE

The Group’s major financial instruments include bank
balances and cash, pledged bank deposits, trade debtors
and bills receivable, other debtors, deposits, available for
sale investment, amounts due from (to) associates, amount
due from (to) a joint venture, trade creditors and bills
payable, other creditors and accrued charges, borrowings
and derivative financial instruments. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Ml

oSl
s =l

AEBEZTENBITEBEBRITEBRR
Be  BERRITER  BEESER
REWERE EMEWIERR - %S 7
HHERE - B MIBE R BFR -
B/ N—REECEFE  ENES
RREENRE - EMEMN R ER
B/ EREITEMB TR - ZEMH
TRAZFBREMERE - TXH5HE
& EH S T EA R 2 B M A AIRE K 3%
SRBeHE EREEBEREEZE
R - AREGR KBS A B R IR BUGE E 2
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35. Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

35. REEAREERMBIA(E)

Financial risk management objectives and policies HERBEEEERBEZ)
(Continued)

Market risk G m e

(i) Currency risk 0 EEELRE

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk. Certain trade debtors,
trade creditors, bank balances and cash, pledged
bank deposits and borrowings of the Group are
denominated in foreign currencies as disclosed in
notes 25, 28, 29 and 31 respectively.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities

RABETHB ARG AINEHE
ZEBE  SAREEATINERR o
REBETEKESERER BHNE
SN BITEKEES - BEE
SRITERME TR - ASNEE E (B (GF
BEDRIRKIEE25 ~ 28 + 29 K 31
WEE) -

AEBINEIIECEREERE
BRERZHPRZREEDT

163

at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Assets Liabilities
=& afR
2016 2016

HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FAET FAET FAET FET

USbD ETT 5,021 BE58 2,551,582 1,322,600

RMB AR 5,771 352,390 — —
European Dollars BT ([ BT )

(“EURO") — - — 186,887
During the year ended December 2016 and 2015, R E E20164F k2015412 A31 8 1k
the management has entered into several derivative ZEE ERECDRIENITEIAS
contracts to reduce the exposure of currency risk. MAREEBRBR2TZE - R2016F
As at 31 December 2016, the Group has outstanding 12A31H  BRXELHEL5,028,000
deliverable forward contract with an aggregate %7t(2015 : 587,575,000 AR ¥ ) 2 14
notional amount of approximately USD5,028,000 for KREEEHBT(2015 : BT,/ FET,/ HIT)
HK$ (2015: RMB587,575,000 for HK$/USD/EURO). ZREEHAH - TEMBTAZFIS
The details of the derivative financial instruments are ERMFE44 KR ©

disclosed in note 44.

I B4

746 N8

HEWOCEMN 5
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35. Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(1)

Currency risk (Continued)

In addition, a number of subsidiaries of the Company
with functional currency of USD/HK$ have intergroup
balances that are denominated in RMB or vice visa,
which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.

Sensitivity analysis

Since the exchange rate of HK$ is pegged with USD,
the currency risk is mainly arising from exchange
USD/HK$ against RMB/EURO and RMB/EURO
against USD/HK$. The following table details the
Group’s sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease
in USD/EURO against RMB and a 5% increase and
decrease in the RMB/USD/EURO spot rate and
forward exchange rate. 5% represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
the RMB/USD/EURO exchange rate and the RMB/
USD/EURO forward exchange rate. The sensitivity
analysis below did not include the deliverable forward
contracts of USD for HK$ as at 31 December
2016 because the management expected the
reasonable possible change in the USD/HK$ forward
exchange rate would be closed to nil. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and derivative financial
instruments and adjusts their translation at the end
of the reporting period for a 5% change in foreign
currency rates or their fair value at the end of the
reporting period for a 5% change in forward exchange
rate. For monetary assets and liabilities, positive
number below indicates an increase in post-tax profit
where RMB strengthen 5% against USD/EURO. For a
5% weakening of RMB against the relevant currency,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the
profit and the balances below would be negative. For
derivative financial instruments, a negative number
below indicates an decrease in post-tax profit where
RMB strengthen 5% against USD/HKD/EURO. For a
5% weakening of RMB against the relevant currency,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the

wm“‘““"ﬂ?ﬁﬁﬁw,th be

.4

35. REEAREERMBIA(E)

MERBREEZARRME(Z)
hEmE(E)
() EEERE)
o - ARRREBEUET, BT
RNEEBZHBAR  EEERH

RBUAREIHAREEEE <
AEBASZINERR

BURE DT

RRBITZ EREX TS - B
RiEEEREET/ BITEAR
¥/ BTRARKE BITAET
/BT TRANAEEEET
SBRITAANRE EF R T 5% K&
ARE/Er/BIREERE
HER PR T 5% 2 §URE -
5%RKREEBHARKE E1/
BTERR AR ET/ BITE
HifE R 7 IR H BT - A
EERERPET BTERERZ
BIRREEBZIOT - BUA TR
REDMURBEABTHEEZE
EREFEBEL - HRESNEER
EARGE 2 AINESIETRR RITE
MBETA: YRERAREHBE
1EHB% EXREEH 7 FHE - N2
WEREE R FEEL % EHIE
R AR REREERARE
mE - WARBRLET BTL
715% - Bl T ESRRMR B & A
MBI - WAREHLEBEEH TK
5% Al@H s FELESTRER
FE O BAUATEBKEREHE -5
TEMBTAME @ MARBALE
TS BT/ BT EAE% - BT
BERTRBRREENED - AR
BREBEEW TES% - Blg s
NMEEHEERARZZE BT
REERAS B IEE
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35. Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

USD against RMB impact

35. REEAREERMBIA(E)

MERBREEZARRME(Z)

hEmE(E)

() EEERE)

ETRARRNE
2016 2015
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Increase (decrease) in profit  EREFZE M
for the year (Note) (R (B2
— monetary assets and - E%EERARE
liabilities 105,830 54,917
— derivative financial — fERKIA
instruments - -

HRBREDN ()

RMB impact EURO against RMB impact

ABH®RE EIRARRFE
2016 2015 P 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET &7 FET AT
249 14,802 - 7,803
- (13,459) - (7,803)

Note: This is mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding
on bank balances, receivables, payables and
borrowings denominated in USD or RMB or EURO and

derivative financial instruments as at year end.

The following table details the sensitivity to a 5%
increase and decrease in USD/HK$ against RMB in
respect of the Group’s foreign currency exposure on
intergroup balances. 5% is the sensitivity rate used by
the management in the assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding RMB
denominated amounts due between subsidiaries of
the Group and adjusts its translation at the year end
for a 5% change in RMB rates. A positive number
below indicates increase in post-tax profit for the year
where RMB strengthens 5% against USD/HKS$.

756 -\

HEWOCEMN 5

Wit EEBERPRERRETHIARE
KBTI E 2 REBIRITHAER
FEUWER R ~ B AR SR B B SRUA K
TEFBTAGR Z Bk -

AEE 2 SEFEESRAR ZINE
REmME - TRFET/ BRI
AREEFARTHE% ZHEE -
5% mEEEFEERSIE A R
BERABRELR - GURENT
ERRAKENBARZENAAR
BEBZREERKSE  UNF
REEBRBEL SN ARBEXRE
BRE - MARKEET BT
E75% - AN T EHRTEFAR
P& FE AN o
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35. Capital Risk Management and Financial 35. EFXRARETERMBIAE)
Instruments (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies HMERSEREEERBE(Z)
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) mEmeE(E)
(i) Currency risk (Continued) () EEEEE)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BRREDIT (&)
For a 5% weakening of RMB against USD/HK$, there MARBESZET BT THKE%
would be an equal and opposite impact on the post- Bl & 35 DA A B 1205 R 2= A= 48
tax profit for the year below: ERHERZSE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAETL
(Decrease) increase in post-tax profit  4E IRk F 18 5% M R 4>)
for the year N (31,789) 31,988
In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is EIRERS  ARFRERIL D REF
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange Nz @k - MERE TN EKE A
risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the SNFE LB o

exposure during the year.

(i) Interest rate risk (i) FEmEbE
The Group’s bank loans have exposure to cash ELARIT IS M EET B 22 BERT
flow interest rate risk due to the fluctuation of the ERZTSHER RS » KNEEZ IR
prevailing market interest rate on variable-rate bank TERTEHeREN X - it
loans which charge interest at prevailing market AN - R B EE BB EIRRITE
rates. In addition, the Group has exposure to fair HRERERZE B AEET
value interest rate risk through the impact of the rate AEE N FEMNERR - KR2015
changes on pledged bank deposits and borrowings F12A31 8 ' AREREFRIZE
which are at fixed interest rates. As at 31 December EFEEE - MET AR M EREREK
2015, the loan receivable included in other debtors 2 EWE X IrE A FEF R
exposed to fair value interest rate risk as the loan b o REEZ A FENEREEE
receivable bore at fixed interest rate. The Group’s BREBER(GZEERZFHFER
fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to fixed- BMEE31) « sFAEMEUERRZ
rate borrowings (see note 31 for details of these BRER(ZERKERZFIER
borrowings), loan receivable included in other debtors RMsE25) ROTEMBITE - B1F
(see note 25 for details of these loans receivable) and B XA K Z B EE B (2 & 107
derivative financial instruments including pay fixed and EMBTEZFHBBRME44) o
receive floating interest rate swaps (see note 44 for AREBETFEIFH 2 B #EFE

details of these derivative financial instruments). The HeREMERE B THFEE
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35. Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group’s cash flow interest
rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of
LIBOR, HIBOR and EURIBOR arising from the Group’s
variable-rate borrowings and partially set off by the
derivative financial instruments including pay fixed and
receive floating interest rate swaps.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for variable-
rate borrowings, excluding the exposure from the
bank borrowings offset by the derivative financial
instruments including pay fixed and received floating
interest rate swaps. The analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of outstanding balances at the
end of the reporting period was outstanding for the
whole year. A 50 basis points increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2016
would decrease/increase by HK$16,400,000 (2015:
HK$16,050,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable-
rate bank borrowings, excluding the exposure from
the bank borrowings offset by the derivative financial
instruments that pay fixed and received floating
interest rate swaps.

HHhG ¢

HEWOCEMN 5

®

35. REEAREERMBIA(E)

MERBREEZARRME(Z)

hEmE(E)

(i)

FEmbg (&)

AEEZ BBERENRRERFEH
RAWERDE CRAREE—F -
AEEZRERENTREBREES
RRAKE T B ERELE 2 fREER
TREFE - BARTRAEXFER
BUMRTTRIZ R B Z KB - WHDT
LB TABREERXMNREE
Yo BN ) $K3H -

BURREDH

PATNGURRIE 73 4 TH 3% 0% BAB BRI =R
Bk (T EEEITEM K TA(RRE
B XA K% BUE = 1) 3K
RITERAREE - 2MWIHER
REFMRAREEZ EHREERE
FHRBEEMEL - SOEERZ
BRAKREEBHNERZ AR
HEFH 2T -

MR = RS0 EEL BFE H
F2016F12A31HIEFE 2 &
F 15 8% 4> 18 016,400,000 7 JT
(2015 : 16,050,000 7T ) * & *
BHAAER 27 BRITIEREY
FEREBR(TEEERITEMEIA
(BIEE B RIZ S UEE 8K
2 IRITERER) ©
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35. Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The Group has
significant concentration risk on certain customers and the
loan advance to an entity.

As at 31 December 2016, the top ten largest trade debtors
amounted to approximately HK$2,679,749,000 (2015:
HK$2,111,378,000) and comprised around 84.67% (2015:
85.2%) of the Group’s trade debtors. The following table
shows the analysis of the top ten largest trade debtors by
their business nature and location etc.:

35. REEAREERMBIA(E)

MERBREEZARRME(Z)

ERmE

R2016F12 A31H A HTEITE
EMLAKERZUKEBELAZESEER
BRI A S BRERE TR RE 2
ERRAVBEEZREE - ~NEBE—
tEERA-—REEBRHZER LES
BEAZEFRRR -

R2016F12 A31H © B 10 & K &
W& 5 BR K 4 52,679,749,0007 JT
(2015 : 2,111,378,000 T ) ' 1h AN &
B/ EWE SR KH84.67% (2015 :
85.20%) - TRER~E 100 EBIE Z K
SRAH ERSEE R E 2 24T

Customers included in the top ten
individual largest trade debtors

BREETRENRABLEAERZER
Number % of the total trade debtors Locations
1| HERBERRREIL HE
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 and & 2015
Sales of LPG HERILE 4 2 30.2 49.6 PRC, Thailand, HK
and others
HE - RE > FEREM
Sales of oil products HE MR 6 8 54,5 356 PRC, Thailand, HK
and others
HE - RE - FERAM
10 10 84.7 85.2
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35. REEAREERMBIA(E)

35. Capital Risk Management and Financial

Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Most of the customers of the Group are large wholesales,
trading or shipping companies in the PRC, Thailand, Hong
Kong or overseas. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group is responsible to implement
credit monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debtors, other debtors and deposits at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ranking assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.

Price risk

The Group is engaged in the sale and distribution of LPG
and oil products and thus exposed to the risk arising from
the fluctuation of the commodities price in the market.
The Group entered into a number of commodities swap
contracts during the year ended 31 December 2016 and
2015 to reduce the commodities price risk. As at 31
December 2016, the Group has outstanding commodities
swap contracts for oil products with aggregate notional
amounts of approximately USD3,009,000 (2015:
commodities swap contracts for LPG USD2,190,000
and commodities swap contracts for oil products
USD9,240,000) respectively. The details of these derivative
financial instruments are disclosed in note 44.

756

HEWOCEMN 5

MERBREEZARRME(Z)

EEmE (=)

AEBRBNELRTE  FE - FE
NGt EE - EHMB AR - KRE
FERE  AEEEEEEAEETRER
EIRIEfF - AREMRERERERAETTE) SRR
BHRK - BF - AREEZHHR
o hlies R 2 BUE BRRR - Hit
FEUBR R R IR & 2 ATUR BB, » DARELR
RES AT REWE 2 SRIRVE L RS 2 BB
518 o

HRRZEF I RBEREEFREEF
ERBEENRZRIT WRBHERZ
EERBRAR -

B m A

AEBMEBHREHE D HRIEE KA
m B EAE AT SN mEREEM
EEZREKB- H E22016F K2015F
12A31BLEFE AEEEFLAET
EmERE O RERRERRE o B
2016 12A31H ARABESHEYD
3,009,000 % T M 14 K 45 8 2 7 fh g
H & #9(2015 = 9 Bl £2,190,000 3 7T
19,240,000 7T 2 &t R BB 2 B
MEHEY)  ZETEMBITAEZF
BERMIE44 15 -
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35. Capital Risk Management and Financial 35. EFXRARETERMBIAE)

Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Price risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the outstanding commodities swap contracts as at 31
December 2016. If the prices of LPG and oil had been 5%
higher/lower, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year would
increase/decrease by approximately HK$977,000 (2015:
HK$3,713,000) as a result of changes in fair value of the
commodities swap contracts.

Equity price risk on available for sale investment

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
disposed all the available for sale investment. The Group’s
available for sale investment as disclosed in note 22 were
measured at fair value as at 31 December 2015. Therefore,
the Group was exposed to equity price risk for the year.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below was determined based on
the exposure to equity price risks at 31 December 2015.
A 10% change was used when reporting equity price risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in equity price. If the market bid prices of the listed
investments had been 10% higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s investment
valuation reserve for the year ended 31 December 2015
would increase/decrease by HK$3,777,000. This is mainly
attributable to the changes in fair value of the listed equity
investments.

MERBREEZARRME(Z)

EEmAE(E)
BB T

T X il 2 SR E 5T TR #E 1A 2016
F12AIA A R BANET -
WEBREREARZE®S LA TK
5% @ ANEBFR & EF SN,
#9977,000%7£(2015 : 3,713,000 /%5
L) AR mERE N2 AFE
PR FTER ©

AT a1 R B

HZE2016F 12831t FE - &
SEEEHAERHEEERE - AEH
ZAHEHERE(RHE22HE) Jh %
201512 A31H 2 A FEF 2 K
it ANEE TS ERRR

BB T

T X il 2 8B E 5 T IR B A 2015
FI2A31 ATAS ZESERERE
E10% 2 EBHRARABREEEEE
ABREESBRRR  TRIREEE
HERERAETEES) 2T o ML
MEEZWBEB LA THI10% &
FrEEMERERFTE  AAEERE
E2015F 12 A1 HIEFE 2R BEER
B8 0,8 4 3,777,000/ 7T - Itk
DEZAR LTESEEAFELEMN
g(o
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35. REEAREERMBIA(E)

35. Capital Risk Management and Financial

Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has undrawn short
term borrowing facilities amounting to approximately
HK$6,133,322,000 (2015: HK$10,969,005,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities.
The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date
on which the Group can be required to pay. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derive from interest rate carries at the end of the
reporting period.

In addition, the following table details the Group’s liquidity
analysis for its derivative financial instruments. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual
net cash outflows on derivative instruments that settle on
a net basis. When the amount payable is not fixed, the
amount disclosed has been determined by reference to the
projected interest rates as illustrated by the yield curves
existing at the end of the reporting period. The liquidity
analysis for the Group’s derivative financial instruments
are prepared based on the contractual maturities as the
management consider that the contractual maturities are
essential for an understanding of the timing of the cash
flows of derivatives.

HHhG ¢

HEWOCEMN 5

®

MERBREEZARRME(Z)

BB LmE

EEBRBDECRERE  AEEEER
REEEERRENIRENFRARE
BEEE UAAKEZEHEERH
EeURERERENDFE - TR
EBEZRITIER 2 ERBER RERET
ERRL) °

MN2016F 12 A31 H » ANEE 7 KRR
%S HAfE 12 B 4 46,133,322,000 78 7T
(2015 : 10,969,005,0007 7T ) °

TRANRNEEFTERBREZIHT
BHZEHHR - TRIDERAKER
AEEVBREZEFARHZAITRR
EREMBEHR - TRERBMNEREASZ
Bemneg - Wi 8RERNFEEF R
B ARBRBESBAZRARZ M EH
.

s TRFIAREIUTEMBTAZ
RBEEDN - ZREREBENFELE
ZMETAERMBESHRERFER
B BERMNFALIFEER  ERES
HMO2ENE2BRPRZKREHRA2R
N REE - ARBEITETHTA
ZRBEEDOMNRBENIHER
2 RAREEERRBOIHALIE
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35. Capital Risk Management and Financial 35. REXEBREERMBIAE)
Instruments (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies HERRTHEERBE(Z)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REELmEE(E)
Liquidity and interest risk table BB L RFIEERE
Weighted Carrying
average Total amount at
effective undiscounted 31 December
interest rate Within Over 2 years to cash flows 2016
migFs 1 year 1 year 5 years @XBR  R2016F128
ERil% 15/ 1£0E 2EE5% Rekg S1AZEEE
% HK$7000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000
% FET FET FET FET FET
2016 2016
Non-derivative financial FITEBB AR
liabilities
Trade creditors and bills EREZ S5 RE
payable NER - 1,599,956 - - 1,599,956 1,599,956
Other creditors B ERER - 205,502 - - 225,502 225,502
Amount due to an N —FEE AT
associate LB - 13,819 - - 13,819 13,819
Amount due to a joint ER-—RAE0E
venture LA - 2,916 - - 2,916 2,916
Fixed interest rates EEER
borrowings 3.07 251,006 78,616 - 329,622 325,415
Variable interest rate ZEER
borrowings 3.37 1,902,744 998,188 1,297,949 4,198,881 3,967,126

3,995,943 1,076,804 1,297,949 6,370,696 6,134,734

Derivatives — net settlement  $74TE - £EFE

Interest rate swaps outflow  F|EE T - 26 - - 26 26
Commodities swaps fafingad: Vot
outflow - 1,935 - - 1,935 1,935
Derivatives — gross ITETR - BEES
settlement
Derivatives forward outflow 7R - 38,942 - - 38,042 38,942
=5~ Deliverable forward inflow TEERARA - (38,987) - - (38,987) (38,987)
Egéﬁr‘ﬁﬂziliﬂ??“’ i) “\% " ik ‘ J‘ﬁ ﬂi ‘ [
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35. Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk table (Continued)

Weighted
average
effective

interest rate

MET

ERTI=

%
%
2015 2015
Non-derivative financial FTERBRE
liabilities
Trade creditors and bills 2 S0 ke
payable NEE =
Other creditors E R FER =
Amount due to an N —FHEAT
associate LB =
Amount due to a joint EN-FaE0E
venture LB =
Fixed interest rates TEER
borrowings 3.00
Variable interest rate FEEH
borrowings 2.87

Derivatives — net settlement  $i4TE - £EFE
Interest rate swaps outflow K& EE =

Commodities swaps il it
outflow -
Derivatives — gross ITETH - #EER
settlement
Derivatives forward outflow TR ELR -
. Deliverable forward inflow -~ FTEEERA =
~ VISIE )
LideaZy —

35. REEAREERMBIA(E)

MERBREEZARRME(Z)

ROELEEE(E)

RBET RFFREBEX ()

Carrying
Total amount at
undiscounted 31 December
Within Over 2 years to cash flows 2015
1 year 1 year 5 years BRER 20155128
15/ 1EHE 2FE5E RenE 3HZEREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT 87 87 &7 A7
641,816 - - 641,816 641,816
152,040 - - 152,040 152,040
8,706 - - 8,706 8,706
479 = = 479 479
787,875 2,567 78,616 869,058 859,109
2,203,974 1,092,186 930,261 4,206,421 4,089,459
3,794,890 1,094,753 1,008,877 5,898,520 5,751,609
1,480 - - 1,480 1,480
16,783 - - 16,783 16,783
691,845 - - 691,845 691,845
(696,701)

e - (696,701) (696,701

|
L

1173

3



1741

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #/EsEREBHER A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= A H ==}
A SRR M R
For the year ended 31 December 2016
EZ 2016 F 1231 HIEFE
35. Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
(excluding derivative instruments) is determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based
on discounted cash flow analysis and dealer quotes for
similar instruments.

° the fair values of financial assets with standard terms
and conditions and traded on active liquid markets
are determined with reference to quoted market bid
prices; and

o the fair value of derivative financial instruments
is made of discounted cash flow analysis using
the applicable yield curve for the duration of the
instruments for non-optional derivatives, and option
pricing models for optional derivatives.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair
values.

The details of fair value measurements of financial
instruments are set out in note 46.

35.

BEARETEERMBIA(E)

AFE

MBEERMBAB(IEEITETR)
ZRFHEDRFRAZRED T RER
TABFRERBAREEBEALEE -

o REBREGRRGHLNERRE
LEBECHBEEZ A TERER
BHISEEMmMETE &

e PIAMBIARFEIEMARIRE
i WIERETA T AZ HRE
B2 WS ERMRETE - MADEITAE
TAAIAISEEBEAGHE -

EER/RNEEUBHRERTIRBHAA
CRZHMBEERMHABZ RE(ER
HAFEES -

MBETARAZz A FEFEFBEHNHE
46
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36. Share-based Payment Transactions 36. BRI EERZIEZHES

Equity-settled share option scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the Special
General Meeting of the Company held on 18 June
2003, the Company adopted an option scheme (“Option
Scheme”). The Option Scheme was expired on 17 June
2013. Pursuant to the terms of the Option Scheme, the
options granted prior to the expiration of the Option
Scheme are continued to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the Option Scheme.

The purpose of the Option Scheme was to provide
incentives or rewards to participants including directors,
employees, suppliers and customers etc. Under the Option
Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company, may at
their discretion grant options to participants to subscribe
for shares in the Company in accordance with the terms
of the Option Scheme. The subscription price be a price
determined by the directors, but shall not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of
offer for grant of options, which must be a trading day; (i)
the average closing price of shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the offer for grant of
options; and (iiij the nominal value of a share. The total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Option Scheme and
any other share option scheme of the Group must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options might be granted to a participant, when aggregated
with shares issued and issuable (including exercised and
outstanding options and the options cancelled) under any
option granted to the same participant under the Option
Scheme or any other share option scheme within any 12
month period, must not exceed 1% of the shares in issue
from time to time.

56 O\

HEWOCEMN 5

oA MR

BIEAR D RN2003FE6 A18H BT
BREFIAEBAZEBRAZE &
NAEN—EE R R ([ AR T
2l]) - EBRREEIEN2013F6 817
HIEm - BIREIRE B 2 &K - RIE
RRiER S E MR L 2 BRI SEES
B WA AR R B AR AT BT o

BhEASCENAMES B8 - H#
REAMEFE2EBERMMEIKER -
RIZEREE - ARREFSRE
) 2 B2 25 4% ) AT AR I P I At 81 IR AR
BARBIRMD ZBEE - RBERAHE
EEE  EARER(IRER TEERE
ZEB(WBARRZH)  BNEBIME
AMERMABIWRHE () BERELER
TREEZBENAERXSA - RODED
RFFBAMERABZFHRTE &
(iR EEAERSERE) - REB
P v Rt B B AN S [ fr] EL 4t 8 B i T &
ROz 28 BREETERA TEITL
Bihas  EATHKBBERTERNZ
10% °

B EARR AR A AT & S (T At B A
ArEET2EEZEMEREERED
TTEERITEZBRER D THZBR
B)PRZBBITRATETZRNH
BaftatER - REM12EAREE2
HERR BREMMS R &Rm B #
BTSEBTREHTRMN 1% °
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There was no requirement for a grantee to hold the option
for a certain period before exercising the option save as
determined by the board of directors of the Company and
provided in the offer of grant of option.

The exercise period should be any period fixed by the
board of directors of the Company upon grant of the option
but in any event the option period should not go beyond 10
years from the date of offer for grant.

The acceptance of an option, if accepted, must be made
within 28 days from the date of grant with a non-refundable

payment of HK$1.00 from the grantee to the Company.

Option Scheme

The following tables disclose details of the Company’s
share options granted under the Option Scheme held by
employees (including directors) and movements in such
holdings during the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015:

EZ 2016 F 1231 HIEFE
36. Share-based Payment Transactions (Continued) 36. BB ERZZHER(Z)
Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued) EoEH MR E)

BRARBEZTERERNEHER THER
BZEZBTRTEIN  LEMREARAR
RITEBRERCHBEBRE RS
& o

TEMARAAREERREL BRI
R Z EAB - R EAERT -
BRESETEBARRLET 2 AR
SH10%F % -

AR AW A E - AR L H A
HERT 28 KA AN A AR A iR 8 B
1.0087T °

RAiEEE

TRFEENEZ 2016 F £ 2015 12 A
J1HIMEAFERE(BRERER)FEAN
AREREBEREGTSRE CBRIERE
BREERBAZEEFE -




Annual Report 2016 =Z—XEFHK | 177

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire ISR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2016

EE2016F 12 531 HI-FZE
36. Share-based Payment Transactions (Continued) 36. BRI BERZIZHEZR(E)
Option Scheme (Continued) MERREETBI(&)
Number of Number of
share options share options
outstanding at outstanding at
Exercise 1 January Expired during 31 December
Optiontype  Date of grant  Vesting period Exercisable period price 2015 the year 2015 and 2016
R2016 R
R20155F 20155
1A1H 12A31H
AETEC RRTHEZ
RREER fREE TR
HK$
BT
2006A 15 May 2006 16 May 2006 to 17 June 2006 to 0.625 14,910,537 (14,910,537) -
16 June 2006 31 December 2015
2006A 20065 A 150 200665H16HE 200656 A17HZE
200656 A 16H 20156127318
20068 16 June 2006 - 17 June 2006 to 0.625 6,626,905 (6,626,905) -
31 December 2015
20068 200656 A 16 A - 200656 A178%
20155128318
21,537,442 (21,537,442) -
Details of the share options held by the directors included EERMEBHESRKRAECEREFBR
in the above table are as follows: T

Outstanding at Outstanding at
1 January 2015 Expired during the year 2015 31 December 2015 and 2016
#2016 & 20155
#2015 1 A 1 HAKRTTHE R2015FAE B 12 A 31 HAKRTE
11,597,084 (11,597,084) —
The Company has not adopted any new option scheme. 7N N B) N 45 B 40 (T {a] H H BE IR AE o
Thus, there was no share option granted for the year ended o A E 2016 £ 20154F 12 A31 8 I+
31 December 2016 and 2015. FEEWER AT A BEEHE o

746 O
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37. Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities at 31
December 2016 and 2015.

38. Lease Commitments
The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases for offices, oil vessels,
leasehold land and LPG gas stations which fall due as
follows:

37. XR&R/

MR20164F K 201512381 H @ A&
B EERKARBE -

38. HEXiE
FREESEEA
REBHR - AEBERBE A HHELE
WMAE o HEI M RAR(CRUEE

MAXMNzARELEESXH - FIHA
L

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#ET FET

Within one year —FR 37,426 27,870
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_ERFN(BREREME) 59,197 68,199
Over five years BiBERF 60,322 65,573
156,945 161,642

As at 31 December 2016, rentals are fixed for an average
of 5 years (2015: 7 years).

The Group as lessor
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had

contracted for the following future minimum lease payments
for the office premises, leasehold and warehouses.

MN2016FE12 A31 8 HE BT TH
B5E(2015: 7H)

FREMERSHEA

RBEHR - AKEERUTYE - H
ErREZ BREDEEHRTA -

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET F&T

Within one year —FR 2,377 3,322
In the second to fifth year inclusive FERFN(BIEERME) 31 739
2,408 4,061

Ml

oSl
s =l
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39.

40.

Other Commitments

39. Hfthakif

2016 2015

HK$°000 HK$’000
TFAET FET
Capital expenditure contracted for but BRI ARE - #2355 hM
not provided in the consolidated R B RTAE R ERE BT
financial statements in respect of WMRBHEZEARRAY
purchase of gas plant and machinery
and oil vessels 347,256 354,802
Capital expenditure authorised for but ~ ARAUNEEIRETE R D B
not contracted and provided in the HEBRETO M ARG E B
consolidated financial statements in BB E 2 EARFRE
respect of acquisition of investment
projects 202,878 331,277

Retirement Benefits Plans

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of
the schemes are held separately from those of the Group,
in funds under the control of trustees. The Group and each
employee employed in Hong Kong are required to make
a contribution of 5% on the employees’ monthly relevant
income with a maximum monthly contribution of HK$1,500
per person from June 2014 onward.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of state-managed retirement benefit schemes
operated by the PRC government. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute fixed percentage of payroll costs to
the retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit schemes is to make the specified contributions.

56 O\

HEWOCEMN 5

40. RFFEFIETE

AEEAEREBZEZRBAEREERR
BRHFHEATELFE - ZetBzEER
AEBEESRIFE  BETAULES
RS - AEERRESRERBZEM
BEEBRIEEEBBKAZ5%EN
HE - B2014F6 AR FAHKLER
DRIAFA1,50087TT °

AEERTERBARZEESMNTR
BT EE 2 RKENGE - ZEWB L
AR BRARKBHFTEIATERAZ
BT Lb B R o AN SR B SR R 4R A AT 8l
ZME—BERIEHIEEHRK
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41. Related Party Transactions

Other than the related party transactions as set out in
notes 26 and 30, saved as disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into
the following transactions with related parties during the
year:

41.

REALEZS

BRETEE26 RIOFBMCABEALTRH K
FEMBmREMMTAREEN - A
SERFRNEBEALTET RS

2016 2015

Sales to joint ventures e EPEHE
Rental expenses paid to Shum Ho, Neo [RZ9&E 5 2 F 4 RIS
(Note) (Htat)

[RIE S R RIHE
A — B & R A A

Sales to associates

Purchase from an associate

Management charges paid to an
associate

Rental income for warehouse received

from an associate GER PN
Subcontracting fee received from an ) — Bt & A AU 2

associate EXDE=
Information and technical fees received A —B#%& A R EL 2

from an associate Bl RS

A—BERRXNERE

[ —Ha AEMRAEE L

HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
14,384 2,471
4,560 4,560

— 1,256,295

= 27,409

257 —

— 2,579

= 10,448

— 3,761

Note: Shum Ho, Neo is the employee of the Group and also the
son of Shum Siu Hung and Tong Shiu Ming. Shum Siu
Hung is the executive director of the Company. On 18
December 2013, Sound Management entered into an office
tenancy agreement with Ever Lucky Limited (“Ever Lucky”),
a company incorporated in Hong Kong and wholly owned
by Shum Ho, Neo, for the use of office premises owned by
Ever Lucky located on 23rd Floor, The Sun’s Group Centre,
200 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong at HK$380,000
per calendar month for a period of one year commencing on
1 January 2014. On 29 December 2014 and 29 December
2015, Sound Management and Ever Lucky entered into
two office tenancy agreements to extend the rental period
for one year to 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2016
respectively with the same monthly rental fee. The details of
the transactions were set out in the announcements issued
by the Company dated on 30 December 2014 and 29
December 2015 respectively.

Kt AEEZRB 2 T2 Vi R E /N
2T BLEAKRNRZHITES -
MR2013FE12 A18 80 » B EE RS
BRAG(FHEERE )ESEL2ER
BYRBEERIZERBRAA(E
BDEIT—HOFA=E4 UAA
380,000 L ABRARE B ET
& ITE 2005 FTER EE P 02318 2
WAEYE FHEHA2014F1A1H
A —F - N2014E12 A298 &
201512 A29R ' B EE R1ERE
ZITMOMWAZALY  UEEE AR
SHAZMRAE—FE2015F12 8
31HN2016%F12A31H - ZER5H
ZHBEEHINAERE D BIR 2014 F
12 A30 B %2015 12 A 29 A% 2
DNER o
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41.

42,

Related Party Transactions (Continued)

Save as disclosed above and notes 26 and 30, there were
no other significant transactions with related parties during
the year or significant balances with them at the end of
the reporting period. The rental expenses paid to Shum
Ho, Neo are subjected to reporting and announcement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rule, the remaining
transactions disclosed in this note and note 30 are
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules, but are exempted from reporting,
announcement, and shareholders approval requirements
under Listing Rules.

Compensation of key management personnel

The directors of the Company consider that the directors
are the key management of the Group, whose emoluments
have been disclosed in note 11.

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard
to the performance of individuals and market trends.

Major Non-cash Transaction
During the year ended 31 December 2016, amount of

approximately HK$449,378,000 was transferred from
deposits paid to property, plant and equipment.

-
{

756 -

HEWOCEMN 5

41.

42.

REBEALRS(E)

BR DA £ R P EE26 R BOFT I BE & SN - F
NERBEALYEEMEARS - NE
EHMRERETBEANES - XA T
L2 BEXHTIRE LR AE 14A
BZHBRAE - RIFLEMHRAE 14A
& AMERMEIOMKEZRZ /A
NEZBER S HEERRET EHR
QAT 2B - NERBRRIERTE -

EETEARZEM

ARAEERREZAAEEZTEE
BAE  HMeE XM 11 ARKE -

ESRERTRABZFHMAFIMES
SRBEARBRRTEEBEETE -

FEFRETH

REZE2016F 12 A1 BILEE @ ©98
449,378,000 B THE NI £ BEEY
% EBEREE
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43. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of the 43. FLFZEEMELFFE
Company
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 KRB R2016F %2015 12 A31 H
December 2016 and 2015 are as follows: ZEEMBARGFIEET:
Place of Issuedand  Proportion of nominal
incorporation/ fully paid up value of issued/
registration/ Class of share capital/  registered capital held
Name of subsidiary operation share held registered capital by the Company  Principal activities
L/ EBfTRER LTRGERT/
HELR&HE it/ g FEROEN ks /BRES EMESEELA  EERE
2016 2015
Balfuyang Macao Commercial Offshore ~ Macao Ordinary Macao dollar 100,000 100 100 Sales and distribution of LPG, oil and
Limited electronic products
BEARRRAEREAR LA R Lk 100,000&M7 HERDHRIR  MnRkETER
Fruto International Macao Commercial - Macao Ordinary Macao dollar 100,000 100 100 Sales and distribution of LPG
Offshore Limited
BLER R R R R AR AT bl Lk 100,000 27 HERAERIR
Lianxin Energy PRC' Registered capital RMBA486,500,000 100 100 Sales and distribution of LPG
R e e AF% 486,500,000 BERDBHRIA
NewOcgan Petroleum Gompany Limited BV Ordinary USD!1 100 100 Sales and distrioution of oil products
MERRERAT XERAE Lk 1% HERD D
Sound Agents Limited (*Sound Agents”)  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 100 Sales and distrioution of LPG and
(Note) selling of oil products
MEREAGRAA(HEREADME) Bk Lk 28T HERDHRIRRHE Am
HERORE)ARAT PRC Registered capital USD89,150,000 100 100 Sales and distrioution of LPG
AR K8 BR AT hE’ AMER 89,150,000 %0 HERDERIR
asR(hE) ERAT PRC Registered capital USD107,670,000 100 100 Sales and distribution of LPG
iR (PE)BRAR hE’ &R 107,670000% 70 HERDERILR
BEANSRR(RE)ERAR PRC’ Registered capital RMBT9,182,085 9.2 79.2 Sales and distribution of oil products
BEATAR K8 ERAR i AmER AR 79,182,085 HERDHAG
! Domestic — Invested enterprise ! NE - REMHE
2 Wholly-owned foreign enterprises 2 2EINEDE
8 Sino-foreign equity enterprise e PN EREE
Note: Sound Agents is indirectly held by the Company through Wi HFBREBABBHISBI I ZEEE
the declarations of trust executed by Shum Chun, Lawrence BHERAATIEEES  2E2EFEEH

= il Wlho is holding 50% mterest in Sound Agents. The remamlng ; ERH j\z 0% K zs o #7118 Jg}g@_ /\ﬁ@
QQW" t %’;g@ S(@d Agen |nd|r tly-held by th gl | . E25H iz 11 @
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43.

44.

Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of the
Company (Continued)

The above principal subsidiaries are owned indirectly by the
Company.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

In the opinion of the directors, the Group has no material
non-controlling interests and the summarised financial

information about these subsidiaries is not disclosed.

Derivative Financial Instruments

43. FRFZERMWBLFIFNE &)

PR TE2MBERAREHARREEE
ﬁo

BB RRNFRLFAEMEEGE
ERAREREHES

LRI EERRTEFEAREESE
HEEZARFINBATF - EERRT
HEMMBEARZEHNEBRILE -

EEZRA AKREXYEEAIFIEHE
@ BYERMEME AR ZHBER
BIEIERRE -

4. FTEMBIR

Derivatives financial

instruments
TEMBIR
Assets Liabilities
=E -1
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
2016 2016
Current mEh
Commodities swaps contracts Emis B A 4 — 1,935
Deliverable forward contracts RERIE L 45 —
Interest rate swaps contracts = EE &Y = 26
45 1,961
2015 2015
Current M ED
Commodities swaps contracts s A4 124 16,907
Deliverable forward contracts RERHE D 12,254 7,398
Interest rate swaps contracts R HE 4 — 1,480
12,378 25, 48%

456

HEWOCEMN 5
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44. Derivative Financial Instruments (Continued) 4. FTEMBIRE)
Major terms of the derivative financial instruments are PTHEMB T A 2 F ZERBMmT

summarised as follows:

Interest rate swaps contracts — net settlement FERPSH—HHBH

Notional amount Period Interest rates

2BEH ¥R FlF

2016

USD5,000,000 18 January 2017 Floating rate of 1 month LIBOR + 0.10% per
annum to fixed rate of 0.79%

5,000,000 7T 201741 H18H FENERE A E A RBERITRER B + F A=
0.10% ZEIEFM*E0.79%

Notional amount Period Exchange rates/interest rates

Z2BeT R ExE/FE

2015

USD7,500,000 and 10 June 2016 to Floating rate ranging from 6 months EURIBOR +

EURO22,171,888 12 August 2016 0.32% per annum to 1 month LIBOR + 3.25%

per annum to fixed rate ranging from 1% to
3.79% per annum
7,500,000 T % 22,171,888t 20166 A10H= FEVFEFIEN T 6168 A BUMRTTRIZENFE + F 5
201648 A 12 H £ 0.32% = 18 A BBERTRIERE + FFHI=X
3.25% ZREEFFENT1.%E3.79%

giwsss s Sl

. |
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44. Derivative Financial Instruments (Continued) 44, FTEMBEIRZ)
Commodities swaps contracts — net settlement BmEeSH - B
Notional amount Period Prices
ZBREH iR £
2016
Oil products
USD3,008,750 January 2017 Sell at price ranging from USD300.75 to
USD301.00 per metric ton
H i
3,008,750 % 7T 201741 A T EAWE300.75F L E 301.00 £ T 2 B E
2015
i) LPG January 2016 Buy at price ranging from USD350.00 to
UsD2,190,000 USD375.00 per metric ton
BALSR, 20164 1 A N FH AR 350.00 €L E 375.00 X T 2 BIREA
2,190,000 37T
ii) Oil products January 2016 Buy at price ranging from USD196.00 to
USD9,240,000 USD215.50 per metric ton
8 20164 1 A NTHAME196.00ETLE 215.50 L2 BIREA
9,240,000 % T
Deliverable forward contracts — gross settlement REEHEW - BHEH
Notional amount Period Exchange rates
ZBeH KR Ex
2016
USD5,027,692.22 18 January 2017 HK$/USD7.7455
5,027,692.22 7T 201741 H18H 7.7455 7T/ ETT
2015
RMB587,574,631 February 2016 to RMB/USD6.5555 to RMB/USD6.5765
August 2016 HK$/RMB1.1934 to HK$/RMB1.2233
EURO/RMB7.0490 to EURO/RMB7.0500
AR 587,574,631 20162 A= 6.5555 AR® /T E6.5765 AR /3ETT
2016 8 A 1.1934 %70/ AREEE 1.2233 8 0/ AREE

7.0490 BT/ AR ZE 7.0500 BT/ A REE

HE6 ¢

HEWOCEMN 5
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44. Derivative Financial Instruments (Continued)

Netting arrangements on derivative financial
instruments

The Group has entered certain derivative transactions
that are covered by the International Swaps and
Derivatives Association Master Netting Agreements (“ISDA
Agreements”) signed with various banks. These derivative
instruments are not offset in the consolidated statement
of financial position as the ISDA Agreements are in place
with a right of set off only in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptcy so that the Group currently has no legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts. Other
than derivatives transactions mentioned above and the
disclosure in note 45, the Group has no other financial
assets and financial liabilities which are offset in the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position or are
subject to similar netting arrangements.

Net financial assets and financial liabilities subject to
enforceable master netting arrangements and similar
agreements by counterparty.

Carrying
amounts of
financial assets
presented in the
consolidated

statement of

TTEMBIRE)
MTEMBIRZBARARH

AEEEETRITR A TEERRR
MTETABE T FEHE(TERE
HETETAGE R DREZITE
RZ - WETETANGEMBHREK
M EAERS > ARBERERARITET
A& A RRNED  EBHE
BB MR T - T AEEERE - &
AEEREWEAZE LA THRIT R
Ao AEHERRSRE - B EXmz
ITER S K45 FIREESN - NEEIW
BEHEMNARELRS BN RE K
RBOFRGEE LRV BEER
MBRIR-

RRXST 2 FEEIMITEFEEE R
KBUBZAR M BEERMF AR
HER o

Carrying

amounts of
financial liabilities
presented in the
consolidated
statement of

financial position  financial position Net amount
RiEM% RiFEM%
HRAERPETZ RARRENZ
MEEEREE MEARIEEE B8
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FEIT FEIT FETT
As at 31 December 2016 F 2016412 A31H
Counterparty A 577 A — (1,935) (1,935)
Counterparty B X577 B 45 (26) 19
Total st 45 (1,961) (1,916)
As at 31 December 2015 7K2015F 12 A31 H
Counterparty A R5HA 8,782 (15,298) (6,516)
Counterparty B X577 B 124 (5,786) (5,662)
Counterparty C R5HC 3,472 (208) 3,264
Counterparty D RSHAD = (4,493) (4,493)
Total s 12,378 (25,785) (13,407)
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45. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities Subject 45. MEESERMEARZIESRSE
to Offsetting Agreements

Except for the disclosure in note 44, the disclosures set out BRIGEE 44 2 BRI - TRERBBRER
in the tables below include financial assets that are offset in REBZEFEEVBEAKRRP IR 275
the Group's consolidated statement of financial position. BE o
The Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set AEBREEEEZE LA THITZHE
off certain amount of pledged bank deposits and bank Al NEHEE SO EARITERR
borrowings and the Group intends to settle these balances RITER > AEBEWEANFELEE
on a net basis. BRERER -
Financial assets subject to offsetting arrangement MESEZIEHRE
As at 31 December 2016 #2016 12831 H
Gross amounts Net amounts
of recognised of financial
financial assets
liabilities presented
set off in the in the
Gross amounts consolidated consolidated
of recognised statement statement
financial of financial of financial
assets position position
RiFEME
HRRERPERD RiGEaHE
=Y 4 =Y ok RARDETH
MEEESH RfE#S MBREPH
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Description ik
Pledged bank deposits and 2 #EIREITER L
bank borrowings IRITHER 710,184 710,184 -

#456 - N8

HEWOCEMN 5
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46. Fair Value Measurements of Financial 46. MBI RZOFEHEE
Instruments
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and BREEHEEDATFEMAEZETEEAM
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on EEERMBARZLATFE

a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities RBER BATAEEZHBEER
are measured at fair value at the end of the reporting FEBaEIIANRFEE - TRHIE
period. The following table gives information about how the BN ETHENSREERYEEEZ
fair values of these financial assets and financial liabilities NEEFRRARA 2 M ERNT R E
are determined (in particular, the valuation techniques and AZE)  URAFEFEZRAFESRE
inputs used), as well as the level of the fair value hierarchy BRI AR A A 258 A SIS 2 0]
into which the fair value measurements are categorised BIREES2B(E—REE=H) -

(levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements is observable.

o Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived D F—RATEFEEHAREENK
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for EERERMBFAIRZEBRCE
identical assets or liabilities; KRR )FTISH

o Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived o F_MATFEFENBEESREE
from inputs other than quoted prices included within ZEEBMER) SBEETEAE
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, )RR ABUEFTSE - MR
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived AFE—FZFREIEBRIN 0 K

from prices); and

o Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived o FZMAFEFETBBELIER
from valuation techniques that include inputs for the B BRmSEIE(EEEREA
asset or liability that are not based on observable BRI ZEEXABBEHASE G

market data (unobservable inputs). BIRMATEL




Annual Report 2016 =Z—XFEFHK | 189

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre g R M ot

For the year ended 31 December 2016
EE2016F 12 531 HI-FZE

46. Fair Value Measurements of Financial 46. MBI RAZAFEHE(E)

Instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on
a recurring basis (Continued)

Fair value as at
Financial assets/ LFE
financial liabilities 31 December 2016 31 December 2015
HEEE/ MERR 12016£12A 318 R2015512A 318
Equity securities classified as avallable for -~ N/A Listed equity securities in Korea
sale investment in the consolidated — HK$37,770,000
statement of financial position
RERUBRARA BAIRNERE,  TEA BE LMERES
&S — 37,770,000/
Interest rate swaps contracts classified Liabiities — HK$26,000 Liabilties — HK$1,480,000
as derivative financial instruments in
the consolidated statement of financial
posttion
RERIERRRIEATENEIA,  BF - 260003 BfE —1,480,000%7
fEERAH
Deliverable forward contracts classified Assets — HK$45,000 Assets — HK$12,254,000 and
as derivatives financial instruments in liabilities — HK$7,398,000
the consolidated statement of financial
posttion
NERUBRARA BAITENRIEZ  EE - 4500087 BE - 12,254 0008 TRER
’Z\ IR — 7,398,000 57

Commodities swap contracts classified Liabilities — HK$1,935,000 Assets — HK$124,000 and

as derivatives financial instruments in liabilities — HK$16,907,000

the consolidated statement of financial

posttion
RERUBRARIBATARB IR, &fF-1,935,00037 BE - 124,000?%7‘5}%%15
AmiEEal — 16,907,000 %7

There was no transfer between Level 1 and 2 in both years.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities at
amortised cost recognised in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

HHhG ¢

HEWOCEMN 5

BERMEEUAFEMGEZFREM
BRERMBARZAFEE)

Fairvalue  Valuation
hierarchy techniques and key inputs

AFERR  HEARRIZEBANS

Level 1 Quoted bid price in an active market

& HENSLEAGE

g

Level 2 Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are
estimated based on forward interest rates (from
observable yield curves at the end of the reporting
period) and contracted interest rates, discounted
at a rate that reflects the credit risk of various
counterparties

E8 FEBLHE - ARBE RENBEREH =( ﬁi&%
PRz IBRREEHEEL) Ra AR L
TERBSER Hh  FERR FIRER

Level 2 Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are
estimated based on forward exchange rates (from
observable forward exchange rates at the end
of the reporting period) and contracted forward
rates, discounted at a rate that reflects the credit
risk of various counterparties

e BRALRE - KRALREIREEAEX(BHE
PR IBERHERGL) RANERR G
TERBSERSH EERR NEER

Level 2 Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are
estimated based on forward commodities price
(from observable forward commodities price at the
end of the reporting period) and contracted price,
discounted at a rate that reflects the credit risk of
various counterparties

FRALRE - ARBERENBERIERER(S
REBRUBREDRRERSGL) RANER
it - TRRESER 55 EERRZIEER

|
|
L

MERNE—BRE-_R2EWEEE -

AREAEEBR/NEE P IERER T HER
ZHBEERMBABREEEZEQF
ERE
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47. Statement of Financial Position of the Company 47. FLRFZHMBERAE
Information about the statement of the financial position RBEBHREEARR ZHBMRARK Z
of the Company at the end of the reporting period is as BT
follows:
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$°000
FEIT FET
Assets BE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS BT B A A 2 7118 4,566,168 3,735,118
Other debtors, deposits and HEMEWRERER - ke kB
prepayment A 44,283 23,030
Deposits paid BEffEe 331,525 179,716
Bank balances and cash IRITERR N IR e 2,570 161,992
4,944,546 4,099,856
Liabilities af&
Other creditors and accrued charges MR RIE R ERTE A 9,558 4,824
Derivative financial instruments PTEMBITA 1,935 4,493
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEfT I B A B) 2 778 662,620 940,210
Amount due to a joint venture B —REEDEZIER 2,916 479
Borrowings &K 2,435,140 1,322,600
3,112,169 2,272,606
Net assets FEE 1,832,377 1,827,250
Equity G- L
Share capital Bz 148,040 148,040
Reserves & 1,684,337 1,679,210

Total &5 1,832,377 1,827,250
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47.

Statement of Financial Position of the Company
(Continued)

Movement in the Company’s reserves:

Share Share

capital premium

ks BHER

47. FRFZMBRRER(Z)

Exchange
reserve

ERER

AN 22D

Share  Contribution
options surplus
reserve accounts

WEHES HARBE

Retained
profits
REEH

TE-REFR

HK$'000 HK8'000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8'000
FET FET AT AT AT AT AT
At 1 January 2015 R2015%1 A1 148,040 1,439,717 42,338 3,743 1,667 187,641 1,823,146
Profit for the year ERig = - - - - 202,622 202,622
Exchange difference arising on RAEBIIRERES
translation to presentation BiZEE
currency - - (100,812) - - - (100,812)
Total comprehensive (expense) ER2E(LH)
income for the year hises - - (100,812) - - 202,622 101,810
Divdend paid Ghis = - - - - o708 (O7,70)
Transfer to retaned proftsupon ~ EERIEZBHEBE
expiration of share options Eyal - - - (3,743) = 3,743 =
At 31 December 2015 R2015%12 A31R 148,040 1,439,717 (68,474) - 1,667 296,300 1,827,250
Profit for the year ERgH - - - - - 153,032 153,032
Exchange difference arising on RASRFIREHES
translation to presentation EREE
currency - - (110,899) - - - (110,89)
Total comprehensive (expense) ER2E(LH)
income for the year hseg - - (110,895) - - 153,032 42,137
Dividend paid EE - - - - - (37,010) (37,010)
At 31 December 2016 R2016€12 A31H 148,040 1,439,717 (169,369) - 1,667 412,322 1,882,377
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M5 E

RESULTS E 3|

For the year ended 31 December

H#E12B31 HLEERE
2013 2014 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
Revenue WA 13,462,296 14,433,446 19,633,037 15,514,990 15,700,406
Profit before taxation BR% A& A 832,966 812,225 922,218 795,755 829,341
Taxation charge BB (20,425) (29,378) (21,312) (36,783) (79,181)
Profit for the year FREF 812,541 782,847 900,906 758,972 750,160
Attributable to: Bl
Owners of the Company N/NCIESZDN 810,934 783,308 900,270 756,643 749,397
Non-controlling interests JEE A 1,607 (461) 636 2,329 763
812,541 782,847 900,906 758,972 750,160
Earnings per share BREF
Basic (in HK dollars) HAR(BTL) 0.62 0.55 0.61 0.51 0.51
Diluted (in HK dollars) #E(BT) 0.61 0.54 0.60 0.51 N/A
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BSERAR

At 31 December

®12A31A8

2014
HK$:000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET
Total assets BEE 12,353,147 13,291,766 14,246,116 11,404,965 12,544,128
Total liabilities BaE (9,768,171)  (9,174,969)  (9,340,332)  (6,016,349) = (6,603,183)
2,584,976 4,116,797 4,905,784 5,388,616 5,940,945

Equity attributable to owners of  ARAR 2 A A

the Company B 2,568,404 4,095,536 4,874,600 5,350,423 5,857,227
Non-controlling interests JE s 16,572 21,261 31,184 38,193 83,718

5849

4,905,784

5,388,616

5,940,945
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